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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
This presentation contains forward-looking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives, financial condiien and results of operations that are based on our curment expectations, assump-
tions, estimates and projecuons, These statements discuss future expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain projections of results of operations or of our financiat condition. or state
other forward-looking information, These forward-looking statements are subject 1 various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that coutd cause our 2¢tual resufts to differ materially
from those suggested by any forward-locking statement. We assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-locking statement or to advise of any change in the assumptions and factors on which
they are based.
Risks. uncertainties or other factors that coutd cause actual results (o differ materiafly from those expressed in any forward-locking statement include. without limitation:
1. health concems relating Lo the use of tobacco products;
2.1egal or regulatory developments and changes. inchiding, without limitation, 1ax increases and restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products. and governmenta! investigations and pn-
vately impased smoking restrictions;
3, litigation in [apan and elsewhere,
4. pur ability 10 further dwersify our business beyond the 1obacco industry;
5. our ability 10 successfully expand internationally and make investrments outside of [apan;
6. competition and changing consumer preferences;
7. the impact of any agquisitions or similar transactions:
8, local and giobal economic conditions; and
9. fluctuations i fareign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials,

Unless otherwise specified in this anauz! report, the information herein is as of June 24, 2008.



. Financial

Highlights

Japan Teobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31

Millions of yen

) o 2004 2005 2006 2007

For the year:

Net sales ¥ 44625151 ¥ 4664514 ¥ 4637657 ¥ 4,769,387
EBITDA, thaed 373435 400,115 433391 464,634
Depreciation and Amortization ™= 139,401 126,744 126,445 132,643
Operating income 234034 273371 306946 331,991
Net income (toss) (7.603} 62,584 201,542 200772
Free cash flow (FCF) ®e2 269,174 269,459 145,550 223,007
At y)eﬁ:;nd: - ) B

Total assets 3,029,084 2982056 3037379 3364663
Totat equity 1,507.937 1,498,204 1,762512 2024616
Rados: e s mm e
Retumn on equity (ROE) {C.5%) 42% 124% H1.3%
Return on asset {(ROA) 7.9% 9.2% 10.4% 10.7%
Equity Ratio 49.8% 502% 580% 58.3%
Amounts per share (in yer{énd US doIIar; -: L o
Met income (Joss) ™ ® ¥ (793 ¥ 6418 ¥ 21017 ¥ 22001
Total equity 154,303 156,363 183956 204618
Cash dividends applicable to the year 2,000 2,600 3200 4,000

Millions of
LS. dollars (Note 1)

Notes: | Frgures stated in US. doliars in this report are translated selely for convenence at the rate of ¥100.19 per $1, the rate of exchange as of March 31, 2008.

2 EBITDA = operaung ncome + depreciation and amortzation
Drepreciabon and amortzation = depreciation of tangiole fed assets + amortizavon of intangiole fixed assets + amortizabon of long-term prepac) expenses + amortization of goodwilt

3.FCF = (cash flow from operating activibes + cash flow from investing acinties) excuding the following aems:
From “cash flow from operating activties”: Dividends recerved / nterest received and as tax effect / nterest paid and s tax effect
From “cash flow from investing activties”™: Cash cutflow from purchase of markeiable secunties / proceeds from sales of marketable secunities / cash outflow from purchases of nvesiment secunties / pro-
ceeds from sales of investment securities / others (but nal business-related nvestment secunties, which are included in the nvestment secuntties item)
4,0n Apnt |, 2006. a 5 for | stock split went into effect
Amounts per share for the years ended March 2004, 2005 and 2006 are on the assumption that thes stock split took place at the beginrung of each fiscal year.

5. Dduted net ncome (Joss) par share.

@ EBITDA and B Net Income (Loss) and ROE B Free Cash Flow B Cash Dividends Applicable
Operating Income to the Year
{Bilions of Yen} {Billions of Yen} [£.3] (Billions of Yen) {Yen)
2187 2642 21“_5 v
0.1 WS 208 730 E
12453 I 4000 ?
‘ mk
(h3 1456 ;
4646 i
4334 '] 4306 1,200 ;
000 A
34N 1600 i
3320 .
3063 :
3714 6260~ 2000
2340 2
w05
76
AR H
04 ‘05 06 07 08 04 05 ‘06 o7 o8 04 ‘05 06 07 o8 o4 08 06 ‘07 08
B EBITOA M Operating Income B Net Income {Loss) -+ ROE
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. JT at a Glance

japan Tobacco Inc. (JT) and its 47,500 employees are striving to become a
“global growth company that develops diversified, value-creating businesses.”
JT is the world's third-largest tobacco company. Our domestic tobacco business
continues to maintain a significant competitive position in the Japanesce market,
and the international tobacco business is delivering remarkable performance
as the driver of profit growth far the JT Group.

As future pillar businesses, the pharmaceutical business is steadily advancing
the development of compounds. and the foods business is striving

1o consolidate its business foundation as an integrated foods manufacturer,

. _ Domestic = [@9) jo ,
C - . j g5y, o Pharmaceutical Business
__ Tobacco Business 2 //‘o‘é,; o
Net Sales EBITDA Operating Income Net Sales EBITDA Operating Income
{Loss)
{Billions of Yen) (Billions of Yan) (Biliions of Yen) (Billions of Yen) {Bilions of Yen) {Bitlions of Yen)
34053 34163
13624 65 2454
058 W67 g m23
o
LS S X 48 [] §
9.6
3 ta
Orher Business 82
0.3%
w6 07 08 06 07 ‘08 06 ‘07 08 06 07 0B 06 07 ‘08 0 07 08
Net Sales
Breakdown,
by Business
- - . - Ca Segment
International ) i ® Foods Business
Tobacco Business IR TAIV
Net Sales EBITDA Operating Income Net Sales EBITDA Operating Income
(Billiens of Yen) (Billions of Yen) (Billions of Yer) (Bilflons of Yen) {Billiors of Yen} (Billlons of Yen)
2.640.0
2708
205.4 3364
e 1o
286, 8.4 63 &7
i 7 278.4
i 94.01 1127 7o B
07
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JT Group and Competition in Tobacco Industry

[Genoval

[Tokyol

* International Tobacco Business
|T Isternational S.A.
{Headquarters of the International Tobacco Operations}

M Major Tobacco Companies’ Share (2007}

55.9%

e
4

2.1 10.6%

® Headquarters of the Group

¢ Domestic Tobacco Business
+ Pharmaceutical Business
Torii Pharmacevticals Co., Lid, (Manufacturing and sale of drugs)
* Foods Business
Katokichi Ltd. (Manufacturing and sale of processed foods)
Japan Beverage (Distributing and sale of beverages)

# Warldwide Demand for Cigarette

Imperial Tobacco™ (LK)

1 [
W
AN
A ~‘\\
. P
Atadis® (Spain) : VP ‘ [ jfr @ |

3.5%

Source: Companies' reports, The Maxwell Report
(1% FY 32008 (2) FY 972007 (3): FY 12/2006

{Bilions of Cigareatias)
.686.0
'5:597.0 5.585.0 '
54940 55000 ', ' [‘5
i ii g
! E
.
i i '
.I 5 ' | |
| \
i J l I
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Sourge: The Maxwell Report
Top 5 Brands by Sales Yolume Worldwide
(Year endad December 31, 2006)
{Billians of Cigarettes)
Brand Brand Owner Tortal World Annual Sales Volume
1. Marboro Altna 466.3
2 Winston Total* 108.0
T 94.6
Reynolkds American 133
"3 MidSeven ‘}i'--- - T 106.1 o
T Altria il 049
5 Camel | Tow® ’ h T ey
T 36.1
Reynolds American 247
Source: The Maxwetl Report

* Szles volume within the United States and that outside the Unded States belong to Reynoids
American and [T, respectively

JT Annual Report 2008 3



. Towards Achieving Our Corporate Vision

Through various activities, we are committed to
providing all of our stakeholders with a unique added
value that JT alone can deliver as a surprise and
delight that exceeds expectations.

We are striving to fulfill this commitment through

o Y Hirashi Kimura | R “ AT .
¥ Yoji Wakui - : PR COMHRY  an initiative called “"Brand-ing,” in a bid to become
Chauman of the Ei__wa_! ! R Representatve Director

v . #  an cssenual partner of society.

JT Brand-ing Declaration {Eswablished in 2002)

Clear commitment to providing all of our stakeholders with a
unique added value that T alone can deliver as a surprise and
delight that exceeds expectations.

’ ’ . N\ *\We aim to become a "Global Brand-ing Company" that develops
/ ™. \ unique brands that are trusted and respected by our customers.
/ f ) * We believe that our most significant assets are those unique product
. Ay

= brands and “JT" itself, which pursues devetoping the brands, as the

/, .
-wa B | \ unified corporate brand.
* We commit ourselves 10 use management resources to continually
build our brands and keep them fresh,

Principles that should be respected by corporate managcm\egt
’ \

N

N * We are committed to developing and increasing the value of the "fT"
Behavioral values and ethics that should be shared \ brands as well as our product brands with pride.

48 Model

By circulating and expanding funds generated by high-quality
business activities, JT is committed to fulfill—to the best of its
ability and in a fair and balanced manner—its responsibilities to
its shareholders, customers, employees and society and to
ensure their satisfaction with |T's performance.

N I I T N R R R

* CS |T seeks to understand its customers' needs in depth, and to meet
these needs by continuing to offer attractive gaods and services.

= ES T offers attractive positions to talented people who have ability,
drive and a sense of responsibility.

*SS Through its business activities based on high ethical standards,
JT intends to become a good corporate citizen welcomed by both
global and regional communities.

* CF Economic achievernent constitutes the basic commen language
of the organization. Business structure is continually reviewed
and reformed to raise corporate adaptability to the ever-changing
environment,



Lohg-term Vision) .~

—— A global growth company that develops diversified, value-creating businesses

' Domestic Tobacco Business

Corporate Image

_ International Tobacco Business Pharmaceutical Business

* Overwhelm the competition
' in the home country market as
! “the core source of profis”
;

+ Attain a sustainable leadership
positicn in profitability and or
market-share within a growing
number of markets, and
continue to be “the driving force
for profit growth.”

» Continuously deliver profits
based on a strong foundation
as a core business.

Foods Business

« Establish a global competitive
advantage as an integrated
foods manufacturer.

» Group-wide EBITDA for FY 3/2009: Airn to exceed FY 3/2006 result

: by approximately 20 billion yen.

* fT2008 is based on organic growth and not on the premise of

large-scale M&A figures.

EBITDA
' FY 372006 ¥4334 billion
Fr 312007 ¥464.6 billion
Fy 372008

| NP e — el ml

—— e

e e e
. Domestic Tobacco Business |

Major acquisition deals

« Actively pursue growth opportunities by acquiring external resources,
especially in the international tobacco business and {oods business.

Acquired Gallaher Group Plc in April 2007 as a wholly owned subsidiary.

¥602.1 billion

International Tobacco Business | Pharmaceutical Business

= As“the Driving Force for Profit

+ As'the Core Source of Profits”, !
Airn 1o Maintain the Profit Level |
attained during the "|T PLAN-V” |
penod. i

FY 372008

I

EBITDA
FY 372006 ¥305.8 billicn
[ FY 372007 ¥3265 billion
! ¥306.7 billion |

- * Before royalty payments to JT

Growth", Conunue Leading the

industry in organic growth,

+ Aim 10 advance 1ts clinical
compounds to higher phases of
clirecal study and enhance
the R&D pipeline,

EBITDA®

FY 32006  USD925 million
FY 372007 USDI.090 million (up 18%)
FY 3/2008 USD2:452 million (up 125%)

Il compounds

1
Acquired Gallaher Group Plc in April
2007 as a wholly owned subsidiary.

Clinical development (as of May 1, 2008):

Successfully completed a tender offer for Katokichi Co. in December 2007
and made the company a wholly owned subsidiary in April 2008.
Acquired Fuiji Foods in April 2008 as a wholly owned subsidiary.

Foods Business

+ Estabhish foundations as an integrated
foods manufacturer,

Made Katokichi and Fuji Foods wholly
owned subsidiaries in April 2008.

IT Annua! Report 2008 5




B To Our Stakeholders

We face intensifying competition not

only in the tobacco business but also

in the pharmaceutical and foods

Dol 4. businesses. However, we believe that
e we can turn this challeng'ng situation
to our adviui.age and find

emerging business opport »ities.
We wili therefore strive to increase
our corporate value by continuing
to expand and strengthen our
organization,develop our employees
and caonsolidate our business
foundartions so that we can become
a global growth company that
develops diversified

value-creating businesses.

Hiroshi Kimura
President and CECQ and Representative Director



Foreword

Before reporting our business performance and financial
results, as the representative direcior of | T, 1 would like to offer
my sincere apalogics not only to people who suffered health
problems after consuming certain frozen foods products sold
by the |T Group. but also 10 our customers who have cooper-
ated with our nationwide product recall, business partners.
sharehclders and other stakeholders. The JT Group will sirive
to regain the trust of our consumers by seeking to develop the
highest level of standards in food safety. via improved in-house
inspaction systems and engaging third-party expertise. among

other measures.

FY 3/2008 Performance

(1) Domestic Tobacco Business

The domestic tobacce business faces an increasingly tough
environment, as overall demand decdlines and competiion with
other tobacco companies intensifies. Although our sales vol-
ume decreased due to decliring overall demand, we have
achieved the first upturn in our market share since cur prvati-
zation in 1985, This was as a result of active sales promolion
activities, including the campaign marking the 30th anniversary
of the market launch of Mild Seven. and the effective introduc-
tion of new products. Meanwhile, our profits declined due to
the sales volume drop and increases in raw material costs and
sales promotion expenses. Nonetheless, the domestic tobacco

business continues Lo serve as core source of profits.

{2) international Tobacco Business

The |T Group has substantially expanded in size following the
acquisition of Gallaher Group Fle, consolidating its position as
the world's third largest tobacco company. The integration of |T
international and Gallaher 15 proceeding sroothly, without caus-
ing any significant disruption 1o our existing busingss mormentum.
Throughout this integration process, we are pursuing synergy in
top-line growth, including the creation of a robust and well-bal-
anced brand porifolio, while also steadily irmplementing meas-
ures to reduce costs through synergy. In terms of business
performance, sales volume, revenue and profits all grew sharply
from the previous year, thanks to record high levels of organic
growth represented by top-line growth of Global Flagship Brand
(GFB) products such as Winston and Camel, In addition to the

contribution of Gallaher.

(3) Pharmaceutical Business
In order to achieve our goal of developing the pharmaceutical
business as a pillar of cur operauons in the future, we have
made steady progress in the clinical developrment of our com-
pounds and expanded and enhanced our R&D pipeline so that
we can rapidly increase the value of this business

In terms of business performance, revenue increased due to
a milestone revenue related 1o the progress made in the
development of dyslipidemia treatment JT1-705, hcensed 1o
Roche Group in October 2004, and an increase in the revenue

of Tori Pharmaceutical, a JT subsidiary.
{4) Foods Business

The foods business posted an increase in revenue despite a

decline in sales of the processed foods business, mainly due to

JT Annua! Report 2008 7




the consobidation of the Katokichi Group in the consolidated
results. Meanwhile, profits declined due to an increase in mate-
nal costs and the cost of goodwill amortization relating to the

acquisition of the Katokichi Group,

As a result of the performance of the individual business units
described above, the |T Group’s net sales increased by
¥1,640.3 bilion, or 34.4%, fram the previous year to ¥6409.7
billion. EBITDA grew by ¥137.5 billion, or 29.6%, to ¥602.1 bil-
lien and operating income increased by ¥98.6 biltion, or 29.7%.
1o ¥430.6 billion. Met income totaled ¥238.7 billion.

We achieved double-digit year-on-vear growth in net sales
as well as in all profit tems: EBITDA, operating income, recur-
ring profit and net ncome.

We have announced an annual dividend of ¥4,800 per share
for the fiscal vear ended in March 2008, including an interim
dividend.

Our Tasks for FY 3/2009

Below. | will explain what we aim to achieve in FY /2009 in

fight of the performance in FY 3/2008.

(1) Domestic Tobacco Business

In cur domestic tobacco business, we expect the sales volume
to decline due to a temporary dip in demand following the
introduction of age verifying cgarette vending machines, in
addition 10 the long-term downward trend aof overall domes-
tic demand. In the current fiscal year, we will seek to further

expand our market share and consolidate our position as the

market leader in Japan by continung to actively invest in Mild
Seven and other main brands, and by introducing new prod-
ucis primarily of main brands in an effecive manner Although
the cost of materials such as foreign leal wobacco 15 expected
to rise in Lhe current fiscal year, wa will strive to reduce both
fixed and variable costs and make constant efforts to improve

our productivity.

(2) International Tobacco Business

We will take advantage of our expanded business platform
and newly acquired brands, and invest brand equities and
capabilities to sustain and expand quality top-Ine growlh n

the long term.

(3) Pharmaceutical Business
In the pharmaceutical business, we will make continuous eflorts
10 achieve our goal of steady progress in chmical development

and enhancement of the R&D pipeline,

{(4) Foods Business

[n the foods business, we are focusing on the beverage.
processed foods and seasonings sectors and siriving to estab-
hsh the highest level of standards for food safety, based on our
enhanced recognition of the importance of food safety.
Moreover, we will consolidate our business foundavon as an
integrated foods manufacturer by concentraling our processed
foods and seasoning businesses at Katakichi and further

expanding the beverage business.

We face intensifying competition riot only in the 1obacco buse

ness but also in the pharmaceutical and foods businesses.



However, we balieve that we can turn this challenging situation
o our advantage and find new business opporiunities. We will
therefore strve Lo increase our corporate value by continuing
to expand and strengthen our organizatien, develop cur
employees and consolidate cur business foundations so that
we can become a global growth company that develops diver-

sified, value-creating business.

Maximizing Corporate Value

We believe that maximizing our corporate value, in the medi-
um to long term, by achieving sustainable profit growth
through active business investment is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value.

Regarding dividend payments, we aim 10 increase dividends
in order 1o raise cur consolidated payout ratio to 20% under
the Medwrn Termy Management Plan “JT2008", excluding the
impact of goodwill amortization en net income. We will strive
to increase our dividends with due consideration of the imple-
mentation status of our medium to long-lerm growth strate-
gies and forecasts for consolidated financial results, based on
our approach of ensuring a competitive reiurn of profits to
sharcholders in the capital market.

We will use internal reserves to make business investments
for our immediate and future needs and 1o acquire exienal
resources, while securing sufficient funds for such measures as
repayment of interest-bearing debts and an own share repur-

chase to expand the scope of management options.

To Qur Stakeholders

The IT Group will continue to be a good corporate ciizen,
recognized glabally and within regional cormmunities through
our business aclivities based on high ethical standards.

We will contribute 1o the development of the ocal commu-
nities in which we operate, providing support in the following
four priority areas: Social Welfare, Arts and Cuiture,
Environmental Protection, and Disasler Relief.

In the domestic tobacce business, we will actvely suppont
efforts to ensure the smooth introduction and operation of
age verifying cigarette vending machines. As the leader of the
tobacco industry, this will contribute to fulfiling cur socal
responsibility in the prevention of youth smoking. In the inter-
national tobacco business, the |T Group has for many years
engaged in voluntary efiorts to combat smuggling and counter-
feiting and maintained active cooperation with governments
and regulatory authorities around the waorld. In December
2007, JTI signed a cooperation agreement with the European
Caommission and 26 Member States of the European Union
(EU) to combat the contraband and counterfen of cigarettes in
the EU. The JT Group will continue to actively promote efforts
to eradicate cigarette smuggling and counterfeiting, i cocpera-
tion with govemments and regulatory authonties around the

world.

June 2008

“

- ——

Hiroshi Kimura
President and CEQ and Representative Director

JT Annual Report 2008 9
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The New JT!

JT International (JT1) is the international tobacco division of Japan Tobacco inc., and was

formed in 1999 when Japan Tobacco Inc. purchased, for USD 7.8 billion, the internationat

tobacco operations of the US multinational R|R Nabisco Inc. in 2007, Gallaher Group Ple,

a FTSE 100 business. was acquired by Japan Tobacco Inc. for GBP 7.5 billion. At the time,

this was the largest foreign acquisition by a Japanese company. In 2009, | Ti will enter

its 10th year of existence. JTl is a young industry player built on solid tobacco

experience and rich heritage, dating back to the 18th century.

[Tl is headquartered in Geneva, Switzerland. Since 1999, its President and CEQ is Pierre de Labouchere.

[TI's Executive Committee consists of {6 members, of 11 different nationalities.

ITis a truly international and multicultural business, employing more than 22,000 people around the world,

Pierre de Labouchere
President and Chief Executive Officer

Yasushi Shingai
Executve Vice President, Deputy CEC &
Chief Financial Officer

Thomas A. McCoy
Chief Operating Officer

Members of JT1 Executive Committee

David Aitken
Senior Vice President Consumer & Trade Marketing

Paul Bourassa

Senior Vice President Legas,
Regutatory Affairs and Compliance

Jorg Schappel
Senior Vice President Human Resources

Bill Schulz
Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain

Takehisa Shibayama
Senior Vice President Researcn & Develepment

Frits Vranken

Senior Vice Prasident Business Development ang
Corporate Strategy

Martin Braddock
Regional President CI5 / Adriatica f Rormnania

Stefan Fitz
Regional President Central Europe / Nordic

Hans-Gerd Hesse
Regional President Asia Pacific

Fadout Pekhazis
Regional President Midgle East / Near East / Africa /
Turkey and WWOF

Eddy Pirard
Regional President United Kingdom / Ireland

Michel Poirier
Regional President Armericas

Roberto Zanni
Regional President Western & Southern Europe f Battics
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New Global Flagship Brands Portfolio

The eight Global Flagship Brands (GFB} constitute the core of JTI's brand portfolio, further accelerating quality top-line growth.

Engines
Winston

CAMER,

Strongholds

S

MILESEVEN

)'Ah. e |

Future potential

f-l -;h’)
N

SORKAN T

@d?ﬂ()ﬂ')’-

Winston and Camel are “Engine™ brands driving JTI's growth,

First introduced in 1954, Winston has proven its status as JTI's key growth engine by

becoming the 2nd largest cigarette trand in the world in 2006, demonstrating excellent {Bllians of Cigasetces)

results in CIS+, South & West Europe and the Rest of the World. Winston has expeni- g5 - - .

enced double digit growth over the last seven years and its strong momentum contin- 9. .~ -
ues through brand extension and ongoing product innovation. 7. L

First introduced in 1913, Camel is the originator of American Blend. Sold in over 100
countries, Camel currently is the 5th largest cigarette brand in the world. tn 2007, Camel
further accelerated its sales volume in all regions. Camel Natural Flavor and other line %+ R

extensions contributed to Camel's success, :: s e

{Blhony of Clgaretres)

Four stronghold brands have a significant presence in their respective regions increasing the competitive power of JT1's portfelio.

Originating in Japan and launched in 977, Mild Seven is the top-selling premium charcoal trand worldwide and is the
3rg largest cigarette brand. Its key markets outside Japan are Taiwan, Korea, Russia and Malaysia.

Originally created for the Prince of Wales in 1873, Bensen & Hedges has a proud British heritage.
Today, Tl owns the Benson & Hedges trademark in EU markets (excl. Baltics) where it is a leading Virginia premium
brand. Benson & Hedges evolves continuousty to reflect the needs of prerium consumers.

Launched in 1963, Silk Cut established ftself as one of the leading brands in the Virginia segment, both in the UK and Ireland.
|TI owns the Sitk Cut trademark throughout EU markets with the core markets being the UK, Ireland and Greece,
where the brand enjoys a significant market share in premium segment.

LD was launched in 199% as a mid-price proposition in the Russian market. The brand achieved immediate success and is
perceived as a credible intemational proposition.

Also available in more than 30 countries, LD is synonymous with innovation and responding to consumer aspirations,
including the successful extension of Round Comer packs, Slims and Super Stims formats.

The market presence of these brands is still small, but they have growth potential.

Sobranie is one of the worid's oldest tobacco brands and has been synonymaus with luxury cigarettes since 1879,
This heritage, exquisite style and the best selected tobaccos have made Sobranie one of the most prestigious brands
in the world.

Glamour is [TI's leading Super Slims brand.
Since its introduction in 2005, Glamour has achieved remarkatle growth in the CIS, and the No.t Super Slims brand in
Russia and Ukraine.

JT Annual Report 2008




Geographies

I is striving to build on a well-balanced market portfolio to ensure sustainable profit growth. The acquisition of Gallaher has provided JTI
with a number of additional markets with strong positions and profit generation strengthening its ability to grow eamings into the future.
The cluster of markets below provides an insight into JTI's business, but does not reflect its management structure.

25% [T =—10%

Rest of the Woerld

14%

South & Weat Europa & 51%

Market clusters and their key markets constituents  BWinsion

North & Central Europz
North & Central Europe consists predominantiy of former Gallaher markets.

Sweden
o
Ireland O UK

Austria
2007 Market share  Market position
UK 39% No.2
ireland 49% Ne.!
Awustria 7% No.2
Sweden 34% No. |

Scutn & West Europz

In South & West Europe such as Spain, France, ftaly and Greece |TI
has grown volume and share despite declining market sizes.

France ®
italy =
Spain ®
Greece B D
2007 Market share  Market position
Spain 20% No.3
France 14% No.4
ltaly 16% Neo.3
Greece 14% No.2

ﬂ' North & Central Eurepe

< 19%
30% North & Cuntral Europs
Rest of the World

N\

South & West Europe "‘-_\-_ D

Camel BMild Seven . .B2H 0OSik Cut LD WSobranis OGhamour

CIS+

CIS+ is the key growth driver in volume and eamings.

Russia ©@ poma

Ukraine & 0O
Kazakhstan om

Romania #
107 Market share  Market position
Russia 35% Neo.|
Kazakhstan 42% No.2
Ukraine 29% No.2
Romania 29% No.2
Rest of the world
Canada
Turkey =
Taiwan B
Malaysia 82
2007 Market share  Market posidon
Taiwan 37% No.|
Malaysia 18% No.2
Turkey 15% No.3
Canada 13% No.3

Note: All share of market data has been ootained from external sources, exduding Canada (71 estimate}
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Major Integration Achievements to Date

All integration initiatives are moving ahead strongly without any major disruption to the existing business.
One organization in place across the company
Enhanced brand portfolio
Distribution integration
Factory consolidation
Consistent business processes

Future
oo Ty
! » L oy
EBITDA Evolution
{Milliens of U'§ doltars} 1180
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! !
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** Including hypothetical fll year Gallaher contribution.
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Domestic Tobacco Business

Business Performance

FY 3/2008 Business Performance Summary
» Total sales volume of [T products: 167.8 billion cigarettes®,
down 4.1%
« Net sales including excisc tax: ¥3.362.4 billion, down 1.6%
« EBITDA: ¥306.7 billion, down 6.0%
» Qperating income: ¥222.3 billion, down 9.4%

The domestic tobacco busingss faces an increasingly tough busi-
ness environment as total tobacco demand in Japan continues
to decline and competition with other tobacco manufacturers
imensifies, in an effort to achieve top-line growth, we have been
striving 1o strengthen our marketing capabilities while refreshing
and enhancing existing brands as necessary and introducing new
products 1n an effective manner. Moreover, we are making
unceasing efforts to improve our productivity.

In FY 3/2008. we endeavored to enhance the value of our
brands by introducing new products mainly in the Mild Seven
farnily. which is our core brz;nd. as well as by strengthening exist-
mg brands Specifically, we introduced the "iMild Seven Aqua
Menthol Super Lights Box™ in July 2007 and the “Mild Seven D-
spec Super Lights Box," a "D-spec” product developed using our
odor reduction technology, in December 2007, both for nation-
wide release. Another example of our active sales promotion
activity was the ongoing campaign to celebrate the 30th anniver-
sary of the Mild Seven family's first market launch. Moreover,
"Peace Infinity,” a D-spec product initially released in limited
regions, was launched nationwide in October. "Seven Stars
Lignis Menthol” was released in limited regions in February. and
at nine products of the Caster family underwent package

18

| 67.8 tillian cigaretres

Total sales volume of JT products

¥3,3624 bihen

Net sales Including exoise Lax

¥306.7 b1 on

EBITDA

¥2223 U

Operating Income

redesigns in late December in order to create a uniform brand
image. In May 2008, we released "Mild Seven Impact Ore 100’
Box". In early July, we are scheduled to launch “Cabin Roast
Blend 100's Box" and a new D-spec product called "Camel
Nutty Lights Box" in limited areas of Japan.

The volume of our cigarette sales in FY 372008 decreased by
7.2 billion cigarettes (down 4.1%) from the previous year 10
167.8 billion cigareties®. However, our market share rose 10
645% (up 0.1 point), and we have achieved the first upturm n
our market share since our privatization in 1285 thanks (o active
sales promotion campaigns and the introduction of new prod-
ucts. Net sales (excluding excise tax) per 1,000 cigareties
increased by ¥67 from the previous year to ¥4,057, due to a nse
in unit sales prices caused Ly the revision of retail pnces.

Consequently, net sales of the domestic tobacco business in
FY 3/2008 deciined by ¥53.9 bilion from the previous year
(down 1.6%) 10 ¥3,362.4 billion due to a drop in sales volurme.
Operating income fell by ¥23.0 billion from the previous yedr
{down 94%) to ¥222.3 billion, depressed by increases in mate-
nals costs and sales promolion expenses.

* In addition to the Foure siated above, we 336 soig 28 Dlion Toarerel ot
duty-free shops 0 Japan as we s those o Crhona, Hong dorg and e
markets that are under the control of our Cruna Dragon

Strategy and Specific Measures

Optimizing our Marketing Mix toward Sustainable Growth
» Product strategy
+ Distribution strategy
» Markeung strategy
» Improving productivity and fulliling our responsibitity as the
rmarket leader



We have achievad the first upturn in our market share since our privatization in 1985
thanks to active sales promotion campaigns and the introduction of new products.
The domestic tobacco business is positioned as the core source of profits for

the JT Group. Competition for market share is becoming increasingly intense as

total tobacco demand continues ta decline, due to factors such as the ageing of RsY
japanese society, growing awareness about the health risks associated with smoking
and the tightening of smoking-related regulations. In this business envirenment,

JT is resolved to boost the value of its domestic tobacco business by pursuing

a strategy for sales growth and enhancing productivity simultanaously.

Cpimzee O inbetoz ] ix to Gan Mapamam Rewits
In the domestic tobacco market, total demand for cigarettes has
continued 1o decline due to the aging of the Japanese population.,
growing awareness about the health nisks associated with smok-
ing and tightening of smoking-refated regulations. Increases in the
tobacco excise tax that 1ook effect in luly 2003 ang July 2006 had
an addiional impact on the market, with Japanese smolang rate
cropping to 26.0%, according to a May 2007 survey,
Meanwhile, as tobacco-related regulations are being
strengthened in vanous ways, markel share competition with
foreign brands 15 intensifying, |T will overcome the impact of a
future decline in sales volume by optimizing our marketing mix
through our product. distribution and sales strategies.
[Product Strategy]
Our product strategy focuses on boosting the value of our main
brands and introducing new products in an effective manner.
After redesigning the packages of 14 products in the Mild
Seven family in 2006, we renewed the packages of all nine prod-
ucts in the Caster brand family in December 2007 as part of our
effort 1o boost the value of our main brands. Moreover, we are
secking to raise unit prices by developing and introducing prod-
ucts with high value added, as represented by the D-spec brand
family. We aim 10 expand our market share by pursuing a brand
porticlio that suits the excellent value of our brands.
[Distribution Strategy]
We have a powerful, unrivalled domestic distribution network.,
About 60% of all tobacco sales in Japan go through cigarette
vending machines, and |T owns more than 40% of ail such
machines installed w the country, We will centinue to maintain
our averwhelming competitive edge in sales through vending
machines and step up efiorts to increase sales through emerg-
ing sales channels such as convenience stores,

o

Ichiro Kumakura
President, Tobacco Business

[Marketing Strategy]
Our marketing force. the vast size of which eclipses the mar-
keting teams of our competitors, satisfies the mulutude and
variety of necds of retailers scattered across the country, We
will continue 10 engage in efficient and effecuve markeung
activities in ways linked to our product ang distnbution strate-
gies, while complying with regutations and rules such as restnc-
tions on tobacen advertising and prevention of youth smaoking,
[Improving Productivity and Fulfilling Responsibilities as Market Leader]
Productivity improvement is a critical challenge for any manufac-
turing company. At |T, we will never cease our efforts to satisfy
the increasingly diverse needs of our customers and to respond
appropnately 10 any change in the supply-demand balance.
Moreover, we will continue to fulfli our responsibilities as the
leading tobacco company in the Japanese market by endeavorng
to achieve a hammonious co-existence between smokers and
non-smaokers, We will alse engage in initiatives to 1mprove
smoking manners and strive to secure and create space and
opportunity for smoking, for example by helping to provide
comfortable smoking areas. Meanwhiie, the tobacco industry.
including T, will continue 1o promote initiatives to prevent youth
smoking, including the nationwide intreduction of age verifang
cigarette vending machines. scheduled for July 2008, in coopera-
tion with local governments and other organizations concemed.

As a Core Source of Profits for the JT Group

We will ensure that the domestc tobacco business contnues 1o
serve as the [T Group's core source of profits by overcoming chal-
lenges in the domestic market. such as the continung decline in

total tobacco demand and intensifying competiton.

JT Annual Report 2008 19
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international Tobacco Business

Business Performance

FY 2007 Business Performance Summary®
+ Total sales volume: 385.6 billion cigarettes, up 60.6%
« GFB sales volume: 203.2 billion cigarettes, up 10.0%
« Net sales including excise tav: ¥2.6400 billion, up 164.1%
« EBITDA: ¥270.8 billion. up 140.3%
« Operating income: ¥205.4 bilhen, up 153.3%

* The consolidated zccounting peried for the imemational tobacco busi-
ness 1§ from faruary 2007 through Decernber 2007,

JT1 will further enhance its role as the profit growth engine for
the JT Group through 1op-line growth, In continuing its business
integration with Gallaher, | Tl seeks to gain both top-line synergy
and cost saving synergy. JT| has identified eight brands which
comprise the new portfolio of Global Flagship Brands (GFB):
winston, Camel. Mild Seven, Bensen & Hedges, Silk Cut, LD,
Sobranie and Glamour. |TI wili actively explore opportunities
for top-hine growth based on the strength of the GFB.

In 2007, [TI's total sales volume increased by 1455 billion
cigareties (up 60.6%) from the previous fiscal year, 10 385.6
bitlion cigarettes. This was due 1o Winsian's sales growth in
Russia. Ukraine, Turkey and Spain; Camel's sales growth in
Spain. France, llaly and Russia; in addition to the contribution of
Gallaher's sales. GFB sales volume totaled 203.2 bilion ciga-
rettes. As a result. net sales of the intemational tobacco busi-
ness increased by ¥1.640.3 billion from the previous fiscal year
(up 164.1%) to ¥2,640.0 billion, and operating income
increased by ¥124.3 billion (up 153.3%) to ¥2054 billion.

Mote: The foregn exchange rate n 2007 was ¥t17.85 per doliar, compareg
with Y1 16,38 oer dolar w the previous fiscal year.
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3856 . ...

Total saics volume

2032 bill on cigarettas

GFB sales volume

¥2.640.0 bilon

Net sales including excise tax

¥2708 he i

EBITEA

¥2054 . .

Operatng wtome

Key Strategies of JTI

+ Building outstanding brands

» Enhancing productivity

* Responsible behavior

~ Developing people
Contnuous improvement s embedded across the arganiza-
tion in addressing these key strategies.

[Building Outstanding Brands]

Brands are the engine of [TI's business as the company contin-
ues to focus on product quality and excellence in execution,
{TI's objective is clear: offering 1o consumers brands that defiv-
er greater satisfaction than those coffered by its compettors. [Tl
believes that active invesiment in brands is essential to making
the most of its new brand portfolio and accelerating s top-line
growth. JT! plans to start spending an additional 00 million
dollars per year on its marketing activities in 2008, manly in
markets derived from the acquisition of Gallaher.

[Enhancing Productivity]
|TI is devoting its efforts lo optimizing its cost base and
improving business processes. This will ensurc that the energy,
time and money invested yield the highest possible retum.

in continuing its integration of Gallaher, JT1 will accelerate
efforts to opumize its manuiacturing footprint and procure-
ment, integrate distribution and sales organizations, and opt-
mize its entire range of business processes,

By the end of December 2007, [Tl had announced arcund



|T International (JT), the international tobacco division of |T, enjoys the fastest organic
growth among all global tobacco manufacturers. The acquisition of Gallaher in April
2007 has brought JT! significant scale benefits as well as an enhanced portfolio of
brands and talent base. The business integration of | Tl and Gallaher has proceeded
quickly and smoothly without causing any disruptions to [Tl's existing

business momentum, The new jTI. strengthened by the integration of Gallaher,

will continue to actively pursue further opportunities for quality top-line growth.

1,000 headcount reduction and the closure of four factories:
Linz i Austria, Cardiff in Wales, Bucharest in Romania and s
Turkish factory.

f[Responsible Behavior]
ITI believes that pursuing excellent corporate governance and
social responsibility is essential to a successful organization. The
comparny is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance and socially responsible practice in all of its corpo-
rate activities.

in December 2007, |Ti signed a cooperation agreement
with the European Commission (the executive branch of the
Europedn Uniwon). and 26 EU member states® in the fight
against the illict trade of tobacco. | T believes that this agree-
ment witl help to establish a more eflicient and constructive
framework for cooperation between |T1, the EU, and mem-
ber states in order to combat crganized tobacco smuggling
and counterfeiting.

* The ELJ member states that agreed to participate in the cooperstive initiative
a3 of December 14, 2007 are as follows:
Austra, Beigum, Buigana, Cyprus. Crech Republic, Denmark, Estonia. Finland,
Fraxce Gerrany, Greece Hungary, Irefand Italy, Latvia, Lithuama,
Lucernpourg, 1alta, Netherlands, Polang, Portugal, Ramaria, Slovata,
Siovant Spen, and Sweden

fDeveloping People]

In order to successfully take on any future chailenges, |TI
endeavors to attract and retain the best people. Taking advan-
tage of cultural diversity, a strongpoint in JTI, the company
develops people to enable them ta lake leadership positions in
the future, irrespective of their nationalities.

“ur
-5
Pierre de Labouchere
President & CEQ, T Intemational 5.4

Toward Sustainable Organic Growth

|TI's strong business performance and growth have been supported
by key commitments: focusing on the GFB portfolio and enhanaing
brand equity through continueus quality improvement.

JTH more than tripled its EBITDA over the seven-year period
from 2000 to 2007, through organic growth. Furthermore. the com-
pany more than doubled its profits in 2007 alone wa record high
levets of organic growth and the contnbution of Gallaher.

[Tt will further buiid on this broadened business base and capilal-
ize fully on the resources acquired via the business integration. At
the same time. |T| will continue 10 make nvestments in order to
achieve sustainable lop-line growth and thus act as the profit
growth engine for the |T Group. JTI remans committed 1o the goal
of reaching an annual EBITDA growth rate of at least 10% over the

coming three years.

JT Annual Report 2008 21
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Pharmaceutical Business

Business Performance

FY 3/2008 Business Performance Summary
+ Net sales; ¥49.1 billion, up 7.5%
+ EBITDA: -¥6.3 billion, up ¥1.9 billion
» Operating income: -¥9.6 billion, up ¥1.6 billion

In the pharmaceutical business, we are siriving to further
improve and strengthen our in-house R&D capabilities.
Although we abandoned the development of anti-diabetes
compound [TT-551, the development of anti-obesity com-
pound JTT-553, anti-diabetes compound |TT-651, anti-
Hepatitis C compound JTK-652, JTS-653 — a compound for
pain relief and treatment of overactive bladder, and anti-dia-
betes compound |TT-654 have advanced to the clinical trial
stage, bringing the number of compounds developed in-house
that are under chrecal development 1o |

Moreover, we are explonng strategic opportunilies to con-
clude licensing agreements to acquire nghls o drugs devel
oped by other companies, or give others rights to our drugs. In
September 2007, we concluded a licensing agreement with
Keryx Biopharmaceuticals Inc. under which |T and Torii
Pharmaceutical Co., a subsidiary of |T, have acquired the exclu-
sive rights to develop and commercalize Keryx's hyperphos-
phatemia drug in Japan. which is currently in phase 1l clinical
study in the United States.

Regarding the business performance of Toni Pharmaceutical,
the company suffered declines in sales of its mainsiay products,
the Futhan protease mhibitor and the Stronger Neo-

2

¥49.1 -

Ny 5a o4

~¥63 billion

EBITDA

'¥96 billlon

Operating income

Minophagen C agent for treatment of liver and allergic dis-
gases. On the other hand, saies grew for Antebate, a topical
adrenocortical hormone, and Truvada, an anb-HIV drug, tead-
ing to an increase in Tori Pharmaceutical's overall sales. )

Consequently, sales of |T's pharmaceutical business increased
by ¥3.6 bilion from the previous year (up 7.9%) to ¥49.1 -
lion., as the decrease in royalty revenue from the Viracept drug
was more than offset by the milestone revenue related to the
progress made in the development of anti-dysiipideria agent
JTT-705, licensed (o Roche Group n October 2004, and an
increase in Torii Pharmaceutical’s sales. Operating loss
decreased to ¥9.6 billion from the previous year's ¥ 1.2 bilion,
despite an increase in R&D expenses. including a down pay-
ment made for Kery«'s hyperphosphatemia drug.

Strategy and Specific Measures

- To steadily advance the development- of campounds and
expand and enhance the R&D pipeline

*+ To explore for strategic opportunities for icensing agree-
ments

[Steady Advance of Drug Development and Expansion/Enhancement of
R&D Pipetine]

In the pharmaceutical business, |7 will maintain #s strategy of
further expanding and enhancing its R&[D pipeline by promot-
ing drug discovery research and advancing the development of
compounds currently in the pipeline.




|T aims to develop the pharmaceutical business into one of
the piflars of its diversified operations in the future.

To this end. we have been striving to cstablish a solid
husiness foundation by building world-class, unique R&D
capabvlities and increasing our market presence through

the development of innovative drugs.

While making use of our accumulated knowledge, we have
narrowed our R&D focus. allocating our resources mainly 1o
areas such as {1} glucose and lipid metabolism, (2} virus
research, (3) immune disorders and inflammation and {4) bone
metabolisrm.

[Quest for Strategic Opportunities for Licensing Agreements]

In the face of intensifying global R&D competition, # is becom-
ing increasingly important 10 speed up R&D activity and bring
new . products to market quickly. Therefore, iT is exploring
strategic opportunities for licensing agreements 1o acquire
rights 1o drugs developed by ather companies (in-licensing) or
give others rights 1o its own drugs (out-licensing) so that we
can rapidly increase the value of the business,

As for out-licensing, we concluded licensing agreements with
Roche Group with regard to anti-dyshpidemia agent JTT-705
and with Gilead Sciences of the United States with regard to
ant-HIV agent {TK-303 in fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2006, we
licensed & new pre-clinical wial stage compound to
GlaxoSmithKline and licensed a pre-clinical trial stage antibody
drug candidate to Medimmune, We have sped up the devel-
opment of our drugs by tapping external R&D resources
through these out-licensing deals.

Regarding in-licensing, meanwhile, we concluded a heensing
agreement 1n fiscal 2003 to acquire rights to commercialize
three anti-HIV drugs developed by Gilead Sciences in Japan.
These drugs are now sold by Toni Pharmaceutical. Mareover,
in fiscal 2004 the |T-Tori group agreed with Toray Industries,
Inc. 1o jomntly develop Toray's antipruritic agent. TRK-820, for

Noriaki Okubo
President, Pharmaceutical Business

treatrment of severe uremic pruritus in hemodialysis patients.
The three companies agreed on the jaint development and
sales of the same drug for treatment of severe uremic pruntus
in hepauc disease patienis in fiscat 2006. In fiscal 2007, the JT-
Torh group signed a heensing agreement with Kerya
Biopharmaceuiicals of the United States under which we have
acquired the exclusive rights 1o develop and commercalize
Kery«'s hyperphosphatemia drug in Japan.

Pursuit of Innovative Drugs

We are engaged in an unceasing quest to develop inngvatve and
globally competitive diugs, which we regard as the most ontical ris-
sion for our pharmaceutical business. The development of new
drugs 15 a tough challenge, which we are tackiing with 4 sense of
pride and high motivation We are endeavonng to make the kind of
achievements that we alone c¢an realize and make avalable drugs
that we alone can offer, so that we may deserve the respect and

appreciation of patients and medical staff around the world.

|T Annual Report 2008 23




Foods Business

Business Performance
FY 3/2008 Business Performance Summary
+ Net sales: ¥336.4 billion, up 17.4%
« EBITDA: ¥8.4 billion, down 30.5%
+ Operating income: ¥0.7 billion, down 90.1%

We have positioned the foods business as a pillar of our diversified
operations, devoting efforts to three areas-beverages, processed
foods and seasonings. We take seriously the food-poisoning cases
involving frozen foods products contaminated with pesticide that
came to hght in January 2008. Based on our renewed recognition of
the mportance of food safety. we have been striving to establish a
safety control system of the highest standard. We have also been
endeavoring ¢ consclidate our business foundation as an integrated
foods manufacturer. in the beverage sector, we have steadily expand-
ed our vending machine sales channels. mainty through Japan
Beverage Inc, a JT Group company, and actively launched new prod-
ucts developed for the purpose of achieving differentiation from
compeutors, focusing mainly on the flagship Roots brand. In the
processed foods sector, sales of frozen food products slumped after
February due to the impact of the pesticide contamination cases, We
will stive 1o regain the trust of our customers by steadily and
promptly implementing measures to significantly enhance our safety
control system. In addition, we will steadily proceed with the integra-
tion of the Katokichi Group, which we tumed into a subsidiary on
January 8, 2008. In the seasonings sector, we have been strehgthening
our business foundation by focusing on the development of natural
seasonings such as high-value yeast products. based on our in-house
technology, and expanding sales of such products. To sum up the
financial results of the foods business, net sales increased by ¥49.9 bil-
hion, or 17.1%, from the previous year to ¥3364 billion, with the con-

24

¥3364 shrop

Mot sa'es

¥84

£8ITOA

¥O7 bina

Operaung ncome

tribution of the Katokichi Group and cther factors offsetting o decline
in sales of processed food praducts. However, operating income
decreased by ¥6.0 bilion, or 90.1%, to ¥0.7 billon. due to faclors
such as an increase in raw materials costs and the cost of goadwil
amontization related ta the acquisition of the Katokichi Group.

Strategy and Specific Measures
Aiming 1o establish a global competitive advantage as an integrated
foods manufacturer, we will endeavor to:

+ establish a cornpettive advantage.

+ gain synergy effects as an integrated foods manufacturer.

Beverages Buaness In the beverages business, we will further devel-
op the core Roots brand in order o achicve sustainable growth,
Moreover, we will promote the development and market launch of
new products, fecusing on achieving differentiation from nval prod-
ucts and high guality using our onginal technclogies. We will also
steadily expand our vending machine sates channels, manty through
japan Beverage Inc. a JT Group company,
Processad Foods Buones 0o ve w0 3o e We plan o put
all of our operations related to processed foods - including lrozen
foods - and seasonings praducts, as well as |7 subsidaries such as {7
Foods Co. under the contral of Katokichi. Through realignment of
the foods business, Katokichi will aim to estabiish itself as a unique
processed foods manufacturer with a leading pesition in the frozen
foods market and wilh superior expertise in seasonings.

Direction of Future énhancement of Food Safety Control
We would fike to offer our sincere apologies not only to people
who suffered health problems after consuming certan frozen foods
products sold by the |T Group, but aka to our customers who
have cooperated with our nationwade preduct recall, 10 Dusness




Woe have positioned the foods business as a pillar of our diversified operations,
devoting efforts to three areas: beverages, processed foods and seasonings.

We will strive to establish a safety control system of the highest standard,
through improving our in-house inspection system and utilizing the knowledge and
skiils of outside experts, among other measures. and consolidate our foundation
as an integrated foods manufacturer. We will also proceed steadily with

the integration of the Katokichi Group and seek to expand the size of

cur foods business and enhance its profit-generating capability.

partners and consumers throughout Japan. Taking the incident very
seriously, we will mplement drastic measures 1o ensure the safety
of our foods and maintain custormers’ trust in this safety.

Erharrament of the Syster for Checking All Processes

from “arufacturing 1o DCvery

+ We will introduce stricter criteria for selecting partner manufactur-
Ing plants in and outside Japan and make sure o consign food pro-
duction only to plants that meet the new criteria. In addition, we
will make more active use of |T Group plants in cooperation with
Katokichi, whose operations we are in the process of integrating,

» We will subject all domestic and foreign manufactuning plants,
including partner plants, to spot audits as well as biannual penodic
audits, and promote the acquisiion of 15022000 certification, an
intematonal standard for food safety management.

« We will appoint officers in charge of quality control in China and
have them inspect manufacturing operations. In addition, we will
properly examine the manufactunng processes from the production
of raw matenals onward, inspecting the cultivation conditons for
agnicultural products and the management of agrochermicals, testing
the soil and water quality and checking for agrochemical residues,

* Regarding frozen food products, we will check for residues of
organic phosphorous agrochemicals, with imports frern China in
particular being double-checked. both in China and Japan.

* In Japan, we opened an in-house inspection center in Sashima-
gun, |baraki Prefecture, in late April. We will also establish an
inspection center in China in order to enable self-checks for
chemical substances and other items.

» We will gradually expand the scope of check items from organic
phosphorous agrochemicals to agrochermicals in gensral, antibi-
otics and heavy metals.

Sadao Furuya
Presigent, Food Business

Enhancement of Response to Customers’ Complaints

and Inquiries

» We will respond to inguiries from customers all year round and,
when contacted by people concerned about health problems related
to the consumption of |T food products. iake appropriate measures
such as inquinng about their health condivon or visiting them at ther
hormes, and cooperating dasely with our business partners, administra-
tive authonities and medhcal institutions to gather accurate information,

i any quality problems regarding |T producis are found, we will
conduct analysis and investigation from every passible angle and
with every conceivable possibility in mind and promptly take
appropriate measures, such as withdrawing the products in ques-
tion from the market.

On our website, we have started disclosing information concern-
ing the manufacturing plants for frozen food products for retal
sale and the production location of major raw matendals, We will
also start to indicate such information on product packaging as
500N as we are ready.

In order 10 enhance our safety control systems with expert
knowledge and from varous viewpoints, we have invited third-
party experts to serve as our advisers and provide assessment
and advice on a regular basis regarding the systems.

in the future, we will stive 1 provide delicious foods that people can
consume safely. Based on our renewed recognition of the ponciple that
safety is the top priority for food products, we will strengthen our R&D
and product development capabilitics, along with our saniiary control
and quality controt systems, i order Lo keep our product quality at an
approprate level. As part of these efforts. we will devole oursebes 1
ensunng the procurement of high-guality raw matenafs, enhanong the
traceability of our products, developing technologes essental for main-
taining product quality and strengthening our intemal control systems,
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D risenry of JT

|T is a joint stock corporation that was incorporated in April
[985 under the Commercial Code of Japan, pursuant to the
Japan Tobacco Inc. Law, or the |T Law.

Our history dates back to 1898, when the government
formed a monopoly bureau to operate the exclusive sale of
domestic leal tobacco. In the eariy !900s, the government
extended this monopaly te all tobacco products in Japan and
to the domestic sait business. In 1949, the bureau became the
Japan Tobacco and Salt Public Corperation, or JTS, which was
assigned the role of the country's sole producer and supplier of
Lobacco and sale purchaser and supplier of salt products.

Date Major events and incidents

The growth in demand for cigarettes in japan began to slow
in the mid-1970s as a result of several faciors, including deme-
graphic trends, health concerns, price increases and a peaking
of the rate of cigarelte consumption per smoker, During this
period, even though JTS had already commenced sales of
imported loreign-made tobacco products in Japan, there was
increasing pressure from abroad to open the [apanese tobac-
co market,

JTS also faced a number of constrainis due 10 1ts status as a
public corporation, For example, the corporalion’s operating
budget and capilal investment plans were subject to approval

April 1985 Japan Tobacco Inc. established,

(Japanese tobacco market opened to foreign tobacco manufacturers.)

The Busmess Developmem D|w5|on established to promote new busmesses

The Busmess Development D|vnsnon is later reorganized into operatlonal divisions engaged in the foods

and pharmaceuticals businesses, finishing in July 1990.

March 1986 Fukuoka and Tosu factories closed and Kita Kyushu factory built to modemize and rationalize tobacco
production.
Nine more tobacco factories closed by June 996 to further rationalize production. o
April 1987 import 1ariffs on imported cigarettes abolished. o
October 1988 “IT" communication name introduced.
July 1991 Head office temporanly relocated from Mlnato-ku Ho) Shlna_ga»;a %;u during construction of new head

September 1993

October 1994

November 1994

office building.

The Central Phanmaceutical Research Institute estabhshed to enhance in- house research capabulrtues

Government releases ﬂrst tranche of outstandmg ]T shares for initial public oﬂ'ermg (394,276 shares

offered at | 438000 yen apiece).

T stock hsted on the first sections 01’ stock exchanges in Tokyo. Osaka and Nagoya.

T stock ||stec| on stock exchanges in Kyoto Huroshlma. Fukuoka, Nugata and Sapporo

May 1995 Head office moved back to Mmato-ku from Shmagawa -ku following completlon of new head office bunldlng
J:ne 1996 Government releases second tranche of outstanding |T shares {272,390 shares offered at 8|5.0{.)&) yen
apiece).
April 1997 JT ends its salt monopoly business in line with abolition of the salt monopoly system.
—The Tobacco Mutual Aid Pension scheme integrated into the Employees’ Pension scheme.
Apnl 1998 JT signs an agreement with Unimat Corporation on a tie-up regarding soft drink business.
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by the Japanese Diet each fiscal year, a requirement that
made long-term management planning difficull, In addition,
ITS was required to purchase all domestically grown leaf
lobacco, which was generally produced in excessive quanti-
ties, at significantly higher prices than those cof foreign-grown
leal tobacco. Moreover, |TS was barred from entering other
business areas. It became obvious that if the domestic tobac-
£o market was to be opened, the corporation would need a
greater degree of management independence in order 1o
compete with foreign tobacco companies. At the same time,
in the context of the adminstrative reform initiative in Japar,

there was increased public interest i the privatization of

pubiic corporations. Accordingly. a 1982 government repon
recornmended that |TS be privatized, leading to the enact-
ment of the |T Law in 1984, and the establishment of |T as a
privatized company in April 1985 and our acquisition of the
pusiness and assets of | TS.

The chronology of the main events and incidents relating ta
our company since its privatization is as follows:

Date Major events and incidents

December 1998 jT acquires a majority stake in Torit Pharmaceutlcal Co Ltd. through a tender offer.

May !99§ Jr acqwres the non-US, tcbacco busmess of RIR Nab|sco Inc,

ju_%;_l ;)9:3_ - [T acquires the foods business of Asahu Kasei Corporation, induding Asahi Foods and seven_ U.ﬁaﬁer subsndlanes

Ocober 1999 Under a business tie-up between [T and Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Lid, the two companies’ R&D opera-
tions related to medical pharmaceuticals are concentrated at T, while their promotion operations are
combined at Torii Pharmaceutical.

E:‘1—arch 2003-- Sendai, Nagoya and Hashimoto factonies closed as a rationalization measure to ensur; long-term ;r::f_
itability for the domestic tobacce business.

October 2003 JT repurchases 45,800 own shares to mcrease its management options.

March 2004 o _}-ﬂrto-s;u}\a EU-ChL; Matsuyama and Naha factories closed as a muonallzat];n me@r;to- f.rnsure“ iong-term
profitability for the domestic tobacco busmess

June 2004 Government releases third tranche of omstandmg jT shares (289, 334 shares offered at 843,000 yen
aniece), reducing its stake in JT to the minimum level allowed under faw.

Navember 2004 [T repurchases 38,184 own shares to incréase its management optiohs.

~ March 2005

March 2005 Ueda. Hako—&;t_e— T:;kasz;k:_i';a:neiism;_':l:(;kushlma L)sul; ‘K-agoshma and Mlyakonolo factones closed as a
rationalization measure to ensure long-term profitability for the domestic tobacco business.

A—pril 2005 |T terminates a licensing contract under which it had exclusive rights to produce and se!l Marboro brand
products in Japan and use the Mariboro trademark in the country.

April 2006 |T implements a five-for-one stock split in order to expand the investor base, effective Aprl 1, 2006.

;\;nri?)07 B J¥ acquires all outstanding shares of Gallaher Group Plc.

January 2008 A J.fééqunres a r—m;;;Esa(e in Katoklchl Co.. Lid. through a tender oﬂ'er S

Juty 2008 |T concentrates its processed foods operations, induding frozen foods oper‘ations and seasonings operations,

at Katokichi.
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Business Environment for JT

The §T Group has long been committed to many of the
FCTC's provisions, including the prevention of youth smaking
and the elimination of illicit trade, and engaged in active
efforts to address those issues on a voluntary basis.
Meanwhile, |T believes that tobacco should be regulated by
individual countries in light of their own circumstances, such

as the stace of legislation and cultural and social conditions.

Major Elements of Regulation
oo Global Tobacco Busingss

WHOQO: Framework Convention on Tobacco Control

The May 1999 World Healih Assembly of the WHO adopted a
resolution calling 10 start work toward the adoption of the
Framawork Convention on Tobacco Control (FCTC). Following
six rounds of interpovernmental negotiations, the FCTC was
adopted in May 2003 and came mnto force on Febnuary 27,
2005, 90 days afier its ratification by 40 signatory nations. As of
May 31, 2008, a total of 156 countries (including the EU) were
party to the FCTC. Japan signed the FCTC on March 9, 2004
and accepled it on June 8, 2004. The FCTC contains a number

. of provisions, some of which are legally binding for the signatory

nations, white others allow for discretion by each nation with
regard 1o interpretaticn and implementation.
Key provigions of the FCTC include:

- Price and tax measures {implementation of tax policies and
price policies and impeosition of restrictions on duty-free
sales, etc. as appropriate, without prejudice to the sovereign
right of signatory nations to determine and establish their
tax policies)

— Packaging and labeling (adoption of effective measures to
ensure (1) that tobacce product packaging and labeling do
not promote tobacco products by using terms that could
create an erroneous impression, for example, that a particu-
lar tobacco product is less harmful than others; and (2) that
health warmnings on tobacco packaging cover not less than
30% of the principal display area)

- Adveriising (introduction of a comprehensive ban on tobac-
co advertising, sales promotion and sponsorship, or imposi-
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tion of appropriate restrictions if a country is not in a posi-
tion to implement a comprehensive ban because of its con-
stitution or constitutional principles)

— Sales to minors (adoption and implementation of effective
measures to ban sales of tobacco products to minors)

— Support for afternative activities (promaetion of alternative
activities for tobacco workers, growers and sellers as appro-
priaie)

The first session of the Conference of the Parties to the WHO
Framework Convention on Tobacco Control was held in
February 2006 lollowing the convention's entry into force, At this
conference, discussions were held on matters such as the proce-
dural rules for subsequent conierences, reports 10 be presented
at the next conference and the development of draft guidelines
and draft protacols. In june 2007, the second session of the con-
vention was held, This time, giidelnes for the implementation of
Acticle 8 (protection from exposure 1o lobacco smoke} were
adopted. In addition, resolutions were adopted with regard to
establishing an intergovernmental negotiating body for the pur-
pose of developing a protocol on Arucle |5 (llict trade in tobac-
co products) and with regard to the timetable for developing
guidelines concerning other major provisions.

The JT Group has long been commitied to many of the
FCTC's provisions, including the prevention of youth smoking
and the elimination of ilicht tade, and engaged in acuve efforts
to address Lhose issues on a volunlary basis. Meanwhile, JT
believes that tobacco should be regulated by individual countnes
in light of their own circumstances, such as the staie of legislation
and cuttural and social conditions. The [T Group 1s ready 1o have
dialogue with the governments of individual signatory nations of




the FCTC as necessary, in order to ensure that they take appro-
priate and reascnable measures suited Lo their own circum-
stances when they implement the provisions of the corivention.

International Tobacco Product Marketing Standards

In September 2001, JT and several other tobacco companies
reached an agreement on International Tobacco Product
Marketing Standards. These standards set principles for respon-
sible tobacco product marketing worldwide. They represent a
munimom set of standards for ensuring that brand marketing is
never aimed at youth, but exclusively ai adults who choose to
simoke based on their recognition of the health nsks associated
with smoking. Marketing activiues in Japan are duly subject to
these standards.

The key provisions of the intermational standards include:

— Unified definitions of key words such as “advertisernent/adver-

"o

tising,” “premotional event” and “sponsorship.”
— Tough guidelines applicable to advertising of tebacco products:
*» Prnt advertising is 10 be imited to publications with at
least 75% aduli readership. .
» Biflboard advertising must not exceed 35 sguare meters
in size,
« Ads on TV, radio and the Inlemel are prohibited unless
and until 100% adult verification is achieved,
- Ads cannot run in cinemas unless there s a reasonable
basis to believe that at least 75% of the audience is adult.
+ Ads cannot feature celebrities, show individuals that
appear younger than 25, or suggest that smoking
enhances athletic, professional. personal or sexual success.
— Indication of health warnings in ads and other media;

+» Health warnings must appear in aimosi all advertising, ~

promotional and merchandising matenals. except in rare
instances such as point-of-sale materials smaller than 250
sguare centimeters,

— Restrictions on sponsorship:

« For events or activities that bear a tobacco product brand
name, all participants who compete or otherwise take an
active part must be adults.

« Frorm December |, 2006, attendance at an evenl or activ-
ity sponsored for the purpese of tabacco product brand
promotion must be comprised of at least 75% adults, and
these events can anly gencrate incidental coverage in
elecironic media.

— Alt promotional activities are to be limited to verified adult
smokers.

Prevention of Youth Smoking

The prevention of youth smoking is an 1ssue to be addressed by

sociely at large. From the viewpont of fulfiling its corporate social

responsidility, the JT Group has been conducting business opera-

tions in an appropriate manner and working with govermments

and other relevant organizations 1o lake various steps toward

dealing with Lhis issue in the countries in which it operaies, in

accordance with voluniary standards and the tnternational

Markeling Standards as well as relevant local laws and regulations.
For detaited information on |T's efforts to prevent youth

smoking, please refer Lo the following websites,

http:/ fwwaw jti.cojp/sstyle/think/underage/index.himi

(for eflorts in Japan)

http/haa jli.comler/pasitionsfcr_pasitions_youth_smoking

{for efforts overseas)

Agreement with EU and EU Member States to

Combat Cigarette Smuggling and Counterfeiting

On December 14, 2007, {T International SA. and |T Internauonal
Holding BV., both of which are consofidated subsidiaries of IT,
signed an agreement with the European Commission, the execu-
tive branch of the European Union (EU). and twenty-six member
states of the EU on cooperation in combating cigaretie smuggling
and counterfeiling. We believe that this agreemant. which buiids
upon initiatives implemented by the |T Group over the past
years, will help to jeintly estabhsh an efficient and constructive
framework for combating cigarette smuggling and counterferting
with the EUJ and EU member states, and protect the brand value
of our products against the threat of such illegal activities,

The agreement calls for the |T Group to pay US$50 million in
each of the five years from signing and US$15 million in each of
the following 10 years to support ant-smuggling and ant-coun-
terfeiting initiatives for the European temitory.

Major Elemaents of Regulation of Tobacco Busines.

in Japan

The Japan Tobacco, Inc. Law

T was established under the Japan Tobacco. Inc. Law {"the IT
Law'} for the purpose of developing businesses related to the
manufacture, sale, and impaitation of tobacco products. The [T
Law prowdes that the Japanese govemment must continue Lo
hold at least one-hali of all of the shares that the government
acquired by veluntary conveyance upon JT's estabhshment, as
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adjusted for any subsequent stock split or consolidation of shares

(the number of such shares following the share split carvied out

on Aprit |, 2006 is 5 million shares), and that even if JT issues
new shares in the future, the government must continue to hold
mere than one-third of all of the issued shares. The |T Law also
states that the flotation of new shares, options to subscribe for
new shares, or in the case of a share-for-share exchange, issuance
of new shares, issuance of options for new shares, or issizance of
bonds with opuions or warrants to subscribe for new shares,
requires Lthe approval of the Minister of Finance.

The |T Law grants |T the freedom to enter other non-tobacce-
related business areas in line with ils overall objectives as a corpo-
rauon, dependent upon ministerial permission, in addition to the
manufacture, distnbution, and mportation of tobacco products and
tobacco-related businesses. [T must also obtain avthorization from
the Minisier of Finance for cenain matters, including the appeoint-
ment or dismissal of directors, executive officers, and auditors,
amendments to JT's Artides of Incorporation, appropriations of
capital surplus (except disposal of losses), and any merger, corpo-
rate split, or dissolution of [T. Within three months after the close
of each business year, JT must ssue its balance sheets, statements
of income or loss, and business report to the Minister of Finance.

The Tobacco Business Law
The Tobacco Business Law was enacted n August 1984 for the
purpose of achieving sound growth for Japan’s tobacco indusiry,
securing stable government revenues, and contributing to the
healthy expansion of the |apanese economy, The Tobacco
Business Law govemns the cullivation and purchase of leaf tobac-
co and the manufacture and distribution of tobacco products. JT
is obliged 10 negotiate contracts with domestic leaf tobacce
growers 1o determine the total area used for tobacco cutuvation
and tobacco leafl prices based on type and quality. IT is also
required 1o purchase the enlire usable domestic tobacco crop.
Contracts stipulate the area to be cultivated and the prices of
leai 1obacco for the subsequent year, and in this regard |T
respects the opinion of the Leal Tobacco Deliberative Council *
As the scle manufacturer of tobacco products in japan as estab-
lished by law, T must obtain the approval of the Minister of Finance
on the maximum wholesale price of each dlass of tobacco released
10 the market, Tobacco product importers ard wholesalers must
registor with the Minister of Finance, and retailers of tobacco prod-
uets are required to obtain approval from the Minister of Finance. In
adkition, bst prices for |T's tobacco products and imporied tobacco
products must be approved by the Minister of Finance, although in
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general, manufacturers’ list prices are approved unless the Minister
of Finance deems them unfair 1o consumers, Tobacco retalers arc
only permitted to sell tobacco products at list prices that have been
approved by the Minister of Finance.

* Tre Leal Tobacce Detberaive Councl s 2 counal which coniers o imponant
17 atters concerning he cuination and purchase of domestically gown feaf1obacco
N response to nqures by [T ieprawentatives Tre councl conwsts of ne more than
11 mernbers. appownec by [T with the epproval of the Minsier of Fivan w from
among reprasantitves of dormesug eaf 1ebacco growers and Aademed AppoNtees

Health Warnings, etc.

In Japan, the packages of tobacce products are required under
Article 39 of the Tobacco Business Law to indicale “statements
that urge caution aver the relationship between the consumpuion
of tabacco preducts and healih” (health wamings) as specified
Articie 36 of the Ordinance for Enforcement of the Tobacce
Business Law. Details conceming the heatth warnings are speafied
by the Ordinance for Enforcement of the Tobacco Business Law.
The ordinance requires the indication of waming labelks regarding
risks related to eight items. Four of the eight are diseases associated
with direct, smoking {lung cancer, heart attack, stroke and emphyse-
ma), while the other four are smoking by pregnant women, passive
smoking, addiction to smoking and youth smoking, Each tobacco
product package must indicate, on its main surface, a warmng
regarding at least one of the four items assacated with direct
smoking and at feast one of the other four items. The ardinance:
stiputates { 1) that these wamings must be rotated throughout the
year in ways 1o ensure that they reccive equal exposure on each
product itern and each type of package and (2) that the display
arza must occupy 30% or more of the main surface of the package.
In addition, the ordinance stipulates that when terms like "mild”
and "fight” are used on the package, they must be accompanied by
a warming that prevents consumers fromn misunderstanding the
relationship between the consumption of tebacce and health. JT
ensures appropriate indications of the required health wamings
with regard to all products intended for shipment in the Japanese
market, as prescribed by the relevant taws and regulauons
Meanwhile, [T plans to continue using such terms as "mild” and
"ight”" in the Japanese markel in ways that mantain compliance
with the provisions of the laws and regulations.

Guideline on Tobacco Advertising

in line with the pumose of a guideline for advertising of tobacco
products promulgated by the japanese Minister of Finance under
Article 40 of the Tebacco Busingss Law, the Tobacco Instaute of
Japan (TIO)¥* has established voluntary standards. All TIO] men-



ber companies, including |T. comply with these standards. The
guideline stipulates that outdoor advertising of 1obacco products
{posters, Ditboards, ele) must not be displayed except where
1obacco products are sold and in designated smoking areas. it
also stipulates that special care must be taken to ensure the use
of appropriate advertising methads in daily newspapers (exclud-
ing sports tabloids, evening newspapers and the like) and speci-
fies matters conceming the indication and content of the health
warnings that accompany tobacco advertising. In accordance
with the TIOJ's voluntary standards based on the suideline, the
TIO] member companies, including JT, have been implementing
necessary measures, such as banning outdoor billboard advertis-
ing and brand-specific advertising on public transpartation. limit-
ing the volume of advertising in newspapers, and limiting the
scope of news sections in which ads may appear,

* Tobacco insutute of Japan: The TIO) is a public nterest corporauon estaiished
for the purpose of contnbuting to the promotion of a far and objectve soual
understandmng of tobacco through collecung and disseminaung nformation
regarding tobacco and supperting the sound development of Japan's wobacco
‘ndusiry and e national cconemy s a whole, by engaging n vanous activiyes
N & rranner suned to the socal environment for tobdatco consumplion.

The TIO] was establshed in 1987 as a voluntary organization based on the
Assacation of Tebacco Manufacturers, which was established in 1985, and
reorganzed a: an ncorporaied body w1990,

Prevention of Youth Smoking

Age venfying cigarette vending machines

In November 2001, the Tobacco Institute of Japan (TICO)). the Japan
Tobacconist Federation and the Japan Vending Machine
Manufacturers Association announced a plan to co-develop an age
verifying cigarette vending machine, aiming to achieve nationwide
ntroduction in 2008, The adult identification function is supposed to
prevent minars from purchasing Cigarettes from vending machines,
as 1 only allows cigaretics 10 be dispensed when the customer is
idenufied as an adull as a result of ¥C card scanning, Based on the
results of the first-stage tial use program in Yokaichiba City. Chiba
Prefecture, and the second trial use program in Tanegashima island,
Kagoshima Prefecture, machines equipped with the adult identifica-
tien function were introduced in Kagoshima and Miyazaki
Prefectures on a pilot basis on March |, 2008. Such machines are
scheduled to be introduced in Hokkaido Prefecture and 20 prefec-
tures in the Tohaku, Kyushu and Shikoku regions in May, in 15 pre-
fectures in the Kansai, Chubu and Hokuriko regions in June, and in
eight prefectures in the Kante region and Okinawa Prefecture in
July, thus achieving a nationwide introduction. We are actively
invohsed in efforts to ensure the smooth introduction and operation
of such machines, as we respect the purpose of the cooperative ini-
tialive to prevent youth smoking.

Tobacco-Related Litigation

Litigation Related to Health Risks Associated with Smoking
IT and its subsidianes are defendants in lawsuis filed by plan-
tiffs seeking damages for harm allegedly caused by smoking, the
marketing of tobacco products, or exposure to smoke. To
date, JT and its subsidiaries have never lost a case or paid any
money to settle a case aut of court.

In Japan, |T is currently involved in the two lawsuits described
below related to smoking and health.

In one case, three smokers who alleged that they developed dis-
gases as a result of smoking filed a lawsurt on January 19, 2005 with
the Yolohama District Court against [T, the Govermnment of japar.
et al, asking for a total of ¥30 milion n compensation far damages
and a strengthening of the wording of heafth wamings ndicated on
tobacco products, etc. The first heanng in this case took place on
April 20, 2005, and the case is still pending in the distnct cowt.

In the other case, a taxi driver who alleged that he had
developed laryngesal cancer and has suffered from aggravation
of arteriosclerasis as a result of passive smoking in his car filed
a lawsuit with the Tokyo Distact Court on February 25, 2008,
asking for ¥10 million in compensation for damages ard the
suspension of the production and sale of tobacco products.
The first hearing in this case took place on May 12, 2008, and
the case is still pending in the district court

Amang the lawsuits filed overseas in relation to smoking and
health in which T subsidiaries are defendants are damage suils
filed by individuals or classes of individuals and medical expense
recovery suits filed by governments and insurers. As of the end
of May 2008. there were a total of 18 such lawsuits pending in
which |T subsidiaries are named as defendants or for which |T or
subsidiary may owe certain indemnity obligatons pursuant to the
relevant contracts, incluging the agreement for |T's acquisiion of
RJR Nabisco Inc's overseas (non-U.S) tobacco operations.

These lawsuits include health care cost recovery actions brought
by the provinces of British Columbia and Mew Brunswick against
major cigarette companies - including RfReynolds Tobacco Co.
{"RIR") and the Canadian subsdiary of [T, [THMacdonald Corp. ("fTH
Macdonald”) - and two dass actions in Quebec brought aganst
major Canadian cigarette companies, including | Tl-Macdonald.

The British Columbia action has been brought under a provin-
cial statute entitled the "Tobacco Damages and Health Care
Costs Recovery Act”, which was enacted excluswvely for the pur-
pose of this action. Several defendants challenged the staiuie’s
constitutionality. This challenge was ultimately rejecled by the

JT Annual Report 2008 13




Supreme Court of Canada in Sepiember 2005. In March 2008,
the province of New Brunswick filed a similar action under its
own Tobacco Damages and Heafth Care Cosls Recovary Acl.
For the time being, these aclions rermain in pre-lnal proceedings
with no deciston made yet as to JTi-Macdonald's or RIR's liabilizy.

In Quebec, a first-instance court authorized the two class
actons to proceed in February 2005, The claims were filed in
September 2005, and the actions remain in pre-trial proceed-
ings with no decision made yet as to JT-Macdonald's ability.

IT believes that it is possible that other similar smoking and
health-related lawsuits wilt be filed in the future,

IT is unable to predict the outcome of currently pending or
future lawsuits. However, if one or more actions resutt in a deci-
sion unfavorabie to |T or its subsidianes, its business could be
materially affected by, for example, the payment of monetary
compensauon. Moreover, regardless of the results of individual
lawsuits, critical media coverage of such lawsuits may reduce sodial
tolerance’ of smoking, increase interest in the relationship between
smoking and heatth, sirengthen public regulations concermning
smoking and prompt the filing of a number of similar lawsuits
against JT or its subsidianies, forcing JT or its subsidiaries to bear liti-
gation costs and materially affecting |T's business performance.

Other Tobacco-Related Litigation

Various kinds of smuggling and counterfeiting of tabacco producs
have posedt a major challenge to the tobacco industry as a whale. JT
and its subsidianes are involved in certain proceedings overseas
relating to the alleged smuggling of tobacco products, In addition,
apant from the alleged smugaling of wobacco products, | T subsidianes
are also involved in certain proceedings, induding those relating to
tax assessment and possible violation of competition law.

In January 2002, the European Commission (the "EC") - the
executive branch of the European Union {the "EU") - and 10 EU
memper states fled a lawsuit in the United States against |T and s
subsidiaries, alleging that JT and its subsidiaries had damaged eco-
normic interests by causing a loss of tax revenue and in other ways.
While §T or s subsichanes were never served with process, this
lawsuit was withdrawn after |T International S.A. and |7
International Holding BY. agreed with the EC and member slates
of the EU to cooperate in combating cgarette smuggling and coun-
terfeiting and, a1 the same time, to refiain from bringing civil suits
against each other regarding the matters preceding this agreement.

In August 2003, the Canadian federal government filed a civil
action in the Canadian province of Ontario against RJR and its
subsidiaries, as well as JT and its subsidiaries, including JTI-
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Macdenald, which was acquired by |T when it took over the for-
mer nan-L.5. tobacco operations of RIR Nabisco Inc. in 1999, The
suit maindy claims as damages laxes allegedly lost by the Canadian
Government and the province of Ontario and Quebec because
of the smuggling of tobacco products into Canada in the 1990s.

in August 2004, JTI-Macdonald recewed a Notice of
Assessment from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue requinng an
immediate payment of approximately 1.36 bilon Canadian doltars
(approximately ¥114.6 billion at the exchange rate effectve at the
time), claiming that JTl-Macdonald had allegedly contrbuted to
tobacco smuggling from 1990 to 1998. This amount comrespond-
ed ta the alleged loss of tobacco tares plus penalues and wierest

|TI-Macdonaid's failure 1o make the payment could have
prompted the Quebec Minisy of Revenue to confiscate the
company’s business assets, making it difficult for the company
to continue its normal business operations. Therefare, in order
1o continue its operauons, Tt Macdonald filed an application
with the Ontario Supertor Court of justice for protection
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
(“CCAA")T, and the applicaton was granted. |TI-Macdonald
has since been continuing its business under CCAA protection,
which is due to remain in effect at least through July 2, 2009,

The filing far CCAA protection is in no way an admission
that |JTI-Macdonald contributed to smuggling as alleged by the
Quebec Ministry of Revenue. |TI-Macdonald intends to chal-
lenge the tax notice issued by the Quebec Mimistry of Revenue
through all approprate means,

A1l the invitation of the court presiding over the CCAA pro-
ceedings, six other provinces have filed claims simular to
Quebec's, seeking taxes, interest, and penalties. Ne procedure
has yet been established for adjudicating these clams.

Meanwhile, | T befieves that if JTI-Macdonald incurs financial dam-
age or bears costs associated with these cases, it will be entitled to
seck indemnification from RJR Nabisce Inc. or its successors, based
on the contract entered into amang |7, RIR Nabisco Inc. and RIR al
the time of jT's acquisition of [TI-Macdonald in 1999

* Companies’ Creditors Arrangerrant Act {CCAS) Companes done bus ness
'~ Canada are eligibe 10 suok protecton unas e CUAA T thoy eronarier
financil stuaton that credtes notteable difficu ey~ e = Dus sy L 1l
trons. The CCAA  mtended 1o enasle these Compares 1o cortnug the -
operations whily regtructunng, Many Canadian companies rave undergons
restructunng processas under the CCAA Unlike barkruptey pro-esdngs,
CCAA proceedings are not undertaven for iquidauon, The furgarnental char
actensucs of the CCAA are a5 Toows:

» The company continues 10 Manzge ana contral e business and properly

» The CCAA 15 a very flexible law that can be taloreg to ‘it the croum-
stances of each case,

* The company may seeb. 10 rastruciure s businesses or deal with contn
gent ang other clams under court protection win e asssiange of o
cour-appoirited Momtor;




+ All awsuis aganst the cormpamas and other procedures are sizyed, and com-
paues are able 15 continue their businesses and cany out ther restructunng

« After the claims agamst the company are determined, the corrpany rmay
put a Plan of Arrangernent before some or all of ns credrors,

« If ered.iors have agreed 1o the aforemertioned plan and the court
approves it d wil be binging on the company and all aflected creditors.

In May 2007, aftor a prelminary hearing on various charges aris-
ing from the alleged smuggling of tobacce products inta Canada
from 1971 to 1996, a preliminary inquiry judge in an Ontario court
cormmitted JTI-Macdonald and one former employee 1o stand tnal.
The judge at the same time dismissed the charges against another
six former and current employees nvolved in the prefiminary hear-
ing. This latter ruling was reversed in February 2008 by the judge
hearing the review application and returned to the preliminary
InguIry Judge for reconsideration. A hearing on reconsideration was
held in May 2008, and at the time of this wriling Judgment is
reserved. These ulings determined neither the guilt nor innocence
of the defendanits, which is to be determined at trial.

n July 2004, ZAC |TI Marketing & Sales ("M&S Comp.™), a
Russian subsidiary of |T thal oversces distribution-related busingss
in the Russian market, received an assessment from the Moscow
tax authorities in which it was ordered to pay approximately 2.4
billion rubles {approximately ¥8.8 bifion at the exchange rate eflec-
tive at the time) as VAT, etc. for the period of January to
December 2000. The taxed amount incudes unpaid taxes (VAT,
etc), interest and additional taves. Believing that the assessment by
the Moscow tax authorities is based upon a misinterpretalion of
seneral business practices, M&S Corp. filed a lawsuit seeking to
invalidate the assessment. Although lower courts dismissed M&S
Corp.'s argument, the Russian Federation Higher Arbitration Court
reversed the lower courts’ judgments and remanded the case 10
the court of first instance in Apnl 2006, In October 2007, the court
of first instance rendered judgment upholding M&S Comp.'s argu-
ment and invalidated the tax assessment, and both the Court of
Appeals and the Court of Cassation dismissed the appeal by the
tax authorities and upheld M&S Corp's argument in February and
May 2008, respectively. The tax authorities may file a petition for
appeal to the Russian Federation Higher Arbiravon Court.

In Aprit 2008, Gallaher Limited ('Gallaher™). JT's subsidiary in
the United Kingdom, received a statement of objections from
the Office of Fair Trading (OFT), the UK. competition authori-
iy. This statement of objections addresses the possibility of anti-
compettive behavior with respect to retail prices for tobacco
products in the UK. market prior to JT's acquisition of Gallaher,
In August 2003, the OFT notified Galiaher of an inquiry into
verucal agreemenis between manufaciurers and retalers in the
UK. cizareite, 1obaceo and tobacco-related markets. Since then,

Gallaher has been fully cooperating with the GFT regarding the
inquiry. The IT Group is reviewing the statement of objectiors,
and will be responding o the OFT as required.

The JT Group believes that it has valid defenses and claims in
the pending cases mentioned above. However, the possibility
cannat be ruled out that JT's performance. ¢asn flows or finan-
cial condition could be materially affected by the ulumate out-
come of certain pending litigation matters, amang other
factors, There also remains a possibility that other similar law-
suits could be filed in the future.

Major Risls of Busin: ssess

The major risks to which the [T Group's businesses are
exposed and factors that may materally affect investors' judg-
ment, are described below. This cection contains forward-icok-
ing stalements based on judgments made as of the end of the
fiscal vear ended in March 2008. future potential risks include,
but are not limited to. the risks listed below.

Risks Relating to the |T Group’s Businesses,

Earnings Structure and Management Policies

» Any negatlive impact on our domestic and international
tobacco businesses, both of which are major contnbutors to
the JT Group's sales and operating income, may agversely
affect the group's overali business performance.

Although the |T Group plans te invest in our pharmaceutical
and food businesses, as it expects them te contribute to its
business performance in the future, such investment may not
generate the anticipated benefits,

.

The JT Group may acquire, invest in, form aliiances or build
cooperative business frameworks with other companics, as 1
expects such measures to contribute 1o ws juture business
performance. However, its future business performance may
be negatively affected if results fzll short of its expectations.

On The JT Group's consclidated balance sheet, there 15 a
large amount of goodwill related to the past acquisitions, “We

consider the goodwill Lo appropriately reflect profits which
could be eamed fram the business values and synergy effects
of those acquisttions. However, if those acquisiiens fail 1o
generate the antcpated benefits due to factors such as
changes in the business environment or the compettive siua-
ton, we may be obliged to post an impairment loss. which
may adversely affect the group's overall business performance.
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The |T Group's overseas operations may be negatively affected
by exchange rate flucwations, changes in laws and regulations,
political unrest, unceriainly over econamic developments, local
laber-management relations, tax and tariff revisions, differences
in business practices, etc.

JT's consolidated financial statements may be affected by fluc-
tuations in the exchange rates of the foreign currencies used
by overseas subsidiaries for calculating their financial state-
ments relative io the Japanese yen, There is also a nsk that, if
an overseas affiliate whose shares |7 acquired by making pay-
ment in a foreign currency is liquidated or sold or i the value
of such a subsidiary s significantly reduced, the gainsfiosses on
investment in the affilate recorded in JT's consolidated financial
statements may be affected by fluctuations in the exchange
rale between the foreign currency and the Japanese yen.
Although |T partialy hedges its exposure: to foreign exchange risks
related to transactions conducied in foreign currencies, the possi-
bility cannot be ruled out that the [T Group's business perform-
ance will be negatively affected by exchange rate fluctuations.

Risks Relating to the |T Group's Domestic and

International Tabacco Businesses

-

The |T Group's business performance may be negatively
affected by a decline in demand, as it expects overall cigaretie
demand in Japan to continug 16 decline, while demand over-
seas could also decrease depending on the economic condi-
tions and other circumstances of the regions concermed,
although the trends in demand will vary from region 1o region.
Market shares i the domestic and overseas tobacco markets
may fucluate 1n the short term due w0 lemparary faclors.
such as the launch of new products by T and other tobacco
manufacturers, and special sales promotion actwities. Local
market shares may also be affected by a number of other fac-
tors, including competition, pricing strategies, changes in con-
sumer preferences, brand recognition and regional ecoromic
conditions. Such factors may lead 10 a decrease in the |T
Group's market share, In addition, there is a risk that the
measures adopied by the JT Group to counter the decrease
in market share may entait additional costs, reducing its profits.
Fluctuations in the prices of foreign leaf tobacco may have a
direct impact on the JT Group's operating income,

The tobacco tax rate may be raised in Japan or overseas.
Tobaceo dermand may decrease due to the introduction of
tighter tobacco regulations. There is also a risk that efforts to
comply with new regulations may entail additional costs,
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»

If & country enacts legislation 16 ban the use of such terms as
"mild” and “light" in product names, the |T Group may have
to invest a large amount of time and funds into efforts to
develop a new brand comparable to Mild Seven in that
country. and the new brand thus developed may fail 1o
achieve the same level of brand value and appeal,

The |T Group has been sued in Japan and overseas for
allegedly causing smoking-related health problems, and it may
pe held liable for such heafth problems in these lawsurts. There
is also a risk that, regardless of the cutcome of the lawsurs,
negative publicity from the litigation and other facters may
make smoking less ecceptable 1o the public, fead 1o the ntro-
duction of tighter restnctions on smeking and prompt many
similar jawsuits against the JT Group. thereby forang it to
become entangled in egal procedures and bear litigation costs
In addition to cases relating to smoking and health ssues, the
T Group is a defendant in lawsuils filed by several Canadian
governmental entities alleging that the group contnbuted to
tobacco smugghng and sccking compensation for damages.
Meanwhile, the |T Group has challenged what il regards as
unreasonable notices of tax assessment that [T subsidianes
received from the Quebec Ministy of Revenue and from the
Russian tax authorities. These claims may have a negative
impact on the |T Group's business performance or on the
manufacture, sale, impertation/exportation of tobacco prod-
ucts if an unfavorable ruling s issued in the respective cases.

Risks Relating to Non-Tobacco Businesses

Risks Relating to Pharmaceutical Business

-

The |T Group may fail to develop and launch commerzially
vakable pharmaceutical products. To this date, |T has never
brought a pharmaceutical product lo market that it has
developed on its own.

The iT Group may have 10 invest an enormous amount of
time and funds in R&D before it successfully develops phar-
maceutical products.

The |T Group may be forced to abandon the dlimcal devel
opment of a pharmaceutical product that involves another
company as a co-developer or a licensee on the basis of its
or its partner company’s judgment or due to some intemal
or external factors.

Even i the |T Group succeeds in developing and launching a
commercialty valuable pharmaceutical product. the R&AD cost
may exceed the revenue generated from it

The |T Group may become dependent on a certain pharma-



ceutical product.
* The )T Group may fail o achieve efficient mass-production
of pharmaceutical products,
Even if a pharmaceutical product developed by the T Group

.

proves 1o be commercially successful. the success may be
offset by competition with rival products developed by clher
companies 10 fapan or overseas, a government-mandated
price reduction and other factors.

The |T Group may become dependent on the license af
pharmaceutical products developed by other companies and
on revenues from such products.

The |T Group may become dependeni on a certain outside
source for the supply of critical raw matenals.

if any problem arises regarding the quality of a pharmaceutical
product of the JT Group or regarding information provided
by the group about such product, the group may become the
target of lawsuis seeking product liability or making other
claims, or may be forced to suspend sales of such product.

[T's business performance may be affected by lawsuits con-
cerming patents and other intellectuat property rights.

-

Regulation may be applied broadly, covering a full range of
activives from the R&D stage to the posi-daunch stage of a
new drug,

* The |T Group may become dependent on a certain business
partner in the R&D or sales of a pharmaceutical product.

In relation to the |T Group's use and management of

.

radioactive or other hazardous substances, sccial or legal
problem may arise, such as damage 1o the environment
caused by such substances.

Risks Relating to Food Business

+ Food products developed by the [T Group may fail to meet
consumer preferences and their product lives may prove 10
be short.

« The |T Group's profiloss may fluctuate due to fluctuations
in the prices of raw rmaterials for food producs (including
those due 1o changes in the exchange rate).

+ The sales of |T's food producis may be affected by weather
condrtions.

+ The regulation of the procurement. manufacture and sale of
food products in Japan or overseas may be strengthened,
including, for example, the possibility that additional costs may
anse due to compliance with such regulation, -

* The |T Group may be unable to compete with major com-
panies with larger distribution networks, stronger develop-

ment capabilities and more experience.

+ The |T Group may be unable to engage in efficient marketing
activities,

+ The |T Group may be unable to produce. or outsource the
production of, food products in an efficient, stable and efiec-
tive manner,

+ The T Group may cutsource the production of all beverage
products 10 other domestic manufacturers, thus becorming
dependant on outside sources,

+ if any problem arises regarding the quality of the |T Group's
foods products, the group rmay become Lhe target of fawsuits
seeking product habiity and making other claims, or the rep-
ulation of the group and its products may be undermned,

Other Factors which May Materially Affect Investment Decisions
* The Japan Tebacco Inc. Law (the "|T Law™) cbligates the gov-
ernment to hold at feast one half of all |T shares i acquired
upon |T's establishment, as adjusted for any subsequent stock
spht or consolidation of shares, and Lhe govermiment must
continue 1o hold more than one third of ail outstanding |7
shares. As of the end of the fiscal year ended n March 2008,
the govemment held 50.02% of all outstanding |T shares.

The Minister of Finance has the authority to supervise [T

under the IT Law and Tobacco Business Law.

Under the |T Law, the scope of [T's businesses ncludes the
“rnanufacture, distribution and importation of tobacce prod-
ucts and ancillary businesses, as welt as businesses required
for attaining the objective of JT" while “businesses required
far attaining the objective of |T" are subject to the Minister
of Finance’s approval. Accordingly. the Minister of Finance’s
approval is required in order for |T 1o engage in new busi-
nesses outside the scope of currently-approved businesses.

-

The Tobacco Business Law requires us to annually enter into
purchase contracts with tobacco growers regarding the aggre-
gate cultivation area for specific varieties of leafl tobacco and
the prices for leafl iobacco by variety and grade. |T must pur-
chase all leal tobacco produced pursuant to such contracts,
except for any not suited for the manufacture of tobacco
products. When |T decdes the aggregate culuvation area and
the prices of ieaf tobacco for its contracts with tobacco grow-
ers, it 15 required Lo respect the opinian of the Leaf Tobacco
Deliberative Council (hatabake shing) kai), which consists of
members appainted by JT with the approval of the Ministry of
Finance from among the representatives of domesuc leaf
tobacco prowers and academic appointees.
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Corporate Governance

JT recognizes that prompt and proper decision-maiing and

business execution are vital to increasing our corporaze value and

responding appropriately to new challenges to come in the future,

as the business and social environment change. Based on this
recognition, [T has been striving hard to enhance corporate

governance as a 1op management priority.

Implementation Status of
Measures Concerning Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance System
i. Organization of the Company
The Board of Directors meets once a month in principle and on
more occasions if necessary. in order 1o make decisions wath regard
1o the matters specified by laws and regulations and ather impor-
fant matters, to supervise business execution and to receive reports
frorn the directors on the slatus of business exacution.

In order to maintain a high quality of business execution, |T has
adopted the Executive Officer System. under which executive offi-

cers appointed by the Board of Directors execute business in their

respective areas of responsibility, in accordance with a company-
wide business strategy decided by the Board, by exercising the
authority delegated to them. In addition, the Chairman of the Board
has been positioned as a non-evecutive director in order to con-
centrate on the function of supenvising management.

Moreover, as part of its efforts to enhance corporate governance,
JT has established the Advisory Cammittee, which camprises five
outside experts and advises the management team from a broad
perspective with regard to how the company should operate in the
medium t long term, and other issues of similar importance.

Meanwhile. the Executive Committee, comprising the company’s
President and other members appointed by the President, discusses
important management issucs — particularty management policy
and basic plans regarding overall business operations — in addition
to maiters to be refermed o the Board of Directors,

|T has adepted the Audit Board System, under which corporate
auditors, in their capacity as independent agents with a mandate
from shareholders, examine the performance of duties by directors
and executive officers in order to ensure sound business manage-
ment and maintzin and enhance public trust in the company.
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ii. Internal Control System and Risk Management System

|T has been endeavoring to ensure appropriate business operations
through efforts to enhance compliance, internal audits and nsk man-
agement, and implementing measures to ensure the effectveness of
audits, such as improving arrangements and procedures for report-
ing the necessary matters 1o carporate auditors, as is required of a
company adopting the Audrt Board System.

We will continue these efforts while reviewing and revising the
current system as necessary, and ensure appropriate business exe-
cution by taking the foliowing steps:

1. System te ensure that directors and employees perform their duties in accor-

dance with laws, regulations and the company's articles of incorporation
With regard to the compliance system, |T has established the
Guidelines for Conduct based on internal rules conceming comphance
in order 1o ensure that directors, executive officers and employees
comply with laws, regulations, the company's articles of incorporaucn,
the social norms, ete, and set up the Compliance Committee s an
organization responsible for ensuring thorough compliance. This com-
mittee, headed by the company’s Charman, includes outside experts
among its members and reports directly to the Board of Dhreciors,
Meanwtite, the Compliance Office is charged with overseeing efforts
to improve the company-wide compliance system, identify compliance
problems and enhance the effectiveness of the compliance systerm by
enlightening directors, executive officers and employees about compli-
ance through various compliance education programs.

Regarding the internal reporting system (whistle-blower sysiem). |T
has a counter through which employees may repart any misconduct
they have detected. The Compliance Office 1s charged wath investigat-
ing reported cases and implerneniting company-wide measures 1o pre-
vent the recurrence of misconduct after holding consultations with the
departments and divisions concemed. [atters of particular importance
shall be referred to the Compliance Comimitiee for deliberation.

In order to ensure the reliability of its financial reporting, [T 15
operating a relevant internial control system that it has established in
accordance with the Financial Instruments and Exchange Acl By
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aliocating a sufficient level of staff to the task of evaluating {inancial
results and reporting them, the company is striving to maintain and
improve the reliabifity of its financial reporting,

The intemal audit system is overseen by the Operational Review and
Business Assurance Division (staffed with 24 members as of the end of
FY 3008), which examines and avaluates systems for supervising and
managirg the overall operauons of the company and the status of busi-
ness execution from the viewpoints of legality and rationafity, in order
to protect the company's assets and improve management efficency.

2. Procedures and arrangements for storage and management of information
on the performance of duties by the Directors

JT makes sure 10 properly store and manage the minutes of Annual

General Meetings of Shareholders, meetings of the Board of

Directars, and meetings of the Executive Committee, in fine with

laws, regulations and intermal rules,

Information on other important matiers relating to business exe-
cution and decision-making are stored and managed by the relevant
departments and divisions as specified by internal rules on the allo-
cation of responsibifities and authorities (hereinafter referred to as
the “Responsibilities/Authonties Allocation Rules™), in accordance
with rules on the supervision of the processes of decision-makirg,
procurement and accounting.

3. Rules on managemenct of risk of less and proceduresfarrangements for
other matters

|T has established internal rules on the rmanagement of risk of loss

relating to monetary and financial affairs, and ensures that relevant

reports are made 1o the Executive Commitiee on a quarterly basis.

With regard (o risk of loss relating to other affairs, the relevant
departments and divisions specified by the Responsibilities/
Authorities Allocation Ruies conduct proper management, identify-
ing risk and reporting it to the Executive Committee or referring i
to the Committee for defiberation. depending on the importance of
the identfied risk.

|T has assigned sufficient staff to the Operational Review and
Business Assurance Division, which functions as the company's

internal audit organization. This division examines and evaluates the
internal contral systems of [T and |T Group companies - in fight of
the importance of internal control procedures and arrangements
and the risks involved - from an objective viewpomt. in its capacity
as an entity independent of the arganizations respensible for busi-
ness execulion, and reports itz findings and present proposals 10
the President, as well as reporung to the Board of Direclors.

To prepare for possible emergencies, JT has pioduced a manua!
for crisis management and disastar response. In the evant of an
emergency or a disaster, |T is ready 1o establish an emergency proy-
ect system under the supervisiocn of the Corporate Strategy
Division, and make prompt and proper responses under the leader-
ship of senior management and through dlose cooperation between
the relevant departments and divisions.

4. System to ensure that directors perform their duties efficienty

The Board of Directors meets once a month in principle and on
MOre OCCasions as necessary, in order to make a decision with
regard to the matters specified by laws and regulatons and other
important matters and to supervise business execution, Mearwhile,
the Executive Committee, comprising the company’s President and
other members appointed by the President, discusses important
management issues, particularty management policy and basic plans
regarding overall business operations of the company, in addition to
matters to be referred to the Board of Directors.

|T has adopted the Executive Officer System, under which execu-
tive officers appointed by the Board of Directors execute business
in their respective areas of responsibility, in accordance with a com-
pany-wide business sirategy decided by the board, by exerusing the
authority delegated o them.

Mareover, in order to ensure that business operations are man-
aged in ways that contribute 1o the business efficiency and flexibiity
of the company as a whole, basic matters concarning the company’s
organization, allocation of duties io officers and staff and the rotes
of indradual divisions are spacified by the relevant internal rules.
Meanwhile. in order ta enable prompt decssion-making, the depart-
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ments and dwisions responsible for business execution are specified
by the "Responsibilities/Authorities Allocation Rules.”

5. System 1o ensure the appropriateness of business aperations within the |T Group
The |T Group promises to deliver “ireplaceable delight” to ask all
stakeholders, and it has adopted the |T Group Mission “the {T
Branding Declaration™ as a shared aim within the group.

We have specified the functions and rules necessary for group
management based on a group management policy, in order to
optimize the operations of the company as a whole.

Maoreover, we have been enhancing our systems for compliance
(including the internal reporting system), internal audits. financial
affairs management, etc. in cooperation with |T Group companies.
6. System for assisting auditors and reporting to auditors, and other systems

to ensure effective auditing
[T has allocated sufficient staff to the Auditor’s Office as an organiza-
tion supporting the auditors in performing their duties. In addition,
the company makes sure to review and reform the staffing structure
as necessary based an consultations with the Audit Board. The Audit
Board is involved in the selection of personnel of the Auditor's
Ofiice in order to ensure the office’s independence from directors.

when directors and executive officers detect any matter that may
cause substantial damage to the company, they are due to report it
to the Audit Board, Moreover, when directors, executive officers and
employees detect any evidence of malfeasance in financial documents
or serious breaches of laws or the company's articles of incorpora-
tion, they are due to report them to the Audit Board. along with
cther relevant matters thai could affect the company's management.

As auditors are allowed to atiend not only meetings of the Board! of
Directors but also other iImporant meetings. they usually attend meet-
ings of the Executive Commitiee. When directors, executive officers
and employees are asked by auditors i0 compile important documents
available for their perusal, to accept field audits and to submit reports,
they are due to respond in a prompt and appropriate manner.

Furthermore, directors are due to cooperate with audits and
ensure the provision of funds necessary for covening audit-related
expenses so as to secure their effectiveness. The QOperational
Review and Business Assurance Division and the Compliance Office
mantain cooperation with zudiiors by exchanging information.

Meanwhile, |Ts basic concept on the exclusion of anti-social ele-
mants and its efforts to exclude such elements are as follows:

1} Basic concept on the exclusion of anti-social elements

|T is resolved not to have any refations wath, and to fight against,

anu-social groups and organizatians that pose a threat to the

order and safety of civil society, and organizations involved in
tobacco smuggling or counterfeiting,

The company will also never engage in practices that would pro-
mote the actiiies of antisocial elements, If it faces a problem involving
such elements, JT will devote company-wide efforts to dealing with it

2) Efforts to exclude anti-social elements
The concept on the exclusion of anti-socizl elements described
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above is specified and fully communicated to ait employees as
part of the company’s code of conduct. With the General
Administration Ovision at JT's headguarlers assurning the respon-
sibility for supcrvising cfforts to exclude anti-socal clements. the
officers in charge of those efforts have been assigned to branch
offices across Japan, and are cooperating with police, lawyers and
other relevant organizations and parties to gather and share infor-
mation in order 1o deal with such elements in an organized way.

The measures 1o be taken by [T in resporse to unjusi and unreason-
able demands from anti-social elements are spedified in the compary's
manual for comporate defense. which is available for reference at all
offices and plants. T also consistently educates employees. including
those working for its affilates, about the impontance of excluding anti-
social elements by providing relevant training as necessary.

iil. Implementation Status of Audits by Corporate Auditors and
External Auditors
<Audits by corporite auditors and external auditors>
JT has an miemal audit system under which corporate auditors, in
their capacity as independent agents with a mandate from share-
holders, examine the performance of duties by directors and exec-
utive officers in order to ensure sound business management and
maintain and enhance public trust in the company.
|T has employed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (DTT) as its auditing
firm, and DTT has conducied audits based on the Company Law
and the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law. The certified pub-
lic accountants who audited |T's financial statements for FY 372008
and the persons who assisted the audiling work are as follows:
{Certified public accountants)
Tatsuo Igarashi (three years), Shuchi Momok (three years},
Satoshi lizuka (one year)
Note Figures in parentheses represent the numger of vears o3 which the cern
fea public accountints have engaged 10 the accounting sudit o T
(Assistants for the audit work]
Certified public accountants: 8 persons,
junior accountants; 7 persons, Others: 4 persons
While carporate auditers, internal audit organizations including the
Operational Review and Business Assurance Division, and external
auditors conduct audits individually, they endeavor to enhance their
cooperation in order to ensure approprate audis, lor example by
sharing information on the results of their respective audits.

iv. Remuneration for Directors and Corporate Auditors, Audit Fees, etc.
Remuneration for directors and corporate auditors and fees pad 10
DTT for audit attestation, etc. for FY 3/2008 were as follows,
<Remuneration for directors and corporate Auditors>
Remuneration for directors and corporate auditors

H directors: ¥664 million

4 corporale auditors: ¥78 nuliion




Nate: The rernuneration for directors and corporate auditors in office at the end of FY 32006
meludes prowsions for mrement benefits aconied gunng the paned from Apnf 2007 1o
lure 2007 {the retirarment beneft orgram was abolkhed as of June 12, 2007) Also, the
remursauen for dreciors ndudes e<ecute bonuses and stock option Zrants

<Fees for audit attestation>
Fees paid under the terms of the audit contract concluded between
DTT and T and its consolidated subsidiaries in relation to audit
attestation based on the Company Law and the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law are as follows:
(Fees paid under the terms of the contract concluded between
DTT and 1)
Fees for audit attestation based on Paragraph |, Article 2 of
the Certified Public Accountants Law: ¥169 million
Fees for other services: ¥80 million
Totak ¥250 millicn
{Fees paid under the terms of the contracts cencluded between
DTT and JT and its consolidated subsidiaries)
Fees for audit attestation based on Paragraph |, Article 2 of

the Centified Public Accountants Law: ¥7253 million
Fees for other services: ¥91 million
Total: ¥345 million

Overview of Quiside Corporate Auditors’ Interests in §T
T employs three outside corporate auditors. One of them, Mr.
Hiroyoshi Muravama, is a director of Mitsubishs Electric
Corporaucn, which has minor dealings with |T. However. the out-
side auditor fumself has no direct interests in Lhese dealings,

The other two outside corporale auditors have no interests in JT.

Number of Directors
|T's articles of incorporation stipulate that the number of Directors
must be |5 orless.

Appointment of Directors

T's arucles of incorporation stipulate that directors must be
appointed by a majonty of the shareholder vates cast on an occa-
sion where sharehclders representing at least one-third of the total
voting nghts are present.

Matters to be Decided by Board of Directors without Referral to
General Shareholders’ Meetings

{Own share repurchase)

In crder to enable flexible management, JT's articles of incorporation
stipulate that the company may repurchase its own shares through
means such as market trading, upon a resolution by the Board of
Directors under Paragraph 2, Article 165 of the carporate law.
{Interirn Dividend)

In order to enable profits o be retumed (o shareholders in a flexi-
ble manner, |T's articles of incorporation stipulate that the company
may pay intenm dividends to shareholders. upon a resolution by the
Board of Directors under ltem 5, Article 454 of the comporate law.

Requirements for Special Resolutions

at General Shareholders’ Meetings

In order to facilitate the smooth conduct of general shareholders’
meetings with an easier validity requirement for special resclutions,
{T's articles of incorporation stipulate that a resalution as specified
by Paragraph. 2. Article 309 of the corporate law 15 valid if it is sup-
ported by al least twe thirds of the votes cast at a general share-
holders’ mesting attended by sharehoiders representing at least one
third of |T's total voting rights {(compared with the usual require-
ment of “at least half'").

Overview of the Decision on Remuneration for Directors and
Corporate Auditors

The amount of remuneration for Directors 15 based on a determ-
nation made by the Board of Directors and the amount for corpo-
rate auditors is based on the results of consultalions among the
corporate auditors, with both amaunts confinad within the limits
approved by a General Meeting of Sharcholders.

in light of the results of deliberations conducted by the
Compensation Advisory Panel. which comprises the President,
Chairman, and the director in charge of personnel affars mandge-
ment and two external committee members, |T decided at a meet-
ing of the Board of Directors on Apnl 27. 2007 10 review the
sysiem of remuneration for directors and corporate auditors based
on the principle that such remuneration should be paid in a manner
suited 10 thewr respective duties of office and roles

As for directors, |T decded 1o introduce a remuneration Syatem
in which pay is linked to the company's business performance so as
to motivate them 10 endeavor to enhance the performance. and
also linked to the medium to fong term corporaie value of {7, so as
to provide them with an incentive to maximize the shareholder
value. Specifically, remuneration for directors who cencurrently
serve as executive officers comprises basic monthly compensauon
ard an annual bonus linked to the company’s business perfonmance
in the refevant year, and stock options. the value of which s inked
to the medium o long tesm corporate value of T, Remuneration
for directors whio do not concurrently serve as executnve officers
comprises basic monthly compensation and stock options. as they
are required to participate i decision-making regarding company-
vade business strategies amed at increasing the corporate value of
JT and 1o perform their audit-related duties.

Uniike remuneration for directors, a large portion of which s
linked {0 the business performance of the company, remuneration
for corporate auditors comprises only basic manthly compensaticn
in light of the main rofe of corporate auditors, which ss to audn the
status of compliance with laws and regulations.

Please be reminded that in line with the above reform of the remu-
neration system, the retirement benefit program for directors and cor
porate auditors was abolished at the conclusion of the 22nd Annual
General Meeling of Shareholders, which was held on june 22, 2007,
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. Activities Contributing to the Environment and Society

The |T Group strives to make contributions to

society through a variety of corporate activities.

We work o find harmony with our business environment
and global environment, and aim to coexist with society

as a good corporate citizen. We conduct continuing

activities from this viewpoint. R A

Our Approach to Protecting the Global Environment

Protecting the global environment is critica to our efforts to
fulfill our socal responsibility and is one of the top priority mat-
ters for our corporate management.

In May 1995, we established the |T Global Environmental
Charter and engaged in efforts 1o protect the global environ-
ment accordingly. In March 2004. the charter was revised as
the T Group Envirenmental Charter, in line with the diversifi-
cation and globalization of our businesses. In accordance with
this new charter, the |T Group has acted as a good corporate
citizen in all of the countries and regions in which it operates
and promoted company-wide initiatives to achieve harmony
between its corporale activities and the envircnment.

tFor detals. please refer to the CSR Report 2008,

JT Group Environmental Action Plan

In 2004, we estabiished the |T Group Environmental Acticn
Plan (2005-2008), which is intended to realize the philosophy
enshrined in the |T Group Environmental Charter. Operational
divisions of T, as well as subsidiaries and affiliates, have been
siriving to achieve the targels set forth under this medium-
term plan.

Group Environmental Management

The |T Group is seeking 1o establish an environmental manage-
mernt system based on the 15O 14001 international standard. By
FY 3/2007, it had obtained 5014001 certification for 14
domestic | T plants and |6 plants of [T International, which con-
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trols [T's intermational tobacco business, as well as production
facifities of 19 subsidiaries and affiliates related to the tobacco,
pharmaceutical and foods businesses in Japan. For its headquar-
ters, branches, research centers and business offices, whose
activities impose a relatively small burden on the environment
compared with manufacturing plants, the |T Group has intro-
duced an environmental management system based on an n-
house standard similar 1o 15014001,

In the future, we will expand the scope of facilities and oper-
ations subject to environmental management,

Fight against Global Warming
As we believe that reducing the overall amount of COz emis-
sions is essential to the fight aganst global warming, we are
engaging in active emission reduction efforts by setting numen-
cal targets. For the |T Group in Japan, we have set the target of
a 20% reduction in COz emissions by FY 3/2009 compared
with FY 372004, while the larget of a 32% reduction has been
set for §T alone. [n FY 372008, |T achieved a 35.8% reduction in
CO: emissions compared with FY 3/1996, while the |T Group
in Japan cut its emissions by 24.8% compared with FY 372004,
These cuts were achieved by making air conditioning manage-
ment more efficient through an energy-saving promaotion pro-
gram, taking advantage of night-time electricty and shifting to
more environmentally-friendly fuels.

in the future. we will continue efforts to reduce our CO2
emissions further,




B Trends in CO2 Emission
1 {1.000c-CO2)

5 520

4
2 399

NS 947 288

h 06 ‘06

w JT Group

! n Japan
' {Years ended March 31)

07 08 07

39

B Trends in CO1 Emission per Million Cigarettes

(t-million cigarattes)

051 059

€52 549

(Years ended Decermber 31)

Reduction in Water Usage
The T Group uses water in the process of producing tebacce
and food products.

The |T Group's manufacturing facilities strive 1o contnbute to
preserving water quality through the management of waste
water and to reduce the amount of water they use by adopt-
ing & program to optimize water usage through improving pro-
duction processes, consolidating facilities and reviewing the
way they use water, as well as by recycling used water,

As a result of these efferts, the amount of water used by |T
i FY 372008 was down 60.5% compared with FY 3/1996, and
the amount used by the |T Group was down 46.9% compared
with FY 3/2004,

Effective Use of Resources

In order tc preserve the limited natural resources available,
both manufacturing plants and non-manufacturing offices and
facilities of the JT Group engage in eflorts to curb the amount
of waste generated from its business activities and to recycle
used rnaterials.

in FY 3/2008, the amount of waste gencrated by the |T
Group n Japan was down 14.3% compared with FY 3/2004,
due 1o a decrease in sludge and an improvement in production
processes, A tolal of 36 facifities achieved zero ermissions, while
the recycling rate for the JT Group came to 97.7%.

As for |T alone, 26 faciliues {16 plarts and 10 brandhes offices
and other non-manufactuing facilities} achieved zero emissions,
while the recycling rate came to 99.7% for the headquarters and
B82.6% for business offices and other nan-manufacturing facilities.

Approach to Protecting the Global Environment Overseas
As a result of the acquisition of Gallaher, |T Intermational (JT1)
now has a total of more than 30 manufacturing bases n 25
countries. Having obtained ISO 14001 certiiication for 16 piants
before the acquisivon of Gallaher, |Té plans to do so for all of
its plants by 2010.

For the fourth consecutive year specific CO2 emissions and
energy and water consumption showed improved perform-
ance. Production waste per million cigarettes increased by 4%
and recycling fell by 4% as a result of the integration. Factories
continued to implement efficiency programs including energy
recovery projects, building climate control and a global tobacco

case reuse project.

Toward Better Smoking Manners and
a More Favorable Smoking Envirenment

(This secton descrbes aciivities only in Japan.)

“Smokers’ Style” is a term coined {o promote our campaign to
achieve harmonious co-existence between smokers and non-
smokers. It reflects our wish thal our valued customers will
fully enjoy smoking on their own respensibility and. at the same
time, make sure 1o avoid causing discomfort to nonsmokers, By
engaging in various initiatives under this campaign, we will fulfil
our social responsibifity as a tobacco company.
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Examples of the Various Initiatives

Setting Up Smoking Areas

We work closely wilh local governments in setting up smoking
areas n public facilties such as railway stations and airports, in
order 1o promote harmonious co-existence between smokers
and nonsmokers.

Advice on Separation of Smoking and Nonsmoking Areas
We provide consullation on how to separate smoling and
nonsmoking areas within public facilities, commercial facilities
and business offices 1n a manner suited to the characteristics of
the faciliies and the needs of users. In our consulting service,
which is free of charge, we offer our know-how and put for-
ward proposals so as 1o achieve the kind of separation that
would satisfy smekers while giving due consideration to the
concems of nonsmokers,

“Smoking Manners”™ Campaign Advertising

Since |T believes that improving the "smoking manners” of
individuals s essential to improving those of sodiety as a whole,
we are constantly engaged in a campaign to raise awareness
aboutl the need for appropriate smoking manners, under the
slogan "Pay attention, and you can change your manners,” The
advertisements used in this campaign describe specific every-
day siuations in which smokers are supposed 1o show good
manners, in order to prompt them to pay attention, think, and
act appropriately.
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Community Clean-up Event

As part of cur efforts to raise awareness about the need for
appropriate smoking manners, JT has been engaged in the
“Pick Up and You will Love Your City" initiative since May
2004, This instiative is amed at occasions such as community
festivals and other public eveats and conducted In coopera-
tion with local governments. schools, volunteers and the
organizing committees and participating bodies of those
events. The community clean-up held on May 18, 2008
marked the 500th event of its kind led by |T, pushing the
rumber of participating parties to %68 and number of partici-
pants to approximately 600,000.

For further information about JT's efforts Lo improve the smok-
ing environment, please access our website.
URL:httpifwww jlicojp/sstyle

JT Group’s Social Contributions

I.JT Group's Social Centributions
The |T Group has strived 1o make contributions 1o society in
all the countres and regions in which we operate, in the hope
of maintaining harmonious relations with local communites by
acting as a good corporate citizen.

in order 10 make greater contributions to society on a
group-wide basis, we have established the |T Group Socal
Contributian Poficy, focusing on lour arcas: sccial weifare, arts
and culture, environmental protection and disaster relief,
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JT Group Sacial Contribution Policy

As a good corporaie citizen maintaining harmonious relations
with society, the |T Group will fulfill its corporate responsibility
thraugh making sustained contributions te the communities in
which 1t aperates.

As a good neighbor, the JT Group will support the regenera-
tion and revitalization of local communities, focusing o

Social Welfare

Arts and Culture
Envirenmental Protection
Disaster Relief '

The |T Group will contribute to the development of the lecal
communities in which we operate by selecting the most critical
of these four prionty areas for each and providing support.

Based on this policy. the JT Group will engage in a varicty
of aciraues that contribule to sodiety. so thal we can build
and mamntam harmenious refations with local communities
while encouraging employees to be involved in such activities
themselves.

2. Contributions to Japanese Society
Social Welfare
As part of our efforts to contribute to the regeneration and
revitalization of local communiiies as a good neighbor, the |T
Group 15 mmplementing a variety of social welfare programs,
including the NPO Support Projects for Youth Development,
Scholarstups for Students from Asia and JT Shogi Japan Series
Tourmnament for Kids.

JT's business offices and facilities across fapan contribute 1o

focal communities in a variety of ways while maintaining inti-

mate relations with residents, for instance by supporting local
festivals and sports events and prowviding company-cwned
sports grounds for use by local residents.

Arts and Culture
The |T Group engages in activilies that contribute to the devel-
opment and advancement of arts and culture.

At the T Art Hall Affinis, located in Toranomon in Tokyo's
Minalo Ward, cullural events - mainly classical chamber music per-
formances - are held on an ongoing basis, providing players with
opportunities 10 develop their talents and offering an ideal venue
for music lovers to enjoy creative and inspiring performances.

Moreover, the |T Group has established the Affinis Ans
Foundation to support professional Japanese orchestras, in an
effort to foster talents and promole cultural development by
offering assistance for orchestra players to study abroad and
providing financial aid for orchestras 1o hold concerts,

In addition, the JT Group operaies the Tobacco & Salt
Museum in Tokyo's Shibuya Ward, which teaches peopie
about the historical and cultural aspects of tobacco and saft,
the business roois of §T, through activities such as gathering
materials and data, conducting research and surveys and hold-
ing exhibitions and other cvents. Meanwhile, the |1 Biohistory
Research Hall, located in the westem prefecture of Osaka,
studies biodiversity and provides people with a vanety of
opportunities 10 become familiar with the wonders of natural
life, for instance by holding exhibitions and by opening its labo-
ratory to the public.
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Environmental Protection

In appreciation of the benefits Mother Nature brings to our
business and out of consideration for preserving the enviran-
ment. the |T Group engages in environmental protection activi-
ties such as afforestation, lorest preservation and street
cleanup campaigns.

The "|T Forest" initiative {or afforestation and forest preser-
vation was first launched in Nakahechi, Wakayama Prefecture
and then extended to Kosuge, Yamanashi Prefecture, Nahan,
Kochi Prefecture and Chizu, Tottort Prefecture. In March 2008,
Nakatsugawa, Gifu Prefecture became the fifth location of the
JT Forest initiative.

Disaster Relief

The |T Group is ready to respand to major disasters in and
outside japan by offering its help io the affected areas through
group-wide cooperation. YWhen a major earthquake struck the
Chuetsu region of Nigata Prefeclure in 2007, |T gave dona-
tions and sent supplies of drinking water to help victims.

3. Social Contributions Abroad

The {T Group engages in a variety of philanthropic activities
around the warld, contributing to the development of the local
communities N which it operatas, JTi, the international arm of
the JT Group that controls the group's tobacco production,
marketing and sdles in more than {20 countries, plays the cen-
tral role in our wortdwide phitanthropic activities. In addition to
its own philanthropic activities, JTI helps to tackle critical chal-
lenges faced by local communities as part of group-wide initia-
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tives such as the afforestation and forest preservauon pro-

grams that are underway in Aliica.

JTI's Corporate Philanthropy

For |TI, the international subsidiary of T, Corporate
Philanthropy is an integral component of its commitment to
the communities in which it operates. JT| Corporate
Philanthropy policy and guidetines are aligned with the JT
Group Social Contribution palicy. and have been shared with
employees throughout the company. T is actively involved in
philanthropic activities in three areas in particular: sociat welfare
{charity), arts and culture and disaster relief,

Social Welfare {Charity)
In its social welfare-related activities, T focuses on iniatves
ke caring for the elderly and supporting adults with Ineracy
problems. The following are a few examples of the types of
activities [T is supporting.

in Netherlands, |T! joined with the Lezen & Schrijven
(Reading & Writing) foundation, 1c help an estimated 1.5 mii-
lion people whose literacy difficuliies prevent them from par-
ticipating fully in Dutch society. JT1 has engaged in a sustainable
partnership for three years since 2007 by contnbuting to the
cost of publishing bocks for adulis with low reading skills.

T Milan is involved m a project known as Il Cusiode” (the
Guardian) that seeks to assist elderly. The project arranges
home wisits, provides transport and shopping help. and assists
them in dealing with administrative and social services, So far,
over 3,600 elderly Milanese have benefited. Tl is committed 1o



e, B i
< tenyy i

a three year parinership from 2006 and to assisting its partners
to eveniually become self-suslaining,

For Lhe lagt four years, T has been sponsoring a shelter for
wicims of family violence in Serbia. supporting the only local
NGO dedicated to tackling this distressingly common probiem.
|71 meets the cost of renting of a safe house at an undisclosed
Belgrade location which has sheftered hundreds of women at
risk from family violence, as welt as victims of human trafficking,

Arts and Culture

fapan's rich artistic and cultural heritage is little known in many
of [T¥s international markets. Part of the company’s Corporate
Philanthropy commitment is to change this. One innovative
result in 2007 was a [Tl-sponsored event in Athens, artended
by guests from government, busingss and the arts community,
that showcased the rituais and traditions of the kimono.

{TI was the exclusive sponsor of a Japanese exhibrtion at the
Sévres National Ceramics Museurn in Paris, Visitors learned
about the 17th century origins of Satsuma ware during the
“gotden age” of the 1ea ceremonies and how its artistic influ-
ence spread to Europe and to France, in particular.

in early 2008, as part of its long-term commitment to the
Mariinsky Theater. |Tt acted as the sponsor for the celebration
of the Theatre's 225th anniversary. The program of events that
followed featured scenes from operas, ballets. and world pre-
mieres that had taken place throughout the Theatre's history.
In 2008, the Mariinsky will also mark its anniversary by staging
performances across Russia and abroad.

Disaster Relief

In 2001, JT! established the JTI Foundation i arder to suppe-t
the underprivileged around the world, with a particular focus
on providing relief aid for victims of earthquakes and other nat-
ural disasters, m cooperation with major rebef organizayons ike
the Red Cross as well as NGOs and government agencies.

Donalions made by Lthe JTI Foundation included funding for
the Peruvian Red Cross to prowvide emergency reliefl 1o local
communitigs in the wake of a massive earthquake In August
2007. In addition. the Romanian branch of Malieser
intermational continues to drill wells to provide local communi-
ties with access 1o safe water supplies following last summer’s
heat wave and flooding,

Since 2005, the [Tl Foundation has provided ongaing sup
nort 1o GEA; an organization spearheading search and rescue
missions afler disasters, This has been foliowed, in 2008, by the
Foundation renewing its commitment for a further 3 years,
This continued partnership will contribute to taking GEA
search and rescue missions to a higher level of sustanabilivy.
GEA will have the resources to launch reliel missions within
the first two critical hours of & disaster, and enable the pur-
chase of specialized search and rescues equipment.
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. Consolidated Five-Year Financial Summary

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31

Miiticns of yen U_S_r:LIiI:r: (c;[.,;.
2004 2005 2006 2007
For the year:
Net sales ¥ 4625151 ¥ 4664504 ¥ 4,637,657 ¥ 4,769,387
Taxation 2,605,343 2,650,586 2628878 2,718,358
Net sales excluding excise axes 2019807 2013927 2,008,780 2051,029
MNet sales excluding excise taxes,
distribution business N{A 1,684,404 1,596,151 1,633,186
EBITDA (e 373435 406,115 433391 464,634
Depreciation and amoriization #3 133401 125,744 126,445 132,643
Cperating income 234034 273,371 306946 331991
Net income (loss) o . (7.603) 62,584 201,542 210772
For the year
Net cash provided
by operating activities ¥ 334501 ¥ 250840 ¥ 150343 ¥ 435958
Net cash provided by {used in)
investing activities (228,620} 176214 (26,358) (149,692)
Net cash used
in financing activities © (109,335) {202,196) (48.135) (32,635}
Free cash flow e ® 269,174 269,459 145,590 223,007
At year-end:
Net property,
plant and equipment ¥ 708221 ¥ 639655 ¥ 596544 ¥ 600436
Total assets 3029084 2,982,056 3037379 3364663
Interest bearing debt 381,203 230716 216,608 219269
Liabifities 1,467,322 1,430,256 1,217,306 1,340,047
Total equity 1,507,937 1,498,204 1,762,512 2024616
Ratios:
Retum on equity {ROE) (0.5%) 4.2% 12.4% 11.3%
Return on asset (ROA) 79% 9.2% 10.4% 10.7%
Operating income margin 5.1% 5.9% 6.6% 7.0%
Total assets turnover 1.55 1.55 1.54 1.49
Equity ratio 49 8% 50.2% 58.0% 58.3%
Debt/Equity ratio (times) 0.25 Q.15 0.2 0.1
Current ratio 195.3% 202.7% 256.7% 2264%
Fixed assets/
Long-term capital ratio 69.9% 67.6% 60.7% 61.3%

Notes: 1. Figures stated n LS. doblars in ths report are translated solely for convenience at the rate of ¥100.19 per $1. the rate of exchange as oi March 31, 2008.
2. EBITDA = operating income + depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortizaton = depreciaton of tangible fixed assets + amnoruzation of intangible fixed assets + amortization of long-term prepad expenses + amoruzavon of poochwalt
1 FCF = {eash flow from operating actmties + cash Dow from investing actnaties) exctuding the followang tems
From "cash flow from operating acuvities™ Owidends receved / interest received and its tax effect / interest pad and its tax effect
From “cash flow from investing actities”™: Cash autflow from purchase of marketable secuntes / proceeds from sales of marketable secunties / cash outflow from purchases of invesimeant secu-
nties / proceeds from sales of nvestment secunties / others {but not business-related investment secunties, which are included in the investment secunties kem)
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Segment Information

Miltions of

Milions of yen US. dollars
L 04 2005 2006 2007
Net, sales ¥ 4,625,151 ¥ 4664514 ¥ 4637657 ¥ 4,769387
Tobacco 4,236920
Domestic 3491.488 3,405,281 3416274
International 792,705 881,188 993,658
Pharmaceutical 51242 57576 49,257 45452
Foods 250.138 265,380 278,378 286,554
Others B6.851 57,265 23553 21,44%
EBITDA ¥ 373435 ¥ 400115 ¥ 43339 ¥ 464,634
Tobacco 343,163
Domestic 296,031 305,753 326,470
International 65,462 94093 F12,668
Phamaceutical (4,426} 5474 (1,803) (8.197)
Foods 3300 7931 11869 12018
Others 30,674 26810 22,140 20,586
Elimination/Corporate 724 (1,593} 1,339 89

Operating income

¥ 234034 ¥ 273371 ¥ 306%46 ¥ 33199

Tobacco 238,409
Domestic 215833 220,095 245,388
International 44,458 71,031 81,085
Pharmaceutical (12.840) 1,855 {5,057} (11.207)
Foods (4.851) 1,948 6325 6.705
Others 11,976 10,427 8,673 9.331
Elimination/Corporate 1,34¢ {1,150} 5879 689

Four business segments, namely Tobacco. Pharmaceutical, Foods
and Others, had been used for the conseolidated financial statements
up to the year ended March 31, 2005. From the year ended March
31, 2006. the tobacco segment is divided into Domestic tobacco
and Intemational tobaceo in order for our business results to be
mare properly shown, considering the importance of the Group's
tobacco business in which T International S.A. a foreign consolidat-

ed subsidiary, conducts the main operational role. As a result, five
business segments, namely Domestic tobacco, Intermational tobac-
0, Pharmaceutical, Foods and Others, are used for the consclidat-
ed financial statements. As for the results of the year ended March
31, 2005, retroactive application was made in accordance with the
new business segments as well.

T Annual Report 2008 53




Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Business Results

The following discussion of our financial conditions and business
results should be read in reference to our consolidated financial
statements prepared 1n accordance with Japanese Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“lapanese GAAP™) and other
information included in ather sections of this annual repeort. This

discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that
involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results may differ
materially from those estimated in these statements as a result of a
number of factors, including, but not limited to, those described n
“Major Risks of Businesses'

Business Description and Acquisition of Qutside Resources

lapan Tobacco Inc. (JT") is a joint stock corporation (kabushiki
kaisha} incorporated under the corporate law of Japan (ithe
“Corporate Law'") pursuant to the Japan Tabacco inc. Law (the "|T
Law"). |T is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of tobac-
co products in the domesuc and international markets, as one of
the largest producers of 1obacco products in the wortd. The total
sales of cigarettes of |T and ns consolidated subsidiaries (the T
Group” or "Group”) in the fiscal year ended March 31. 2008,
excluding tobacco products purchased from overseas tobacco man-
ufacturers and sold to retail stores through its subsidiary. TS
Network Co, Ltd. ("TS Netwerk™). was 556.9 billion cigarettes
(167.8 biltion cigarettes in the domestic market; 3.5 billion cigarettes
in the domestic duty-free market and the markets in China, Hong
Kong and Macau, which are covered by JT's China Devsion; and
385.6 bilion cigarettes in other overseas markets).

In the domestic tobacco market, [T manufactures and sells its
tobacco products to retail stores all over the country 1In accor-
dance wath the Tobacco Business Law. This law provides that (1)
JT shall be the sole manufacturer of tobacco products in Japan and
(2) the maximum wholesale price of each tobacco product manu-
factured and sold and the retail price of each product sold in Japan,
as well as any changes in these prices. shalt be subject to approval
by the Minister of Finance. The products are transported from its
factories 1o its distribution bases by its subsidiary, JT Logistics Co.
Ltd.. and then distibuted to retail stores through TS Network, TS
Network also acts as the wholesaler of foreign tobacco manufac-
turers, purchasing and setling their products to retail stores in the
domestic market.

|T greatly expanded its international tobacco business through the
acguisition of the non-U.S. tobacco operations of RJR Nabisco, Inc.
("RIR Nabisco™) on May {2, 1999, (T paid $5.0 bilion for the non-
LS. tobacco operations of RJR. Nabisco, which resulted in $3.5 billion
of goodwill. |T also acquired non-LLS. tobacco-related trademarks and
intellectual properties for $2.7 billion and other assets for $0.1 bilhon,
The acquisition. worth a total of $7.8 billor. was financed by a syndi-
cated loan of $5.0 billion and $2.8 billion in cash. The syndicated loan
was later refinanced through domestic and foreign bond issues and
long-term loans from banks and insurance companies. JT repaid in full
the lang-term loans from banks and insurance companies, and
redeemed the foreign bonds by July 2004, We are due to redeem
the domestic bonds In June 2009. As a resutt of this acquisition. |T
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obtained increased access 10 overseas markets, especially in Furope
and Russia, and the rights in almost all countries outside the United
States to intematicnally recognized trademarks such as Winston,
Camel and Salem. Since this acquisition. |T's international tobacco
business - of which T internaticnal (JTI) consututes the core - has
consistently maintained strong growth.

In the fiscal year ended March 21, 2008, we completed the pro-
cedures for the acquisition of Gallaher Group Pic to make it a whol-
ly owned subsidiary of |T on Apnl 18, 2007, The acquisition price
was approximately £7.50 billion {approximalely ¥1,720 biltion), and
the total acquisition price including the assumption of net intercst-
bearing debt was approximately £2.44 billion {approximately
¥2.180 billion}. This acquisition resulted in goodwill of USHES.E bil-
lion. Of the totat value, approximately ¥820 billion was covered by
our own funds. ¥450 billion by a loan from Mizuho Bank. Ltd, and
£1.9 billion (approximately ¥450 biflion) by a syndicated loan
arranged by Memill Lynch. Qf the funds borrowed from Mizuha
Bark. the J7 Group repaid a total of ¥150 billion in May and July
2007 out of its own funds and refinanced ¥300 bilion through new
loans totaling ¥150 billion from other domestic banks and through
the issuance of domestic bonds totaling ¥150 billion. It repaid the
syndicated foan of £1.9 billion with cash and funds borrowed under
a new credit line established abroad. As for the demestic bonds, the
T Group is due to redeem ¥50 billion in July 2010, ¥40 bition in
July 2011 and ¥60 billion in July 2012,

With the acquisition of Gallaher, we have further strengthened
our pesition as the world's third largest tobacco company. In add-
tion to our strong business foundation in Asia. |T now has an
increasing presence in Furope and the CIS region. We aim o main-
tain sustainable growth as a major tobacco company on the strength
of our geographically weli-balanced operations and our ample
growth potential. |T's international tobacco busingss airms tc enhance
its role as the driver of the JT Group's profit growth by achieving
top-line growth. As we proceed with the business integration of [TI
and Gallaher, we will seek to gain both top-line syncrgy and cost
synergy. We now count eight brands among our list of global flagship
brands {"GFBs"): Winston, Camel, Mild Seven, Benson & iHedges,
Sillk: Cut, LD, Sobranie and Glamour. We intend to actively explore
opportunities for top-line growth on the swrength of these GFBs,
which form the core of our new brand portfolio.

As of the end of April 2005, {T terminaled its contracts with




Mitsubishi Corperation {"Mitsubishi') and Kokuba-Gurmi Ce., Ltd.,
under which Mitsubishs imported Camel, Winston and Salemn, from
|T Intermational SA. to Japan and sold them through TS Network
throughout Japan except for Okinawa Prefecture, where they were
imported and sold by Kokuba-Gumi. Since then, |T has been import-
ing, manufaciuring and selling these products in Japan on its own.

|T alse terminated the production and sale of Marlboro brand
cigareties in April 2005 upon the expiration of its licensing con-
rract with Philip Morris Products S.A. for this brand, which was
signed in 1973,

In addition to the tobacco business, the JT Group has been
actvely engaged in 1ts foods and pharmaceutical businesses in order
1o diversify its source of future profits and cash flow.

In 1ts pharmaceutical business, the |T Group focuses on the
research and development of prescription drugs. In the domestic
market, Toni Pharmmaceutical Co. Ll in which |T acquired a stake
of 53.5% for approximately ¥42 billion in December 1998, manu-
factures and sells prescription drugs through its extensive marketing
network. In the overseas market, [T derives revenue pancipally from
rovalties on the licensing of its successful anti-HIV drug.

In its fonds business, the JT Group principally manufactures and
sells beverages, processed foods and seasonings in the domestic
market. Chilled foods aperations are mainly undertaken by its
Australian foods subsidiary, Hans Continental Smailgoods Pty. Ltd.
|T's presence in the beverage markel was substantially expanded
through the acquisition of a majority stake in Unimat Corporation, a
nationwide operator of soft drink vending machines that was later
renamed Japan Beverage Inc., for approximately ¥29 billion in a

Overview

Our net sales totaled ¥6,409.7 billion for the year ended March 31,
2008, compared with ¥4,769.4 billion for the year ended March 31,
2007. The domestic and international tobacco businesses account-
ed for 52.5% and 41.2%. respectively, of our net sales in the year
ended March 31, 2008, compared with 71.6% and 21.0% in the
year ended March 31, 2007, In recent years, net sales for our inter-
national tobacco business have becoms an increasingly important
component of our total net sales,

Qur operating income totaled ¥430.6 billion for the year ended

two-stage deal implemented in April and September [398. In addi-
tion, |T acquired the foad business of Asahi Kasei Corporation for
approximately ¥24 billion in July 1999, In the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008, the )T Group made Katokichi Co. a subsidiary by
acquining additional shares in the company for approximately ¥102
billion, increasing its equity stake in Katokichi Co. from 5% 10
approximately $4%. in January 2008, Foliowing the acquisition of all
voting rights of Katokichi Co. on Aprit {8, 2008, the [T Group
intend to concentrate its processed foods operatians, including
frozen foods operations and seascrings operations, at Katokichs
beginning on July 1, 2008. Through this realgnment, Katokichi will
consotidate its foundation as & unique foods manufacturer on the
swrength of its processed foods business - including the frozen foods
business. which will be the largest in Japan - and its supenor tech-
nology for the production of seascnings.

Undler the JT Law, |T must obtain approval from the Minister of
Finance with regard to certain matters. such as (1) the issuance of
new shares (as well as subscription rights for new shares and bonds
with subscription rights for new shares) and {2} resolutions adopted
at shareholder meetings for any amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation and appropriation of retained earmings. Pursuant to
the JT Law, the Japanese government is required to hold one-half or
more of the T shares that were issued upon the company’s estab-
lishrment in 1985, as adjusted for any subsequent stock split or con-
solidation of shares. The amended [T Law allows [T to issuz new
shares to the extent that the number of shares held by the govemn-
ment remains at more than one-third of the outstanding shares.

March 31, 2008, compared with ¥332.0 bifhon for the year ended
March 31. 2007, Although our foods business has generated operat-
ing income since the year ended March 31, 2005, our phamaceuti-
cal business has posted operating losses every year since the year
ended March 31, 1998, when we started to disclose segment-by-
segment information, with the exception of the year ended March
31, 2005. As a resull, we denve aimost all of our operating income
from our tobacco business.
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Results by Industry Segment

Table of Results by Industry Segment

Millions of yen LT ISI!‘Z:;I‘I;{:
For years ended March 31 2(506 o 2007
Net sales ¥ 4637657 ¥ 4769387
Tobacco Business
Domestic 3405281 3416274
International 8gl.188 999,658
Pharmaceutical Business 49,257 45,452
Foods Business 278,378 286,554
Other Business 23,553 21,449
Millions of yen LT isifiz::horl‘
L i i 2006 2007
Operating income ¥ 306946 ¥ 331,991
Tobacco Business
Domestic 220,095 245,388
International 71,631 81,085
Pharmaceutical Business (5.057) (11,207}
Foods Business 6,325 6,705
Other Business 8.673 9331
Elmination/Corporate 5879 689

Domestic Tobacco: Net sales for our domestic tabacco business
iotaled ¥3,362.4 billion in the year ended March 31, 2008, compared
with ¥3,416.3 billion in the year ended March 31, 2007. Although
these sales figures inchude sales of tobacco products manufactured
by foreign tobacco companies and sold by us in Japan. our profit
margins on such products are significantly lower than those on our
own products, since our role in their sales is jimited 1o distribution,

International Tobacco: Net sales for our international iobacco
business totaled ¥2,640 billon in the year ended March 31, 2008,
compared with ¥999.7 billion in the year ended March 31, 2007
Intemational lobacco sales include overseas sales of products manu-
factured by our overseas subsidiaries and sales of tobacce products
manufactured in Japan and exported to foreign countries.

Pharmaceutical: Our pharmaceutical business accounted for
approxmately 0.8% of our net sales in the year ended March 31,
2008, compared with 1.0% in the year ended March 31, 2007. The
pharmaceutical business recorded an operating loss of ¥9.6 billion in
the business year ended March 31, 2008, compared with an operat-
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ing loss of ¥11.2 billion in the year ended March 31, 2007, We
expect the pharmaceutical business to remain unprofitable for at
least the next few years.

Foods: Qur foods business accounted for approximately 5.2% of
our net sales in the year ended March 31, 2008. compared with
60% in the year ended March 31, 2007, Operaung income generat-
ed by the foods business totated ¥0.7 bilion i the year ended
March 31, 2008, compared with ¥6.7 billion i the year ended
March 31, 2007.

Other: Qur "other business” segment accounted for approximaiely
0.3% of our net sales in the year ended March 31, 2008 compared
with 0.4% in the year ended March 31, 2007, Net sales in this seg-
ment have been gradually decreasing in recent years. Operating
incame generated by this segment totaled ¥10.4 billion n the year
ended March 31, 2008, compared with ¥9.3 billicn in the year
ended March 31, 2007. Currently, we have no plans to expand our
“other business” segment. Therefore. we expect sales in this seg-
ment to decrease gradually as we review operations,




Results by Geographic Segment

We divide our operatians inta three geographic segments based on
the business temitones ¢of the |T Group's main business entities:
Japan, Western Europe (including Switzerland, France and
Germany) and other regions. Our "olher regions” segment com-

Table of Results by Geographic Segment

prises prmanly Asia (excluding Japan tut including China. Hong
Kong and Macau), Canada, Russia and the ather Commonweallh of
independent States nations. the Middle East and Afnca.

Millions of yen ‘T :hzgr;i
For years ended March 3| i{)oe, 2007
MNet sales ¥ 4637657 ¥ 4769387
japan 3709564 3718450
Woestern Europe 338,606 353,831
Other 58%9.087 697,106
Millions of yen &gfi:‘gl‘h‘f’
_ o ] - 2006 2007
Cperating incorne ¥ 306946 ¥ 331,99)
Japan 228,137 248,482
Western Europe (847) (18,810)
Cther 72,865 101,552
Elimination/Corporate 6,791 767

Japan: Net sales in Japan in the year ended March 3. 2008 deweased
by ¥6.7 bilicn, or 0.2%, from the previous year to ¥3,71 1.8 biliion, as
a decline in the sales volume outweighed the positive effects of a rise
in unit sales prices based on the revision of retall prices. Operating
income in the year ended March 31, 2008 dropped by ¥26.1 billion,
or 10.5%, from the previous year to ¥222.3 bilion. This was primarily
due to increases in sales promotion expenses and raw matenals costs,
as well as the decline in the sales volume.

Net sales in Japan in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by
¥8.5 billion, or 0.2%, from the previous year to ¥3.718.5 billion.
Despite a sales volume decrease in our damestic tobacco business,
revenue increased in line with unit sales price increases based on the
revision of retail prices. Operating income for the year ended March
31, 2007 increased by ¥20.3 billion, or B.9%, to ¥248.5 billion in
comparison with the previous fiscal year, This was due primarily to
the above mentioned unit sales price increase and cost reductions,

Western Europe: Net sales in Western Europe in the year ended
March 31, 2008 increased by ¥1.324.9 billion, or 374.5%, from the
previous year to ¥1.678.8 bilion, manly due to the acqusition of
Gallaher, which has a large market share in Britain, Ireland. etc.
Operating income in the year ended March 31, 2008 1otaled ¥55.9
billion, an improvement of ¥74.7 bithon from the previous year's
loss of ¥18.8 billion.

Net sales in Westem Europe for the year ended March 31, 2007

increased by ¥15.2 billion, or 4.5%. from the previous year Lo
¥3538 bilion. This was pnmarily due to favorable exchange rates
that expanded yen-denominated revenue and thus offset the nega-
tive impact of a hike in the tobacco excise tax in Spain. Operating
losses in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥18.0 billion
from the previous vear to ¥ 188 billion. This was primarily due to
the negative effects of Spain’s tobacce tax hike and a change in the
way of booking sales in Japan of products nandled by JT's interna-
tional tebacco business (such sales, which had previously been
booked in the account of our intemational business, have been
baoked in the account of the domestic business since May 2005).

Other Regions: Net sales in other regions in the year ended March
31, 2008 increased by ¥322.1 billion, or 446.2%, from the previous
year to ¥1,019.2 bilion. This was primarily due to the acquisition of
Gatlaher. Operating income in the vear ended March 31, 2008
increased by ¥49.8 billion, or 49.1%, from the previous year 10
¥151.4 billion.

Met sales in other regions in the year ended March 31, 2007
increased by ¥108.0 billion, or 18.3%, from the previous year 10
¥697.1 billion. This was primanly due to an increase in internatonal
tobacco sales by |T International, particularty in countnes such as
Russia, fran, Turkey and Ukraine. Operating income in the year
ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥28.7 billion, or 39.4%, from
the previous year to ¥101.4 billion.
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Outlook of Results for the Year Ending March 31,2009

it is too early to forecast business results for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2009. However, based on current wends and other fac-
tors that we are aware of at this point, we expect a revenue
increase and a profit decrease in our business performance. We
believe that net sales for |T's domestic tobacco business will fall amid
the accelerating decline in overall tobacco demand in japan, while
these for JT's imtemational tobacco business will increase due to the
inciusion of |T's full-year resufts of Gallaher and growth in sales of
the GFBs, which will offset the unfavorable effects of exchange rate
movements. We alse expect net sales for |T's foods business to
grow thanks to the inclusion of the Katokichi Group's results,
Meanwhile, we expect our operating income to decline due to
factors such as the stant of goodwill amortization related to our
international tobacco business. following a revision of accounting

Consolidated Business Results

Consolidated income Statement

standargs, the additional cost of goodwill amortization stamming
from our acquisition of the Katokichi Group and an increase in riw
matenats costs,

Although we expect our bottom line to benefit from a decrease n
the exchange losses we incurred on euro-denominated bonds held
by a consolidated subsidiary in the term-end evaluation of the previ-
ous year, we expect our net income to decline due to factors such as
a decrease in operating profit. an increase in interest payments on
borrowings and bonds related to the acquisition of Gailaher, a
decrease in profits from the sale of fixed assets, and costs related to
the demolition of company-owned residences for employees.

Our actual operating results may differ significantly from those
described above as a result of a number of factors including, but not
limited 1o, those discussed in the "Major Risks of Businesses.”

Milians of yen LT"S'F:';’I::

For years ended March 31 2006 2007

Net sales ¥ 4,637,657 ¥ 4,769,387
Cost of sales 3734074 3,844,768
Gross br_oﬁt T T T 903,583 924619
Selling, general and administrative expenses 596,637 592,628
Operaﬁng income o ) - B T 306916 3 t-:39T 7
Other income {expenses), net (5.953) 5205
Income before income taxes and minority interest 300,993 337196
Income taxes 94,896 121,405
Income before minor‘itf interest o : C 06097 _2I5.79i )
Minority interest 4,555 5019
‘Net income ) ¥ 201542 ¥ 210772

Year Ended March 31, 2008 Compared with Year Ended March
31, 2007

Net Sales

Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2008 increased by ¥1.640.3
bidlion, or 34.4% from the previous year to ¥6.409.7 bilion. The net
sales amounts indicated below represent the amounts excluding
inter-segment Lansactions.

* Domestic Tobacco Business

Net sales v our domestic tobacco business are comprised of
domestic sates (including duty-free sales) of tobacco producis man-
ufactured by the {T Group in and outside Japan, domestic sates of
products manufactured by foreign tobacco manufacturers and dis-
tributed by our subsidiaries as wholesalers and sales in the China,
Hong Kong and Macau markers, which are covered by |T's China
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Division. Net sales for our domestic tobacce business totaled
¥3.362.4 bilion in the year ended March 31, 2008, a decrease of
¥539 bilion, or 1.6%, from the previous year. The sales volume of
JT's tabacco products i Japan decreased by 7.2 billon cigarettes, or
4.1%, from the previous year to 167.8 billion cigareties (see note).
The sales volume declined due to the continued decrease in total
cigarette demand caused by factors such as: the aging Japanese pop-
ulation, growing consciousness of health risks associated with smok-
ing, tightened smoking'regulations, and revision of retail pnces based
on a hike in the tobacco excise tax implemented in July 2006, Our
market share increased by 0.1 percentage points compared with
the previous year, to 6+.9%. Nei sales (excluding excise tax) per
1,000 cigarettes increased by ¥67, or 1.7%. from the previous year
to ¥4057, mainly due 1o a hike in unit sales prices caused by the



revision of retail prices.

Hote: OQur dorrestic sales volure includes 3.5 billion cigareties sold in domestc
duty-free markets and in the China, Hong Kong and Macau markets,
which are covered by JT's China Division.

* International Tobacco Business

Net sales for our international tobacco business totaled ¥2.540 billion,
an increase of ¥1,640.3 bilion, or 164.1%. from the previous year. The
sales volume of our international tobacco business increased by 1455
bilion cigarettes, or 60.6%. 1o 385.6 billion cigarettes, thanks mainly to
the acquisition of Galfaher and strong dermand for GFBs, which we are
prieritizing as the driver of our profit growth. The sales volume of
GFBs increased by 58 billien cigarettes, or 40%, to 203.2 billion ciga-
rettes. The increase was attributable to brisk sales of Winston in
Russia, Ukraine, Turkey and Spain and of Camel in Spain, France. kaly
and Russia, as well as the addition to our collection of GFBs of Benson
& Hedpes and Silk Cut. sold mainly in Britain and Ireland, and LD,
Sobranie and Glarmour, sofd mainty in Russia, Ukraine and Kazakhstan.
Sales dencminated in foreign currencies are first converted into dollar
terms and then into yen terms based on the average exchange rate
for the relevant accounting penod. Sales in dollar terms increased due
o an expansion i the sales volurne of GFBs as well as the acquisition
of Gallaher, Sales in yen terms increased due in part 10 the yen's
depreciation against the dollar,

The |2-month average exchange rate between the Japanese yen
and the U5. dollar that was used for the conversion of sales for the
yearr ended March 3!, 2008 was ¥(17.85 to $1.00, compared with
¥116.38 to $1.00 for the year ended March 31, 2007.

+ Pharmaceurical Business

Net sales for our pharmaceutical business increased by ¥3.6 billion,
or 79%, from the previous fiscal year to ¥49.1 billion in the year
ended March 31, 2008, A decreasc in royalty revenue from
Viracept, an anti-HIV drug. was more than offset by the mileslone
revenue refated to the progress made in the development of the
anti-dyslipidemia agent |TT-705, licensed tc the Roche Group in
October 2004, and an increase in Torli Pharmaceutical's safes.

* Foods Business

MNet sales for our foods business increased by ¥49.9 billion, or
[7.4%. from the previous year to ¥3346.4 billion. Sales of beverage
products increased by ¥4.2 billion, or 2.2%, to ¥194.9 bilion. We
have steadily expanded our beverage business, mainly through the
vending machine operations of Japan Beverage Inc., a |T subsidiary.
Sales of processed foods increased by ¥45.7 billion, or 47.7%. from
the previous year 1o ¥1-41.5 billion, The impact of faod poisoning
cases caused by frozen foods contaminated with pesticide was
more than ofiset by the integration of the Katokichi Group.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in the year ended March 31, 2008 increased by
¥1.384.2 billion, or 360%, from the previcus year to ¥5228.% billion,
mainly due to the inclusion of Callaher's results in those of our inter-

national tobacco business and an increase in raw materials costs in
our domestic tobacco business. These factors were partially offset by
a decrease in the sales velume of the domestic tobacco business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the year ended
March 31, 2008 increased by ¥157.6 billion, or 26.6%. from the pre-

" vious year to ¥750.2 billion. The increase was atuibutable to the

acquisition of Gallaher and an increase in sales promotion expenses
in our domestic tobacco business.

Operating Income

As a result of the above factors, operating income in the year
ended March 31, 2008 increased by ¥98.6 bilion, or 29.7%. from
the previous year to ¥430.6 bilion. Operating income by business
segment was as follows:

» Domestic Tobacco Business

Operating income for our domestic tobacce business in the year
ended March 31, 2008 decreased by ¥23.0 billon, or 9.1%, from
the previous vear to ¥222.3 billion. The decrease was atnbutable
mainly 10 a decline in the sales volume and ncreases in sales pro-
motion expenses and raw materials costs.

+ International Tobacco Business

Operating income for our intermational tobacco business in the year
ended March 31, 2008 increased by ¥124.3 bilkon, or 153.3%, from
the previous year to ¥203.4 billion, mainly due to the acquisition of
Gallaher. A decline in the exchange rate of the Japanese yven against
the U.S. dollar contribuled to the increase in profit in yen terms.

* Pharrmaceutical Business

Our pharmaceutical business recorded an operating loss of ¥3.6 bi-
licn in the year ended March 31, 2008, representing an improve-
ment of ¥1.6 billion in the operating balance from the previous vear,
An increase in R&D expenses, including a down payment made for
Keryx's hyperphosphatemia drug, was more than offset by the mile-
stone revenue related to the progress made in the development of
the anti-dyslipidemia agent JTT-705, ficensed to the Roche Group.

* Foods Business

Operating incorme for our foods business in the year ended March
31. 2008 decreased by ¥6.0 tillion, or 20.1%, from the previous
vear to ¥0.7 billion. The decrease was attnbutable to an increase in
raw materials costs and goodwill amortizauon related to the acquisi-
tion of the Katokichi Group.

+ Others

Operating income for our other businesses in the year ended March
31, 2008 increased by ¥1.1 bilion, or 1 2.0%, from the previous year to
¥104 bilion mainly due 1o an increase in real estate rental revenue.

Other Expenses/Income (on a net basis)
We booked other expenses totaling ¥57.9 billion (on a net basis) in

the year ended March 31, 2008, a deterioration of ¥63.1 biion from
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the previous years net income of ¥5.2 billion, This reflecied increases
in interest payments on borrewings and bonds related to the acquis-
tion of Gallaher, exchange losses, losses on securities holdings of a
consolidated subsidiary, an increase in costs related to the introduction
of age-verifying cigarette vending machines, rationalization costs result-
ing from progress in the integration of cur international tabacco busi-
ness, an improverment in the balance of profits and losses on the sale
of fixed assets, and costs refaled to the withdrawal of some frozen
foods products in response to cases of pesticide contamination,

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests

As a result of the above factors, income before income taxes and
minonty interests in the year ended March 31, 2008 increased by
¥35.4 billion, or 10.5%, from the previous year to ¥372.6 billion.

Income Taxes

Income taxes in the year ended March 31, 2008 increased by ¥7.0
billion, or 5.7%, from the previous year to ¥128.4 billion. The actual
effective tax rae in the year ended March 31, 2008 decreased by
£.55 points to 34.45%. mainty due to a rise in the proportion of
profits earmed in overseas markets, where the effective tax rates are
relatively low.

Income before Minority Interests

Incorne before minorily interests in the year ended March 31, 2008
increased by ¥28.4 billon, or 13.2%, from the previous year to ¥244.2
billion. Minority interests in the year ended March 31, 2008 increased
by ¥0.5 bilkon, or 13.2%, firom the previous year 1o ¥5.5 billon.

Net Income

As a result of the above factors, net income in the year ended
March 31, 2008 increased by ¥27.9 biflion, or 13.3%, from the pre-
vious year to ¥238.7 billion.

Year Ended March 3}, 2007 Compared with Year Ended March
31, 2006

Net Sales

Net sales in the year ended March 31, 2007 decreased by ¥131.7
billion, or 2.8%, from the previous year to ¥4,769.4 bilon. The net
sales amounts indicated below represent the amounts excluding
inter-segment transactions,

= Domestic Tobacco Business

Net sales for our domestic tobacco business are compnsed of domes-
tic sales (including dury-free sales) of tobacco products manufactured
by the [T Group in and outside Japan, domestic sales of products man-
ufactured by foreign tobacco manufacturers and distributed by our
subssichanes as wholesalers, and sales in the China, Hong Kong and
Macau markets, which are covered by JT's China Division. Net sales
for our domestic tobacco business in the year ended March 31, 2007
totaled ¥3,416.3 billion, an increase of ¥1 1.0 billion, or 0.3%, from the
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previous year. The sales volume of |T's tobacco products in Japan in
the year ended March 31, 2007 decreased by 14.5 billion cigarettes, or
7.7%, from the previous vear 1o 1749 billion cigarettes. The sales vol-
ume dedlined despite the positive effects of the introduction of JT1
products such as Camel, Winston and Salem nto Japan in May 2005,
mainly due to the continued decrease in the total tobacco demand
caused by the aging |apanese population. growing consciousness of
health risks associated with smoking. tightened smoking regulations
and a revision of retuil prices based on a hike in the tobacco excise lax
implerented in July 2006. The decline also reflected the termination
of the licensing agreement for Marlboro products in Japan at the end
of April 2005. Our market share decreased by 1.6 percentage ponts
to 61.8%, while net sales (excluding excise tax) per 1000 cgarenies
increased by ¥126, or 3.3%, from the prevous year 1o ¥3990 due 10
a hike in unit sales prices caused by the revision of retail prices.

The sales volume of tabacco products in [apan. excluding
Mariboro praducts and including Camel, Winston and Satern {on a
like-for-like basis for comparabibty), in the year ended March 31,
2007 decreased by | 1.9 bilion cigarettes. or 6.4%. from the previ-
ous year, while market share declined 0.7 percentage poinis. Net
sales (excluding excise tax) per 1.000 cigarettes in the vear ended
March 31, 2007 increased by ¥141, or 3.7%. from the prewvious year.
Nete: Our dormestic sales volume includes 3.4 billon agarettes sold i domestic

duty-free markets and in the China. Hang Koag and Macaw markets,

which arg covered by [T's Chira Drasion.
* International Tobacco Business
Nst sales for our intemational tobacco business in the year ended
March 31. 2007 totaled ¥999.7 billion, an increase of ¥118.5 billion,
or 134% from the previous vear. The sales volume of our witema-
tional tobacco business in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased
by 19.8 billion cigarettes, or $.0%. to 240.1 bitlion cigarettes due
mainly to strang demand for GFBs, an which we are pricritizing as
the driver of our profit growth. The sales volume of GFBs in the year
ended March 31, 2007 increased by 15.3 billion cigarettes, or 1 1.4%,
from the previous year to 149.1 billion cigareties. The increase was
attributable to brisk sales of Camel in laly and France. of YWinston in
Russia, Spain, lran, Turkey and Ukraine and of Mild Seven i Russia.
The total sales volume and the GFB sates volume of owr internation-
al tobacco business excluding sales in the Japanese market (on a like-
for-like basis for comparability) in the year ended March 31, 2007
increased by 22.7 billion cigarettes, or 10.4%, and by 17.9 billion ciga-
rettes, or |3.6%, rom the previsus year, respectively. Sales denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are first converted into dollar terms and
then into yen terms based on the average exchange rate for the rel-
evant accounting period. Sales in dollar terms increased due 10 an
increase in the sales volume of GFBs, among other factors, despite
the negative effects of a change in the accounting method used and
intense price competition in the Spanish market. Sales in yen terms
increased duc in part to the yen's depreciation against the dollar.

The |2-month average exchange rate botween the Japanese yen



and the U.S. dollar that was used for the conversicn of sales in the
year ended March 31, 2007 was ¥116.38 to $1.00. compared with
¥110.26 10 $1.00 in the year ended March 31, 2008

* Pharmaceutical Business

Net sales for our pharmaceutical business in the year ended March 31,
2007 decreased by ¥38 bilion, or 7.7%, from the previous year 1o
¥455 bilion. Although there were one-time revenues related to the
licensing aut of a pre-clinical tial stage cornpound to GlaxoeSmithKline
and a pre-clinical trial stage antibody drug candidate to Medimmune,
royalty revenue from the anti-HIV drug Viracept declined due to
increased competition, and sales at subsidiary Toni Pharmaceutical
decreased due to the effects of the revision of drug prices and other
factors. The decline in net sales also reflected the absence of the one-
time revenue from the licensing-out of the anti-HIV agent JTK-303 to
Gilead Sciences. which had boosted sales the previous year.

+» Foods Business

Net sales for our foods business in the year ended March 31, 2007
increased by ¥8.2 billon, or 29%, from the previous year to ¥286,6
billion. Net sales in the beverage sector in the year ended March 31,
2007 increased by ¥5.5 bilfien, or 2.9%, to ¥190.8 bilion due mainly 1o
steady expansion of the beverage vending machine sales channel and
increased sales of the Roots brand of canned coffee. Net sales in the
processed foods sector in the year ended March 3+, 2007 increased
by ¥2.7 billon, or 2.9%, 1o ¥95.8 billion as a result of the expansion of
operations for frozen processed foods and chilled processed foods.

* Others

Net sales for our ather businesses in the year ended March 31, 2007
decreased by ¥2.| billion, or 8.8%, from the previous year to ¥21.4
billion, due mainly to a decrease in the number of consolidated sub-
sidiaries as a result of ihe transfer of their shares 1o other parties.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by
¥1I07 bilion, or 3.0%, from the previous year 1o ¥3,844.8 billion,
principally as a result of the hike in the tobacco excise tax imple-
mented in July 2006, the sales volume increase of our internationat
lobacco business. and the expansion of our foods business. The
effects of these factors were partially offset by a decrease in the
sales volume of our domestic tobacco business, an improvement in
the balance of evaluation gains and losses on our holdings of leaf
tobacco due to an increase 11 the use of domestic-grown tobacce,
and the /mpact of job reductions resulting from an early retirement
program introduced in the previous year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Seiling, general and administrative expenses in the vear ended
March 31, 2007, decreased by ¥4.0 billion, or 0.7%. from the prewvi-
ous year to ¥592.6 billion. The decrease was attnbutable mainly to
factors such as: job reductions resulling from the early retirement
program introduced in the previous year, a decrease in sales pro-

motion ¢osts due to a change in the method of booking sales n our
international tobacco business and & decrease in royalty payments
as a result of the termination of the domestic manuiactunng license
for Marboro products at the end of April 2005. However. these
positive factors were partiafly offset by a rise in R&D costs for our
pharmaceutical business and an increase in amortization expenses
due to & change in the amortization pericds applied to a portion of
the trademarks held by our intemational tobacco business.

Operating Income

As a resut of the above faciors, operating income in the year
ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥25.0 bilion, or 8.2%, from the
previous year to ¥332.0 billion. Operating income by business seg-
ment was as follows:

+ Domestic Tobacce Business

Operating income for our domestic tobacco business in the year
ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥25.3 billicn, or 11.5%. from
the previous year to ¥245.4 billion. The increase was mainly attnb-
utable to factors such as: a nise in unit sales prices due to the rew-
sion of retail prices based on a hike in the tobacco tax mplemented
in Juty 2006, job reductions resulting from the early retirement pro-
gram introduced in the previous year, and an improvernent in the
balance of evaluation gains and losses on holdings of feaf tobacco
due 1o an increase in the use of domestic-grown tobacco. These
positive factors were partially offset by the decrease in sales volume.
« International Tobacco Business

Operating income for our intermational tobacco business in the year
ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥10.1 bilion, or 14.2%. from
the previous year to ¥81.1 billion. This was primarily due to brisk
sales of the GFBs, which we are prioritizing as the dnver of our
profit growth. However, the brisk sales of the GFBs were partally
offset by the impact of the transfer of [T1's Japan business to our
domestic tobacco business in May 2005, intense price competition
in the Spanish markel. an increase in the cost of mnvesiment to
boost our production capacity, and a rise in amortizallon expenses
due to a change in the amortization periods applied 1o a portion of
the trademarks held by our international tobacco business. The
decline in the exchange rate of ihe Japanese yen against the US.
dollar contributed to the increase in profit in yen terms.

« Pharmaceutical Business

Our phammaceutical business recorded an aperating foss of 1.2 til-
lion ven in the year ended March 31, 2007, representing a detenora-
tion of ¥6.1 billion from the previous year in the operating balance.
This was attributable mainly to a decrease In net sales ang an
increase n R&D expenses due to progress in our R3D actrates.

* Foods Business

Operating income for our foods pusiness n the year ended March
31, 2007 ingreased by ¥0.2 billion, or 6.0%, from the previous year
to ¥6.7 billion. This was due mainly to an improvement in marging
resulting from an expansion of the business. However, the

T Annual Report 2008 6l




improved margins were partially offset by an increase in fixed costs
such as personnel expenses,

* Others

Operating income for our other businesses in the year ended
March 31, 2007 increased by ¥0.7 billion, or 7.6%, from the previ-
ous vear 10 ¥9.3 billion. The increase was due mainly to a rise in
real estate rental revenue. The increased real estate rental revenue
was partially offset by a decling in the number of consolidated sub-
sidiaries as a result of the transfer of their shares to other parties.

Other Expenses/lncome {on a net basis)

We booked net income of ¥5.2 bilion on a net basis in the year
ended March 31. 2007, an improvement of ¥1 1.2 billion from the pre-
vious year's net expenses. Although we incurred costs related to cur
rency hedging and bridge loans related to the acquisition of Galtaher,
as well as expenses relaled 1o the introduction of vending machines
with an age verification function, we benefited from an increase in net
gains on the sales and disposal of fixed assets, a decrease in impair-
ment losses, and a decrease in business restructuning cosis.

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests
As a result of the above factors, income before income taxes and
minority interests in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In our financial management, we stve io mainain a stable financat
base that enables the implementation of capital expenditures, the
acquisition of owtside resources, and R&D activities in a cost-efficent
manner, n order to achieve business expansion without being affect-

Cash Flows
» Overview

¥36.2 billion, or | 20%, from the previous year 1o ¥337.2 bifion

Income Taxes

ncome taxes in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by ¥26.5
billion, or 27.9%, from the previous year to ¥121.4 billion. The actu-
al effective tax rate in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased by
4.5 percentage points to 36.0%. This was due mainly to a rise in the
effective tax rate applied in Japan due to the termination of tax
deductions for 1T investrments and reduction of tax credit for R&D
expenses. Also, the increase was partly a reaction to the prewvious
year's temporary drop. which resulted from the application of
deferred tax accounting 10 some foreign conschdated subsidiaries,

Income before Minority Interests

Income before minonity interests in the year ended March 31, 2007
increased by ¥97 bilion, or 4.7%, from the previous year to ¥215.8
bilion. Minority interests in the year ended March 31, 2007 increased
by ¥0.5 billion, or 10.2%, from the previous year to ¥5.0 billion.

Net Income

As a result of the above factors, net income in the year ended
March 3t, 2007 increased by ¥9.2 billion, or 4.6%, from the prev-
ous year to ¥2 108 hillion,

ed by short-term fluctuations in revenues. We raise the necessary
funds pnncipally from cash fiows provided by operations, borvowing
from financial insuitutions and the issuance of long-term bonds.

As of March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2008, cash and cash equivalents totaled ¥1,179.5 billion and ¥2150 billion, respectively.

For years ended March 31

Mitlions of yen SI g.u::hor’s
) ) 2006 2007
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 150343 ¥ 435958
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities {26,358) (149.652)
Net cash used in financing activities (48,133) (32,635)
Effect of exchange rate changes and other 15,205 5,749
Net increase in cash and cash equiva!e:n{s o ) o T 9 05'5 - 23}3?86
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the period 829,087 920,142
¥ 920,142 ¥ 1,179,522

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Year Ended March 31, 2008 Compared with Year Ended March
31,2007

Net cash generated by operating activities was ¥1450 billion in the
vear ended March 31, 2008, down from ¥436.0 billion in the year
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ended March 31, 2007. The acquisition of Gaflaher has enhanced
the ability of our tobacco business to generate cash flows in a stable
manner, However, this was more than offset by the one-time factor
of an increase in the payment of lobatco excise tax. In the year




ended March 31, 2008, we paid |13 months' worth of tobacco
axcise tax compared with the || months worth paid in the previ-
ous vear, because the tax payment for the last month of the previ-
ous year was carried over to the following year as a result of the
last day of that month falling on a bank holiday.

Nel cash used in investment activities in the year ended March
31, 2008 was ¥1,668.6 billion compared with ¥149.7 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2007. The increase mainly reflected the
acquisition of shares in Gallaher Plc and Katokichi Co.

Net cash generated by financing activities was ¥519.0 billion,
compared with ¥32.6 billion in net cash used in such activilies in the
year ended March 31, 2007. This was mainly due to the issuance of
bonds and borrowings from banks made for the purpose of raising
funds for the acquisition of Galtaher.

Year Ended March 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended March
31,2006

Met cash generated by operating activities was ¥436.0 billion in the

Liquidity and Fund Needs

year ended March 31, 2007, compared with ¥150.3 billion in the
vear ended March 31, 2006, The increase was mainly due to the
ability of our tobacco business to generate cash flows in 2 stable
manner, an increase tn tobacco excise taxes payable as the last day
of the year ended March 31, 2007 fell on a bank hobday, and a
decrease in the payment of retirement benefits related to a volun-
tary retirement program.

MNet cash used in investment activities was ¥[49.7 bilion in the
vear ended March 31, 2007, compared wath ¥26.4 bilhon used w
the year ended March 31, 2006. An increase in proceeds from the
sale and redemption of securities was mere than oifset by an
increase in outlays due 1o the acquisition of shares in Gallaher,

Nel cash used in financing activities was ¥32.6 bition n the year
ended March 31, 2007, compared with ¥48.1 billion in the year
ended March 31, 2006. The decrease in net cash used was pnmarily
due to short-tenm borrowing by our subsidiaries, which offset an
increase in dividend payments.

We need liguidity mainly for capital expenditures, working capital. acquisition of outside resources and debt repayments, as well as payments

of interest, dividends and income faxes.
» Capital Expenditures

Captal expenditures include outlays on machinery and equipmen: for factories. trademarks and other tangible and intangible assets necessary
for enhancing the productivity of our factories and other facilities, strengthening our competitiveness, and operating in vanous business fields.

For years ended March 31

Capital expenditures

Millions of yen LTISI‘H:EI,I:L
2006 2007
¥ 98927 ¥ (02,147

In the year ended March 31, 2008, we made capital expenditures
totaling ¥129.% billion. In our domestic Lobacco business, we spent
¥57.2 bilon, mainly on measures to streamline manufacturing
processes. strengthen our ability to respond flexibly to supply and
demand fluctuations with regard to an increasingly diverse range of
oroducts, develop new products and replace vending machines. In
our intemational tabacco business. we invested ¥48.4 billion for the
purpose of expanding our production capacity. In our phanmaceuti-
cal busingss, we spent ¥4.3 bilion on the construction of produc-
tion and research facilities, while we invested ¥6.0 billion in our
foods business, mainly for enhancing preduction facilities. In our
other businesses, we made capital expenditures of ¥14.8 billion.
mainly for real estate development

For the year ended March 31, 2007. we made capital expendi-
tures tataling ¥102.1 billion. n our domestic tobacco business, we
invested ¥55.2 billion, principally to streamline manufacturing
processes, strengthen our ability to respond flexibly to supply and
demand fluctuations with regard 1o an increasingly diverse range of
products, enhance development of new products and install new
vending machires. in our intermational tobacco business, we invested

¥32.0 billion, mainly to increase our production capacity. In our phar-
maceutical business, we invested ¥3.0 billion to improve productian
and R&D facilities. In our foods business, we invested ¥4.9 billion,
primarily to strengthen production facitities. In our other businesses,
we invested ¥8.1 billion, principally 10 improve sates factives,

In the year ended March 31, 2006, we made capital expenditures
totaling ¥98.9 billion. In our domestic and international tobacco
businesses, we invested ¥75.0 billion and ¥25.0 billion, respectively.
mainly to streamiine manufacturing processes, strengthen our ability
to respond flexibly to supply and demand fluctuations with regard
to an increasingly diverse range of products, and enhance new
product development In our pharmaceultical business, we invested
¥2 | pillion for the improvement of production and R&D faciites
and other puposes. In our foods business. we invesied ¥4.6 bilkon,
primanly 1o strengthen preduction facilities. In our other businesses,
we invested ¥19.3 billion, principally for real estate developrment.
The amount of capital expenditures made for our domeslic lobac-
co business includes spending on the acquisiton of gocdwill in refa-
tion to the integration of Japanese operations acquired from foreign
tobacco business subsidiaries. The amount of spending on the
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goodwill, together with the amount of other internal transactions,
wias excluded from the total capital expenditures.

For the year ending March 31, 2009, we plan to make capital
expenditures totaling approximately ¥149.0 billion. In our domestic
tobacco business, we plan to invest approximately ¥63.0 billion to
imprave productivity and reduce ¢osts, while in our international
tobacco business, we plan to spend approximately ¥56.0 billicn to
increase production capacity. We have earmarked approximately
¥3.0 billion in investment for our pharmaceutical business to
improve the R&D, approximately ¥23.0 billion for our foods busi-
ness to enhance production facifities and approximately ¥4.0 billion
for our other businesses to carry out real estate development.

Qur actual capital expenditures may differ significantly from the
ptanned figures as a result of a number of factors including, but not
imited o, those discussed i the "Major Risks of Businesses.”

» Warking Capital

We nced working capital mainly lor purchasing raw materials,
including leal tobacco and other inventory iterns, the payment of
salartes and wapges, sales expenses, advertising and promotion
expenses, tax payments and R&D expenses.

* Acquisition of Qutside Resources

As necessary, we may iavest in or acquire companies deemed to
have the potential to help us diversify our cash flow sources and
improve our profitability.

+ Dividends

We need sufficient liquidity to make our scheduled dividend pay-
ments. As our basic dividend policy. we aim 10 achieve a conselidat-
ed divdend payout raue of 20% as a first step, with the impact of
goodwill amortization excluded firom the net income used as a basis
for calculating the payout ratio. We will continue to provide a com-
petitive level of retum to shareholders in light of the implementation
status of our mid- 1o long-term growth strategies and the outlook of
our consolidated financial results. with a view to increasing our divi-
dend payments further.

* Stock Repurchases

A repurchase of our own shares requires cash outlays. In order 10
repurchase our own shares in a flexible manner, we amended the
Artcles of Incorporation at the general shareholders’ meeting held
on June 24, 2004 so that we could make repurchases based on a
resolution made by the Beard of Directors. As of March 31, 2008,
we held 419,920 shares of common slock as treasury stock, We
may continue 10 hold the repurchased shares as treasury stock or
use them for share retirement or for other purposes. Stock repur-
chases provide our management with an additional option for
increasing flexibility and speed in capital management in order 1©
acapl to a rapidly changing business environment. We will determine
the tming, scale and manner of any further repurchase in an appro-
priate manner in light of our business needs and market trends.
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Capital Resources and Use

We have historically had, and expect to continue to have. significant
cash flows from operating activities. Cash provided by operating
activities was ¥436.0 billion in the year ended March 31, 2007 and
¥[45 billon in the year ended March 31, 2008, We expect that
cash generated by operating activilies will continue to cover capiial
expenditures and debt repayments.

For substantial capital needs related to the acquisition of outside
resources, we may utilize debt financing, primarily bomowings from
financial institutions or the issuance of bonds, as needed. (Please see
“Long and Short-term Debt” below.)

Equity financing, including warrants and bonds with warrants,
requires the approval of the Minister of Finance under the [apan
Tobacco Inc. Law. Revisions 10 the Japan Tobacco inc. Law that
took effect on April 19, 2002 provide us with the flexibilily to issue
new shares upon the approval of the Minister of Finance to the
extent that the Japanese government retains more then one-third of
the outstanding shares in JT. In the future, we may choose to raise
capital through stock issuance, which would dilute the value of
existing shareholders” equity heldings.

Long and Short-term Debt
* Long-term Debt
Qur long-term liabilities consist mainly of long-term debt and liabii-
ties for retirement benefits. As of March 31, 2008, long-term debt
was ¥1,118.7 billion, of which bonds accounted for ¥716.7 billion.
Our remaining long-term aebt {including the current portion) con-
sisted of loans from banks and ke msurance companies. Annual
interest rates applicable to yen-denomunated long-term bank loans
outstanding as of March 31. 2007 and 2008 ranged from 1.50% 1o
5.20% and 0.65% to 6.17%, respectively. Annual interest rates for
long-term loans denorminated in other currencies ranged fram
6.30% to 8.37% for those outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and
from 2.35% to 9.20% for those outstanding as of March 31, 2008,
Maturities of long-term debt (including the current portion) as of
March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Millions of

Millions of yen U3, dollars

For years ended March 31

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 and thereafter

Total




As of March 31, 2008, our long-term debt was rated Aa3 by
Moody’s Investors Service, Ine, and A+ by Standard & Poor's
Raungs Services. These ratings are among the highest ratings for
internationat tobacco companies. By maintaining high credit ratings.
we can finance farge sums of capital at relatively low cost from third
parties as needed. Our ability to maintain high ratings is affected by
a number of factors such as developments in cur major business
markets, the quality of execution of cuwr business strategies, and
general economic trends in Japan that are beyend our control. The
credit ratings are not recommendations for purchasing, selling or
holding securities. The ratings could be withdrawn or revised at any
time. Each rating should be evaluated separately from other ratings.
Under the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law. bonds issued by Japan Tobacco
fnc. are secured by statutory preferential rights to the property of
{apan Tobacco Inc. These rights give bondholders precedence over
unsecured creditors in seeling repayment, with the exception of
national and local taxes and other statutory obligations.

in Septernber 2002, in order to diversify our capital resources
and enhance our debt financing capabilities, we established & medi-
um-term note program in the Eurobond market that allows us to
issue up to 35 hillion. We may issue notes under this program, as
needed, based on a resolution adopted by the Beard of Directors.

* Short-term Debt

We take in shart-term leans from banks and other financial institu-
tions. Short-term {oans tolaled ¥53.7 biliion as of March 31, 2007,
including ¥53.5 billion in foreign currency-denominated loans, and
¥269.0 pillion as of March 31, 2008, including ¥162.4 billion in for-
eign currency-denominated loans. Annual interest rates applicable
10 yen denominated short-term bank loans ranged from 1.625% to
1.875% as of March 31, 2007 and from 0.01% to 7.047% as of
March 31. 2008 Annual interest rates applicable to short-term
loans denominated in other currencies ranged from 4.40% 10
1600% as of March 31, 2007 and from 3.69% to {2.70% as of
March 31, 2008,

As a japanese commercial cusiom, short-term and long-term
bank loans are extended under general agreements stipulating that,
under certain circumstances, collateral or guarantees for preseni
and future debts should be provided upon the request of the bank.
and that the bank shall have the right, as the debt obligations
become due or in the event of default, to offset cash deposits
against debts due to it. We have never been requested to provide
such collateral or guarantee.

Derivative Transactions

We are exposed 10 market risks principally from changes in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity and debt secunty prices.
Our interest rate risk exposures primarily relate to financing activi-
ties. Our foreign currency exposures relate to buying, selling and
financing in currencies other than the local currencies of cur opera-

tions. in order to reduce foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate
risk, we use denvative financial instruments including interest rate
swaps. foreign currency forward contracts, currency swaps and
option contracts, We do not hedge against price fluctuations of
debt and equity securiues.

We have risk management policies and procedures designed to
mitigate the risks anising from the use of derivative financial instru-
ments. We utilize derivatives sclely for nsk management purposes.
and no derivatives are held or issued for trading purposes. As part of
our risk managerment procedures, we identfy the specfic nsks and
transactions 10 be hedged and the appropriate hedging instruments
1o be used to reduce the risk, and assess the correlation between
the hedged risks and the hedging instruments. The effectveness of
our hedping activities is assessed in accordance with our nsk manage-
ment policies and practice manual for hedging transactons.

We are exposed Lo credit-related risk in the event of defaull by
counterparties to denvative financial instruments. However, we
strive ta mitigate this nsk by limiting counterparties to internationil
financial institutions with high credit ratings deemed to have no sig-
nificant nsk of default.

We use interest rate swaps for the purpose of managing interest
rate nsk in relation to financing activities. Interest rate swap agree-
ments that qualify for hedge accounting under fapanese GAAP and
meet specific matching critera are not measured at market value,
but the differential to be paid or received under the swap agree-
ment is accnued and included in interest expenses.

We use fareign currency forward contracis. currency swaps and
currency option conlracts for the purpose of managing the nsk of
fluctuations in fareign exchange rates on our borrowings, bonds and
forecasted transactions in foreign currencies. Gains or losses ansing
from changes in the value of the contracts that quaify for hedge
accounting are deferred and recognized in the period in which cor-
responding losses or gains from transactions being hedged by such
contracts are recognized. On the other hand, hedging contracts
mainly related to our intemational tobacco operations do not gqual-
fy for hedge accounting and therefore we recognize changes in the
value of foreign currency derivative instruments against earnings in
the period in which they occur. This could result in gains or kosses
from fluctuations in exchange rates refated to a denvative contract
being recognized in a different penod from the ane in which the
gains or losses expected from the underlying {orecasted transac-
tions are recognized.

For information about the contract and notional amount of inter-
est rate swaps. foreign currency forward contracts and currency
option and other derivatre contracts outstanding as of March 31,
2007 and 2008 that did not quahfy for hedge accounting, see Note
I8 1o the audited consolidated financial statements included in this
annual report.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / March 31, 2007 and 2008

Millions of

Millians of yan US. dollars {Note 2)

Asvets ) 2007
Current assers:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) ¥ 1,179.522
Short-term investments {Note 6) 6,167
Trade notes and accounts receivable 149,385
Inventories (Note 7) 417,276
QOther current assets (Note %) 89,997
Allgwance for doubtiul accounts (4.539)
" Total current assets 1,840,808
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8):
Land 131,818
Buildings and structures 598,558
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 567,495
Tocls 203214
Construction in progress 28212
T Total 1529.297
Accumulated depreciation (928861)
Net property, plant and equipment _605%35 )
investments and other assets:
Investment securities {Note 6) 260.2H1
Investments i and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 2,725
Trademarks 154,981
Googwill 360,682
Deferred 1ax assets (Note 9) 75457
Other assets 70962
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,231)
Allowance for loss on investments (368)
Total investments and other assets 923419
Toual ¥ 3.364.663

See notes 1o consohdated financial statermnents,
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Milligas of yen

Liabiliies and Equity 2007
Current iabilities:
Short-term bark loans (Note 8) ¥ 53706
Current portion of long-term debi (Note 8) 10,550
Tobacco excise taxes payable 337540
Trade notes and accounts payable 129,765
Other payable (Note 11) 93568
Income taxes payable (Mote 9) 60,108
Consumption taxes payable 35756
Other current liabilities (Notes 8,9 and 11) 91,803
© " Toral current liabilities ) j 1 3'1%_
Non-current liabilicies:
Long-term debt (Note 8) 155,313
Liabilities for retirement benefits (Note | 1) 282,377
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9} 43436
Other non-current liabilities (Motes 8 and 1 #) 46,025
Total non-current liabilities o B 526,851
Commiuments and contingent liabilities (Note 15)
Equity {Notes 3 (p) ang 12):
Common stock — authorized, 40,000,000 shares;
issued, 10,000,000 shares in 2007 and 2008 100,000
Capital surplus 736,400
Stock acquisition rights (Note 10) —
Retained eamings 1,158,337
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 33330
Deferred gain on derivatives under hedge accounting 14,580
Pension liability adjustment of foreign consolidated subsidianies {15,560}
Foreign currency translation adjustments 7,745
Treasury stock, at cost — 419,920 shares in 2007 and 2008 {74,578}
Total 1,960,254
Minority interests 64,362
i Total Equity 2024616
Torat ¥ 3,364,663

Milliens of
U.5. doltars (Note 2}
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. Consolidated Statements of Income

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consclidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Millions of yen

Millions of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2006 2007

Net sales ¥ 4637657 ¥ 4769387
Cost of sales 3,734,074 3.844.768
" Gross profit T T ;03.583- - 924.6_IT9 )
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Nctes 10 and 13} 596,637 592,628

" Operating income T 306946 331991
Other income {expenses):
Interest and dividend income 5910 12,103
Gain on disposition of property, plant ang equipment-net 22881 33952
Loss on impainment of tong-lived assets (Note 16) (11.439) {2.712)
Interest expense (Note 8) (5.776) (6940}
Write-down of investment securities {1 —
Business restructuring costs (Notes | | and 16) (8.00%) —
Cther-net (Note 16) (9.509) {31,198}

Other income (expensegtnet (5953) 5,205
;1?(;1‘;1; Bfef;re.irn-c‘oﬁwe Taxes an:r:ﬂ-in;;y Interests 300593 337,196
Income taxes (Note 9):
Current 49,686 84,481
Deferred 45210 36924
Total income taxes - 94,896 121,405
I:c—om_e ééfo;e_MihoriEy-“i;:e:e;E o T ) 206.0‘;7- i %375L79I- )
Minority interests 4,555 5019
Netincome T ¥ 0150 ¥ 20072
Yen U5, dollars
2006 2007

Amounts per share:
Basic net income {Notes 3 (o} and 19) ¥ 105085 ¥ 22001
Dituted net income (Notes 3 (o) and 19) — -—
Cash dividends applicable to the year (Note 3 (o)) 16,000 4,000

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Theusands Millions of yen
- i Pension
Nurmber of Stock Uncaod  DSeTe labily  porgn
sharesof Common  Capitl  Acquistion  Retained  ganon oﬂ;m - g’gg‘ ey Treasury Tow Minonty Total
common  stock surplus Ruphts eamings  avalable-for- undior hedge consokdated trangdation stock INLETests equity
stock (Note 1) sae secueTyes sctouurg  Subsdines adusiments
R . B . {Nowe | 1}
Balance, March 31,2005 2000 ¥100000 ¥736400 ¥ — ¥ BUS9YT Wi6BEB ¥ — ¥ —  ¥(B6A433) ¥(74578) ¥i498204 ¥ — ¥1498204
Net income — —_ — — 201542 — — — — — 201,542 — 201542
Minimum pensicn
liabikty adjustment of
foreign consolidated
subsidianes - — - — (5981} —_ — - — — (5981) — (558
Appropnatians:
Cash dwidends paid
(¥15,000 per share) - — — — (28.740) — - — — — (28.740) — (28,740)
Bonuses to directors
and corporate
auditors — — — - (236) - - — - - (236) - (236}

Net increase in

unrealized gain on

available-for-safe

securities - — — — — 1864 — — — - 18,644 — 18,644
Net change in foreign

currency tanslavon

adjustments — — — — — — — — 79.079 — /B -  7m
Batance. March 31,2006~ 2000 100000 736400 - 971512 35312 — — {7354y (74578) 1762512 — 1762512
Reclassified balance as of

March 31, 2006

{Note 3 (p)) — — — — — — — — — — - 57561 52.561
Stock split

{Notes 12 and 19) 8000 — — —_ — — — — — — — . —
Net income — — —_ — 210772 — — — — e 20772 — 210772

Mirumum pensicn
liability adjustment of
foreign consclidated
subsidiaries — — — — 9818 — — — — — 9818 — 9.8i8
Approprialions:
Cash dmdends paid
(¥9.000 per share)
for year ended 2006 — — — — {17.244) — - — — — (17.244) — (17,244}
Cash dwdends paid
(¥1,800 per share)
for interim of

year ended 2007 — — — — (17.244) — — — — - (17.244) — {17,244)
Bonuses to directors

and corporate

auditors — —_ — — 197 _ —_ — — — (197 — (197}

Adjustment to retained
carings for change
in the number of

equity method affiates —_— — — — {(80) — — — _ —_ (80) — (80}
et changes in the year — — — — — 0% 14580 (15560) 15,099 — L7 6801 18718
Balance. March 31,2007 10,000 ¥100000  ¥735400 ¥ -  ¥[IS8337 ¥33330  ¥i4530  W(I5560) ¥ 7745 ¥(74578) ¥1960254 ¥64362 W2024616
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Thousands Millians of yen
- ' ’ Pension
Nurnoer of Stock Uneaiged O by gornin
shares of Common Capitat Acqyisition Betained gain on dg-annmo:cs m aurency Teeasury Toul Minonty Totad
common  stock surplus Rights eamings av.nlaﬂe-fqr— wnder hedge consoudatexd randation stock WErests equty
stock. (Note 10) sale securities accountg
o o . . . {Note [1)
Balance, March 31,2007 10000 ¥100000 ¥736400 ¥ —  ¥[I58337 ¥ 33330 ¥ 14580 W(15560) ¥ 7745 ¥(74578) ¥196025% X362 ¥2014616
Adoption of FIN 48
(Note 3 (s)) ot
Met income
Appropriations:
Cash dividends paid
(¥4,400C per share)
Adjustment to rotained
earnings for change
in the number of
equity method
affiliates
Net changes in the year
Balance, March 31, 1008 : ' T
Millions of U.S. dollars {Nots )
Pengion
Common ] ACS{o;k Retained pibuis in on e o Treasur Minont Tota
on N € L Ol
slock m ( h%?e;:;z; eamings avmfor- m cmw ;agmﬂm?:s stockq Total lnleresl); equity
accm ?ﬁ;‘iﬂ?ﬁ
Balance. March 31, 2007 $ 998 % 7350 $— % 1560 § B3 F 145 % (155 % T % (M44) 519565 5 643§ 20208
Adoption of FIN 48
{Note 3 {5)}
Net income
Appropnations:

Cash dividends paid
(%44 per share)
Adjustment to retained
eamings for change
in the rumber of
equity method
affiliates
Net changes in the year
Balance, March 31, 2008

See notes 10 conscldated financial statements.

70



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries / Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Millions of yen Us, d’:ﬁ:t;;. %
2006 2007
Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 300,993 ¥ 337196
Adjustmeﬁts for 7 7
Income taxes paid (59.015) (57.185)
Depreciation and amortization other than goodwill 124,855 130,106
Amortization of goodwil 1,590 2537
Gain on disposition of property, plant and equipment {22,881) (33.952)
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets 11,439 2712 .
Write-down of investment securities I —
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease {increase) in trade notes and accounts receivable 765 (9.476)
Decrease {increase) in inventonies 44,091 & 171)
Increase {decrease) in tobacco excise taxes payable (13973} 160,020
Increase {decrease) in trade notes and accounts payable 20,260 (12.878)
Decrease in other payable (125,689} (22,088)
Decrease in liabilities for retirement benefiis (6,591} (21,164}
Decrease in non-current other payable (87.377) (43.142)
Other — net o i (38135) 9443
Total adjustments ST (150,650) 98,762
D ANet cash provided by operating activities 150,343 435958
-investlng Accvities: o o
Purchases of short-term investments (146,467) (332.975)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of short-term investments 122,118 386816
Purchases of invesiment secunties (2734 (158,385)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment securities 4,342 5345
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (82,850) (96.717)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 82,147 57,054
Purchases of trademarks and other assets (8.966) (7.928)
Purchases of shares of newly cansolidated subsidiaries, net of cash acquired {Note 4) (1,400) (4,085)
Other — net 7.452 i.143
Net cash used in investing activities (26,358) (149,692)
Finanging Activities: T -
Net increase in short-term bank foans 1,552 18,571
Proceeds from long-term debt — —
Repayments of long-term debt (19474) (19.840)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1o minority sharehoiders —_ 4928
Proceeds from issuance of bonds — —
Payrnent for redempticn of bonds — —
Dividends paid (28,740) (34.488)
Dividends paid to mincrity shareholders (1.468) (1,474)
Other — net {5 _(332)
MNet cash provnded by (used in) financing actlvmes ) (4;!‘35) o (32 635)
Forexgn Currcncy Tnnslauon Adjustments on Cash and Cash Equwalents o 15,205 5749
Met Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equwalents T 055 259,380
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 829,087 920,142
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year h *"¥V;20,'l:1_2.ﬁw F:‘TI_';‘??ZAZ

See notes 10 consolidated financial staterments
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. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

|.Business

Japan Tabacce Inc. (T is a joint stock corperation {kabushikikaisya)
incorporated under the corporate law of Japan (the "Corporate
Law"™) pursuant to the Japan Tobacco Inc Law (the "|T Law'}. |T and
its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group™) operate primasily in the
domestic and international tobacco businesses, the pharmaceutical
business and the foods business. In the Group'’s domestic and intema-
tional tobacco businesses, the Group develops, manufactures. distnb-

utes. and sells tobacco products, primanly cigarettes. Iy the Group's
pharmaceutical business, the Group develops, manufactures and sells
pharmaceutical products. In the Group’s foods business, the Group
develops, manufactures and sells processed foods, and develops and
sells beverages. The Group’s other business segment includes its
commercial real estate and other operations.

2.Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consclidated financial statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan ("Japanese GAAP") and in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law
(Formerly. The Japanese Secunties and Exchange Law) and its related
accounung regutations. which are different in certain respects from
application, and disclosure requirements of accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America ("US. GAAP") and
International Financial Reporting Standards. In the case of most for-
egn consclidated subsidianes. their financial slalerments are prepared
in conformity with US, GAAP (see Note 3 "Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies™ (n} Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries) and are
included in the consclidated financial statements on that basis.

In preparing these consolidated financiat statements, certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consol-

3.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a} Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2008 include
the accounts of JT and its 299 significant (157 as of Maich 31, 2006
and 153 as of March 31, 2007) subsidiaries. Consolidation of the
remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries would not have had a materi-
al effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Most foregn consolidated subsidiaries have a December 31| fiscal
year-end, which differs from the March 31 fiscal year-end of |T. Any
necessary adjustments for the three-month penod are made for
consolidation purposes.

Under the control or influence concept, thase companies in
which |T, directly or indirectly, is able 1o exercise control over oper-
ations are fully consclidated, and those cormpanies over which the
Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted
for by the equity method.

Investments in 25 material associated companies as of March 31,
2008 {11 as of March 31, 2005 and 2007) are accounted for by the
equity method. The equity method is not apphed 1o account for the
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idated fimancial statements issued domestically i order 10 present
them in a form which is mare familiar to readers outside Japan. In
addition. the notes to the consolidated financial statements include
information which 15 not required under Japanese GAAP but 15 pre-
sented herein as additional information. Certain reclassifications of
previously reported amounts have been made to conform with
classifications for the vear ended March 31, 2008,

The ¢consahidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen,
the currency of the country in which JT 1s incorporated and oper-
ates. The translations of japanese ven amounts inte ULS, dollar
amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥100.19 1o $1, the rate of
exchange at March 3t, 2008, Such translations should not be con-
strued as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into ULS. dollars at that or any other rate.

investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and the remaining associ-
ated companies, since the effect on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements would not have been material, Investments in
the unconsolidated subsidiaries and the remaining associated com-
panies are stated at cost (see {c} Securities}.

All significant inter-company balances and transacuons have been
eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized gains resulting
from inter-company transactions have been eliminated,

The excess of the cost of the Group's investments in consclidated
subsidiaries over its equity in {orior to Apnil {, 1999) or the fair value
of (from April |, 1999) the net assets purchased at the date of acqui-
sition is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill, except for that recorded at
JT International S.A. and other consolidated subsidiaries of |T
International Holding BV, (i international’’), a wholly-owned sub-
sidianes of JT (see (n) Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries). 1s amortized
on a straight-ine basis over five to twenty years. Such amoruzation
expense is included in selfing. general and adminisirative expenses.
However, nsignificant goodwill is charged 1o incorme when incured.




b} Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are all short-term, highly liquid investments that
are convertible 1o known amounts of cash and that have onginal
maiurities of ihree months or less.

c) Securities

The Group's securities are classified as held-to-maturity debt secuni-
ties or available-for-sale securities, depending on management's
holding intent. Held-to-maturity debt securities are reported at
amortized cost, Available-for-sale marketable securities are reporied
at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxas,
reported in a separate component of equity.

The cost of available-for-sale marketable securities sold is deter-
mined based on the moving-average method. In addition, com-
poungd financial instruments, including embedded dervatives which
cannot be measured separately, are reported at fai value in aggre-
gate, with these gains and losses reported in the consolidated state-
ments of income, Non-marketable available-for-sale securilies are
stated at cost determined by the moving-average method, For sig-
nificant impairment in value that is judged unrecoverable, canying
amounts of securities are reduced Lo fair value, with a resulting
charge to income. An allowance for loss on investments is recorded
10 provide for the loss on investments in certain non-marketable
equity accounted for by the cost method and is determined based
on the respective financial condition of the investees.

d} Inventories

tnventories are stated at cost determined principally by the average
cost method. In addition, leaf tobacco held by JT was subject to
annual devaluation prior 10 Apnil 1, 2008. |T no longer applies annu-
al devaluation for its leaf inventories from the year ended March 31.
2008. (see (s) Accounting Change and Note 7 “inventories™).

e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is
generally computed using the declining-balance method while the
straight-hne method is applied to buildings acquired after Aprit |,
1998. The useful lives of buildings and structures, and machinery,
equipment and vehicles are principally from 38 to 50 years and 8
years, respectively.

f) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a
Statement of Opinian, "Accounting for Impairment of Fixed
Assets”, and in October 2003 the Accounting Standards Board of
japan (“ASB]"} issued ASB) Guidance No.6, "Guidance for
Accounting Standard for Impainment of Fixed Assets” These new
pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
April 1, 2005, |T and its domestic subsidiaries (the "Domestic
Group") adopied the new accounting standard for impairment of

fixed assets as of April 1, 2005.

The Daomestic Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the carryng
amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows expecied to result from the continued use and eventual
disposition of the asset or asset group.

The impairment Joss would be measured as the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of the discounted cash flows fron the continued
use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling pice at
disposition.

g) Intangible Assets
Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, which
is calculated by the straight-line method prncipally over 10 years.

h) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax
income or loss included in the consolidated statements of income.
The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
lermporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax,
bases of assets and labilities, and tax operating loss and other credit
carry-forwards. Deferred 1axes are measured by applying currently
enacted tax laws to the temporary differences, tax operating loss
and other credit carry-forwards. A valuation alfowance is provided
for any portion of the deferred tax assets where it 15 considered
more likely than not that they will not be realized.

i} Liabilities for Retirement Benefits

(1) Employees’ retirement benefits

JT has an unfunded severance indemnity plan and a cash balance
pension plan (the "Pension Plans™) as well as a defined contribution
plan. which cover substantially all of its employees. Its consolidated
subsidiaries principaily have unfunded severance indemnity plans
and/or non-contnbutory defined pensicn plans.

The Pension Plans and the subsidianes’ plans are stated based on
actuarially estimated retirement benefit obligations. considering the
estimated fair value of plan assets at each balance sheet date.
Certain domestic subsidiaries apply a simptified method, under
which retirement benefit obligations are recorded based on the
amount required ii all employees terminated their employment as
of the balance sheet date. Contributions to the defined contnbution
plan are charged to cxpenses when they are paid or accrued.

Liabilities for retirement benefits to directors and corporate audi-
tors of certain domestic subsidiaries are prowided at the amount
which would be required if all directors and corporate auditors
retired at each balance sheet date.

JT Annua! Report 2008 73




{2} Obligations under the Public Official Mutual Assistance
Association Law

As a formerly wholly government-owneg company, |T is obligated
by ihe Public Official Mutual Assistance Association Law 1o reim-
burse the |apanese government far pension expenses incurred each
year by the government for former employees of |apan Tobacco
and Salt Public Corporation ("JTSPC"), JT's predecessor entity, and
others for their senvices duning certain periods before July |. 1956,
Such obtigations are recognized as liabilities at their present value
using the actuarially determined computation method.

j) Leases

Adl leases are accounted for as operaling leases. Under Japanese
accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deemned to have
iransferred ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be
capitalized, white other finance leases are permilied to be accounted
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” infor-
mation is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements.

k) Appropriations of Retained Earnings
" Appropriation of relained earnings are reflected in the financial
statements for the following year upon shareholders’ approval.

1) Foreign Currency Transactions

Recevables and payables denominaled in foreipn currencies are
translated nta Japanese yen at the rates prevailing at each batance
sheet date. The exchange gains or losses from translation are recog-
nized in the consolidated staterments of incorne 1o the extent that
hedging dervative financial instruments for foreign currency transac-
tions do net qualify for hedge accounting (see (m) Denvatives).

All assets and labilities of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are
transiated into |apanese yen al the exchange rate at each sub-
sidiary's respective fiscal year end. All revenue and expense
accounts are translated at average exchange rates during each sub-
sidiary’s respective fiscal vear.

Differences ansing from such translation are shown as “Foreign
currency transtation adjustments” and "Minonity interests” in a sepa-
rate component of equity.

m) Derivatives

All derivatives, except for certain foreign exchange forward con-
tracts, foreign currency option contracts, foreign currency swap
contracts and interest rate swap contracts described below, are rec-
ognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and
gains or losses on derivative transaclions are recagnized in the con-
solidated statements of incorne,

For denvatives which gualify for hedge accounting because of
high comelation and effectiveness between the hedging instruments
and the hedged iterms, gains or losses on derivatives are deferred
until the corresponding hedged items are recognized in earings.
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IT's trade payvables that are denominated in foreign currencies
and have been hedged by foreign exchange forward conlracts are
translated at the foreign exchange rate stipulated in the contracts.

Interest rate swaps that qualify for hedge accounting and meet
specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value, but
the differential to be paid or received under the swap agreements
are accrued and included in interest expense or income.

n} Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries

JT Intermational and other foreign consolidated subsidiaries princi-
pally maintain their accounting records in conformity with US.
GAAP. The significant accounting palicies, which are different from
T's policies, are as follows:

{1} Inventories

Inventories are generally stated at the lower of cost or market, cost
being deterrmined by the first-in, first-out method or average cost
(2) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment is generally comput-
ed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lves of
the respactive assets,

(3) Goodwill and trademarks

Goodwill recorded at JT Intermational is not subject to amortization
but is tested for impairment at least annually. Trademarks are princi-
pally amartized using straight-line method over 20 years,

{4) Retirement benefit pension plans

According 1o FASB statement 158 “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an
amendment of FASB statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R})"
("FASB 158", the difference of retirement benefits obligation and
fair value of plan assets is recognized on the consolidated batance
sheets as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 as assets/liabilities,

Unrecognized net actuarial loss and prior service cost. net of
applicable taxes, is recorded as a part of equity as pension habiity
adjustment of foreign consolidated subsidianes,

Prior to the adaption of FASB 158, if the habiity for retirement
benefits already recognized was less than the unfunded accumulated
benefit obligation, an additional nuinimum liability was recognized.

The additional minimurn liability was charged directly to retained
earmings, if such amount exceeded unrecognized prar service Cost
net of any tax benefits,

(5) Denvatives

All derivatives are used to hedge the exposure to foreign exchange
risk and inlerest rate risk are recognized as eilher assets or liabilities
in the balance sheet and measured at fair value,

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in current
eamings for each fiscal year.

o) Per Share Information
Each share of comman stock was split into five shares on Apnit 1, 2006,
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income




available 1o comman shareholders, by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding in each period, which were 1916016
shares for the year ended March 31, 2006, not retroactivety adjusted
for the stock split, and 9,580,080 shares for the years ended March
31, 2007 and 2008 (see Note {9 "Net Income Per Share™).

Diluted net income per share was not disclosed for the years
ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 because there were no potentially
dilutive common shares that were outstanding for each penod.

Diluted net income per share for the year ended March 31. 2008
reflects the potential dilution that could occur f stock acquisition
rights were exercised (see Note 19 "Net Income Per Share™).

Cash dividends per share presented in the Consolidated
Statements of Income are dividends applicable to the respective
years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year, not
retroactively adjusted for stock split

p} Presentation of Equity
On December 9, 2005, the ASB) published a new accounting stan-
dard for presentation of equity.

Under this accounting standard, certain items which were previ-
ously presented as fiabilities are now presented as components of
equity. Such items include minority interests and any deferred gains
or losses on derivatives accounted lor under hedge accounting. This
standard is effective for fiscal years ended on or after May ¢, 2006.

The consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2007 and 2008
were presented in line with this new accounting standards. Japanese
GAAP does not permit the restaternent of prior years to reflect the
change by this standard.

q)} Stock Option

The ASB| Statement Neo.8, “Accounting Standard for Stock
Options” and related guidance are applicable to stock options
granted on and after May 1, 2006.

This standard requires companies to recognize campensation
expense for emplovee stock options based on the fair value at the
date of grant and over the vesting period as consideration for
receiving goods or services. The standard also requires companies
to acceunt for stock options granted to non-employees based on
the far value of either the stock option or the goods or services
received. In the balance sheet, the stock option is presented as a
stock acquisition right as a separate component of equity until exer-
cised. JT has applied the accounting standard for stock options to
those granted on and after May i, 2006

r} Bonuses to Directors and Cooperate Auditors
Bonuses to direciors and cooperate auditors are accrued at the
year end to which such bonuses are attributable,

s) Accounting Change

The adoption of new accounting standards

Accounting Standard for Measurernent of Inventories —

On Jjuly 5, 2006. the ASBJ issued AS5Bj Statement No.9,
"Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories”, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Apnl [, 2008 with
early adoption permitted.

This statement requires that inventores held for sale in the ord-
nary course of business be measured at the lower of cost or net
selling value. which is defined as the selling price less addrional esti-
mated manufacturing costs and esumated direct seling expenses,
The mplacement cost may be used in place of the net selling value,
if appropriate.

The Domestic Group adopted the new accounting standard for
measurement of inventories for the year ended March 31, 2008. The
effect of adoption of this new accounting standard has no matenial
impact on operating income and income before income taxes and
minority interests.

Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes of Foreign Consolidoted
Subsidiaries —

As for jT's main foreign consolidated subsidiaries, FIN48
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income taxes (an interpretation of
FASB statement No 109") that became effective for penods com-
mencing after December 15, 2006, prescribes new rules governing
the recognition and measurement of uncertain income tax posi-
tions. This interpretation requires 1o measure a liability if it is "more
likety than not”" that a position to be sustained. when judged purely
on its technical merits.

JT's main foreign consoldated subsidiaries recognized cumula-
tive effect of applying the provision of FIN 48 as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained carning for the year ended March
31, 2008.

t) New Accounting Pronouncements

Lease Accounting — On March 30. 2007, the ASB| issued ASB)
Statement No.13, "Accounting Standard for bease Transacuons’,
which revised the existing accounting standard for tease transacticns
issued on June 17, 1993, The revsed accounting standard for lease
transactions is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2008 with early adoption permitted for fiscal years beginning on or
after April |, 2007.

Lessee

Under the existing accounting standard, finance leases that deem to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be
capitalized, however, cther finance leases are permitied to be
accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capital-
ized” information is disclosed in the note to the lessee’s financial
staterments. The revised accounting standard requires that al! finance
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lease transactions shall be capitalized recognizing lease assets and
lease obligations in the balance sheet.

Lessor

Under the existing accounting standard, finance leases that deem to
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be
capitalized, however, other finance leases are permitted to be
accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain "as if capital-
ized" information is disclased in the note to the lessor's financial
statemenis. The revised accounting standard requires that all finance
leases that deem to transfer ownership of the leased property to
the lessee shall be recognized as lease receivables, and all finance
leases that deem nal to transfer ownership of the leased property
16 the lessee shall be recognized as mvestments in lease.

Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the
Consolidated Financial Statements ~

Under Japanese GAAP, a company currently can use the financial
staternents of its foreign subsidiaries which have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in their
respective junisdictions for its consolidation process unless they are
clearty unreasonable. On May 17, 2006, the ASBJ issuved ASBJ
Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No.l8, “Practical Solution on
Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries

4. Business Combinations

I Via consolidated subsidiary JTI {UK) MANAGEMENT LTD, on
Aprit 18. 2007, [T acquired the outstanding shares of the Gallaher
Group Plc {now known as "Gallaher Group Ltd.") of the United
Kingdom through an acquisition method under English law known
as a scheme of ammangement, converting Gallaher Group Flc into
a wholly owned subsidiary.

As the direct acquirer of the outstanding shares in Gallaher
Group Plc was |TH (UK)y MANAGEMENT LTD, which follows
generally accepted accounting principles and practices in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP"), the business combination was
accounted for under the purchase method, based on FASR
Statement Ne. 141,

In August 2007. |T reorganized JT1 (UK) MANAGEMENT LTD
into a subsidiary of JT Intermational Holding BV, a consolidated
subsidiary of |T.

I. The following are the name of the acquired company, business
contents, main reasons for business combination. the date of
business combination, the legal form of the business combina-
tion. and ratio of voting rights acquired.

(1) The name of acquired company: Gallaher Group Plc
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for the Consolidated Financial Statements”. The new standard pre-
scribes: 1) the accounung policies and procedures applied to a par-
ent company and its subsidiaries for similar transactions and events
under similar circumstances should in principle be unified for the
prepamtion of the consolidated financial statements, 2) financial
statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accordance with
either Intemational Financial Reporting Standards or the generaily
accepted accounting principles in the United States tentatively may
be used for the consolidation process, 3) however, the following
items should be adjusted in the consclidation process so that net
income is accounted for in accordance with Japansse GAAP unless
they are not material;
I, Amortization of goodwill
2. Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans recognized
outside profit or tass
3. Capitalization of intangible assets arising from development
phases
4. Fair value measurement of investment properties, and the
revaluation model for properly, plant and equipment. and
intangible assets
5. Retrospective application when accounting pelicies are changed
6. Accounting for net income attiibutable to a minority interest
The new task force is eflective for fiscal vears beginning on or after
Apil |, 2008 with earty adoption permitted.

(2) Business contents: Manufacturing and selling of tobacco
products

(3) Main reasons for business combination

Through the acquisition of the Gallaher Group Ple, JT

could expand its business and enjoy economies of scale.
build a well-balanced and competitive brand pertfolio in
each market and price segmentation, strengthen technolo-
gv/distribution infrastructures, and synergize business
growth expected by the business combination through
efiective business cperations.

(4) Date of business combination: Apnl 18, 2007

(5) Legal form of the business combination: The issued shares
were acquired for cash.

(6) Ratio of voting rights acquired: 100%

2. Period of operating results inciuded in the consolidated finan-
cial statements:

As the closing date of the accounting period of the acquired
company is sel on December 31, operating results from Apnl
18, 2007 to December 31, 2007 for this cornpany have been
included in the current consolidated statement of income.




3. Acquisition costs
The acquisivon was conducted for 7.5 billion sterling pounds
in cash,

4, Amount of goodwill recognized, basis for recognition and
method and pericd for amortization of goodwill
{1} Amount of goodwill recognized:
¥1,721,368 million (£17.181 million)
{2} Basis for recognition:

Goodwill was recognized because the acquisition cost of
the company exceeded the net value allocated to the
assets acquired and liabilities assurned.

(3) Method and period for amortization of goodwill:

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” the amount of goadwill rec-
ognized shall not be amonrtized. Rather. the decision of
whether 1o recognize impairment shall be made once each
year. or each time an event occurs indicating that the fair
value of goodwill has fallen below its book value.

5. Principal details of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the
day of the business combination are as follows:

¥410,572 miilion
2,531,125 mithon

(34,098 million}
{25.263 milfion)

Current assets:

MNon-current assets:

Total assets: ¥2,941,697 milion  ($29.36} millon)
Current liabilities: ¥405.712 million (34,049 million}
iNon-current liabilktes: 749,479 million (7481 million)
Total haniitas: ¥1,155191 million (%1 1,530 million)

Regarding allocation of acquisition casts, the major intangible
asset that was acquired in addition to goodwill was ¥523,263
mitlion {$5,223 million) in trademarks. This asset has an amonti-
zation pericd of 20 years,

Mata Amount of yon mentioned abeve is translared at the evchange nite as of the busi-
ness combinzuon date The amount of gocdwill (Y1721 139 milbenr (517878 mi-
hon)) inctuted i non qurent aigets differs from the amount of goovwall whch s
tesirbed in consokdinted balance sheet

H. On January 8, 2008, |T converted Katokichi Co. Lid. into a sub-
sidiary through tender offer for Katokichi shares,
Im addition. |T acquired all of Katokichi's voting rights on April 18,
2008
I. The following are the name of the acquired company, business
conients, main reasons for business combination, the date of

business combination, the legal form of the business combina-

tion, and ratio of voting rights acquired.

(1Y The name of acquired company: Katokichi Co., Ltd.

(2) Business contents: The main business conients are manu-
facturing and selling of frozen foods and frozen fishery
products. The other business contents are a disinbution
business incidental to the main business and a service busi-
ness such as a hotel and restaurant management.

(3) Main reasons for business combination

T anticipated that the Group could realize further
expansion of its business value because the Group would
enjoy the effect of mutual reinforcement and management
resources synergy through the business combination.

{4) Date of business combination: January 8, 2008

{5) Legal form of the business combination: The issued shares
were acquired for cash.

{6} Ratio of voting rights acquired: 93.89%

2. Period of operating results included in the censofidated finan-

cial statements From January |, 2008 to March 31, 2008

3. Acquisition cosis
The acquisition was conducted for ¥108.6 billion ($1,084
million) in cash,
4. Amount of goodwill recogmzed. basis for recognstion. and
methad and penod for amortization of poodwill

(1Y Amount of goodwill recognized

¥41,885 milion (5418 million)

(2) Basis for recognition

Goodwilt was recognized because the acquisition cost of
the company exceeded the net value allocated to the
assets acquired and fiabilities assumed,

(3) Method and period for amortization of goodwill

Method for amertization: straight-line method

Perod for amortization: five years

5. Principal details of assets acquired and liabilities assurmed on the
day of the business combination are as follows:

Current assets:

Mon-current assets:

¥89.279 million
136995 milhon

{$891 milhon}
{1.367 mithon)

Total assers:

Current liabilities:

Non-current habilities:

¥226,274 million

¥84 813 milhon
24,532 milhon

{32.258 millicn)

($847 milhon)
(244 million)

Total habilihies:

¥109,345 mullion
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— Millions of
Millions of yen US. dollars

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in acquisition of shares of Gallaher Group Ple and Katokichi Ca., Lid. mainly
consist of purchase of shares of newly consolidated subsidiaries, net of cash acquired in 2008):
Current assets

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Minority interest

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Agquisition price in 2007

Acquisition price in 2008

Cash and cash equivalents

Paymenis for purchases of shares of subsidiaries

5.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included gensaki transactions, securities purchased under repurchase agreements. The fair value of such securities
recesved as collatera! from the counterparty at March 31, 2007 was ¥51,970 million.

6.Short-Term Investments and Investment Securities

Short-term investments and investrent securities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following;

Millions of yen L';"s"‘j::,a":‘
2007
Short-term investments:
Time deposits ¥ 2216
Government and Corporate bonds 3720
Trust fund investments and gther 231
Total | ¥ 61867
Investment securities:
Equity securities ¥ 246713
Government and Corporate bonds 3,146
Trust fund investments and other 10,352
ol T o S ¥ 260211
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The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable securities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as foliows:

Milliens of yen

2007
Cost Unrealized gain Unrealized loss Fair value
Available-for-sale
Equity securities ¥ 192,144 ¥ 51,337 ¥ 1,037 ¥ 242,441
Carporate bonds 2,085 7% — 2,164
Trust fund investments and other 4,191 6,161 — 10.352
Held-to-maturity
Govermnment bonds and municipal bonds 1,199 0 5 1,194
Others 502 — | 501
Millions of yen
Cost Unrealized gain Unrealized loss Fair value

Available-for-sale
Equity securities
Government and Corporate bonds
Trust fund investments and other
Held-to-matunty
Government bonds and municipal bonds
Others

Millions of U.S. dollars

Cost Unrealized gain Unrealized loss Faur valug
Available-for-sale

Equity securities

Government and Corporate bonds

Trust fund investments and cther
Held-ta-maturity

Government bonds and municipal bonds

Others

e

The carrying amounts of non-marketable securities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as foliows:

Millions of yen lTlS“I::I’I:":
) o o 2007 !
Available-for-sale |
Equity securities ¥ 4273
Corporate bonds 3002
Trust fund investments and other 229
Total ) XS04
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Amortized cost of held to maturity securities and related proceeds from sates and related realized losses on those sales for the years ended

March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. were as follows:

Millions of yen :l islfig::;i
2006 2007
Amortized cost ¥— ¥—
Proceed f fr_o_m sales ¥ — ¥
Net realized loss ¥ — ¥ -

A domestic consolidated subsidiary sold held-to-maturity security
for the year ended March 34, 2008 due to significant deterioration
in the issuer’s creditworthiness, which is considered to be a reason-

abte reason consistent with Practical Guidehnes on Accounting
Standards for Financial Instruments Mo.83-1.

Proceeds from sates of available-for-sate secunities and related gross realized gains and losses on those sales, computed on the moving aver-
age cost basis for the years ended March 3. 2006, 2007 and 2008. were as follows:

Millions of yen LT 's"':';:‘;:
o ~ o 2006 2007
Proceeds from sales ¥ 3282 ¥97229
Gross realized gains ¥ 959 ¥2125
Gross realized losses o o ) I ) N
Net realized gain ¥ 950 ¥2122

The amounts of securities classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at March 31, 2008, based on their contractual maturity dates,

were as follows:

Due within one year
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

_ Towl

Millions of yen Millions of U.5. doltars

Avatable for sale Held-to-matunty Avaitabte for sale Held-to-maturity

T

For the years ended March 31. 2006, 2007 and 2008. losses on
write-downs of securities including investments in afflliated compa-
nies totaled ¥1 |, nit and ¥1 1,154 million (3111 million), respectively.
In evaluating security values, a security whose value has declined by
more than 50% is considered to have experienced “significant dete-

7.inventories

Inventories at March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

rioration”. A security whose value has declined from 30% to 50%
and the effect of the decline on [T's financial position is maierial, is
considered to have expenienced “significant deterioration”. If a secu-
rity has a strong chance of regaining its value, the security is not
written down,

Millions of yen Sgh:glslzi
2007
Leaf tobacco ¥ 278567
Finished products 49,736
Other 88973
Total ¥ 417276
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JT leal tobacco inventory in excess of the minimum amount neces-
sary for future production was subject to annual devaluation. The
net effect of the change in the devaluation debited (credited) to cost
of sales at March 31, 2006 and 2007 were ¥9,588 million and

8.Short-term Bank Loans and Long-term Debt

¥(9,585) million, respectively.
Annual devaluation was discontinued from the year ended March
31, 2008.

Short-term bank loans as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following;

Millions af yen Sg!ig:ho'_f!
7 ] L ) _ 2007
Yen lgans with interest rates of 1.625% to 1.875%
at March 31, 2007 and of 0.010% 1o 7.047% at March 31, 2008 ¥ &0
Foreign currency loans with interest rates of 4.40% to 16.00%
at March 31, 2007 and of 3.69% to 12.70% &t March 31,2008 5356
Total ¥ 53,706
Long-term debt at March 31, 2007 and 2008 comprised the following:
Milions of yen ‘Tgfi:';;;
) 2007
1.98% ven bonds, due 2009 ¥ 150000
1.34% yen bonds, due 2010 —
1.53% yen bonds, due 201 | —
|.68% yen bonds, due 2012 —
Unsecured 5.88% Euro bonds issued by foreign subsidiary due in 2008 —
Unsecured 6.63% sterling pound bond issued by foreign subsidiary dug in 2009 —
Unsecured 4.63% Euro bonds issued by foreign subsidiary due in 2011 —
Unsecured 5.75% sterling pound bond issued by foreign subsidiary due in 2013 —
Unsecured 4.50% Euro bonds issued by foreign subsidiary due in 2014 —
Unsecured 0.99% yen bonds issued by domestic subsidiary cue in 2009 —
Unsecured 0.77% yen bonds issued by domestic subsidiary due in 2010 —
Long-term bank loans due through 2015 15,563
Total 165,563
Less current portion {10,550}
t.ong-term debr, less cuirent portion ¥ 155,013

|T entered into interest rate swap agreements in March 2004 to
convert interest payments on 1.98% yen bonds due 2009 to floating
rate payments on a LIBOR basis, which was at 1.24% at March 31
2005, in order to manage interest rate risks on these bonds, Taking
changes in market conditions inte consideration, JT unwound the
above interest swap agreements in May 2005. Consequently, jT
now pays a fixed rate interest of 1.61%.

In addition, certain domestic consolidated subsidiares have
entered into interest rate swap agreements to fix vanable rate inter-

est payments of Japanese yen foans.

Annual interest rates applicable to japanese yen long-term loans
of |T and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries at March 31,
2007 and 2008 ranged from 1.50% to 520% and 0.65% to 6.17%.
respectively.

Annual interest rates applicable to long-term loans denominated
in foreign currencies outstanding at March 31, 2007 and 2008
ranged from 6.30% to 8.37% and 2.35% to 9.20%. respectively.
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Years ending March 31, Millicns of yen Milisns of LLS, dollars

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter
Total

Under the |T Law, abhgations created by the bonds issued by |T are erence to unsecured creditors {with the exception of national and
secured by a statutory preferential right over the property of JT. local taxes and certan other statutory obligations).
This right entitles the holders thereof to claim satisfaction in pref-

Substantially all of the shorl-term bank loans and long-terrn debt are unsecured. Secured loans and debt of certain consolidated subsidianies
at March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Millions of yen Milkions of LIS, dellars

Long-term bank loans
Current portion of Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Cthers
Total

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for the above secured loans and debt at March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Buildings and structures
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Lang

General agreements with respective banks prowide, as is customary  have the right to offset cash deposited with them against any iong-
in Japan, that additional collateral must be provided under certain term or short-term debt or ather debt payable to the banks. JT has
circurmstances if requested by such banks and that certain banks never been requested to provide additional collateral.
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9.Income Taxes

The Domestic Group is subject to Japanese corporate tax, inhabitants
tax and enterprise tax based on income which. in the aggregate.
resulted in a nommal effective statutory tax rate of approximately

40.35% for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. Foreign
consolidated subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the countnes
in which they operate,

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss cany-forwards which resuted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31,

2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Millions of yen S'sn‘:gl’h‘:i
) i 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Liabitities for employees’ retirement benefits ¥ 44842
Obligations under the Public Official Mutual Assistance Association Law 55,655
Net operating loss carryforwards 16,854
Other payable for benefits to retired employees 10,794
Other 59,975
Less valuation allowance (20,370)
Total ) 167750
Deferred tax linbilities:
Deferred gain on sales of fixed assets for income tax purposes (31.928)
Basis differences in assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon acquisition {34.255)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (23.170)
Prepaid pension costs (8,497)
Other (21,953)
Total (119.803)
" Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) YT

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were reflected on the accompanying cansolidated balance sheets under the fol-

lowing captions:

Other current assets
Deferred tax assets
QOther curvent liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2007
¥ 18172
75457
(2.246)
(43.436)
¥ 47947

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and the actual effec-
tive tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income was as follows:

Normal effective statutory tax rate
Tax rate difference applied for foreign consolidated subsidiaries
Foreign withhelding tax
Tax credits
Nen-deductible expenses
Other - net

Actual effective tax rate

2006 2007
40.35% 40.35%
(9.13) (6599)
027 046
(109) (0.83)
.86 3.06
©.73) (0.05)
A TS C3600%
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10.Stock Options |

Stock option expense of ¥ |86 million ($2 million) is accounted for as Selling, general and administrative expenses on the consolidated state-

ment of income for the vear ended March 31, 2008,

The stock options outsianding as of March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Number of Opuons

Persons Granted Cranted

Stock Opuon

Date of Grant Exercise Pnce Exerdise Peacd

The rights become exercisable from one year later when a holder ne
longer holds a position as a director, a carporate auditar or an execu-
tive officer.

The stock options activity is as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2008
MNan-Vested
March 31, 2007 — Qutstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested
March 31, 2008 — Qutstanding
Vested
March 34, 2007 — Qutstanding
Vested
Exercised
Canceled
March 31, 2008 — Qutstanding

Exercise price

Average stock price at exercise
Fair value price at the grant date

I I.Liabilities for Retirement Benefits

(1) Employees’ Retirement Benefit

JT has unfunded severance indemnity plan and a cash balance pen-
sion plan as well as a defined contnbution plan. The unfunded sev-
erance mndemnity plan prowdes lump-sum retirement benefits based
on credits eamed in each year of service. Employees are entitled o
receive larger payments in certain circumstances such as involuntary
termination, retirement at the mandatory retirernent age, voluntary
terminalion at certain specific ages prior to mandatory retirernent
age or death. The cash balance pension plan provides retirement
benefits in the form of a lump-sum payment or annuity payments
based on current and past principal ¢redits earned and interest
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The assumptions used to measure far value of 2008 stock options
are as follows:

Estimate Method !
Volatility of stock price®'
Estimated remaining outstanding period*?

Estimated dividend®

Interest rate with risk free**

*| Cakculated based on stock prices for the period on and zfier hsung date (from October 27,
§994 10 January 8, 2008).

*2 With difficulty in reasanable estimation due to nsufficient data accumulation, expected
rernaining penod s estimated oa the assumption that stock ofion woutd be exenosed at a
mid-poim of exerising period.

*3 Based on year-end dwidend for the year 2007 and interim dividenx] for the year 2008

*4 A yield of 15-year government bond, a periad of which comesponds 10 expected remaming
pencd.

credits over time based on these principal credits,

Domestic consolidated subsidiaries pnncipally have unfunded sev-
erance indemnity plans andfor defined benefit pension plans cover-
ing substantially all of thew employees, under which benefits are
provided based on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years
of service and ceriain other factors.

Foreign consolidated subsidianes principally sponsor non-contribu-
tory defined benefit pension plans covering most of their employees.
Plans covering regular full-time employees provide pension benefits
based on credits, determined by age, samed throughout an employ-
ge's service and final average compensation before retirement.




The habilities for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Projected benefit obligations

Fair vatue of plan assets

Funded states
Unrecognized actuarial net loss (gain)
Unrecognized pror service cost

Net amount recognized

Pension liability adjustment of foreign consolidated subsidiaries (see Note 3 (n))

Prepaid pension cost
Cther current liabilities
Liabilities for employees' retirement benefits

Millions of

Millions of yen .S, dottars

2007
¥ (322.121)
203,484

(118637)
(17535)

T (108823)
(18721)
(18:897)
1995

¥ (144.446)

As described in Note 3 "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” {n) Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries, "Pension liability
adjustment of foreign consolidated subsidiaries” is the unfunded
obligation recognized by foreign consolidated subsidiaries applying
US.GAAP. “Other current liabilities” is the amount by which the
actuanal present value of benefits included in the benefit obligation
payabile in the next |2 months exceeds the fair value of plan assets
in foreign consolidated subsidiaries applying LLS.GAAP.

The amount reversed of minimum pension liability by foreign con-
solidated subsidiaries applying U.S.GAAP was recorded in "Minimum
pension liability adjustment of foreign consofidated subsidiaries” of

retained eamings in the accompanying consolidated statements of
changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2006 and 2007,

|T transferred a portion of the unfunded severance indemnity plan 10
the defined contribution plan on April |, 2006, and thereby recog-
nized ¥3.097 milion for the yoar ended March 31, 2006 as other
expense which led 1o an increase of liabilties for retirement benefits

by the same amount in accordance with "Accounting for the Transfer
between Retirement Benefits Plans (ASB] Guidekna No. ()" and
“Practical Solution on Accounting for Transfer Between Retirement
Benefit Plans (Practical Issues Task Forces Report No.2)",

Millions of yen

o . o o . 2006
Settlement of projected benefit obligations ¥ 4567
Prior service cost recognized in eamings (159)
Actuanial gain recognized in eamings 139
Decrease in liabilities for retirement benefits 4507
Related assets due 10 be transferred to defined contribution plan (7.604)
Loss on partial termination of defined benefit plan ¥ (3097}
Related assets of ¥7,604 million due to be transferred to defined contrbution plan will be paid in installment by 2009. '
R
The compenents of net periadic retirement benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows: E
Millions of yen Sg!i:g“h‘i
2006 2007
Service cost ¥ 9278 ¥ 9684
Interest cost 9,409 9.685
Expected retum o plan assets {5823) (6,829)
Recognized actuanal [oss 1718 315
Amortization of prior service cost 541 1,502
Net periodic retirement benefit costs ¥ 15123 ¥ 14,357
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Significant assumpuons used for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Discount rate
Expected rate of retumn on plan assets

- 2006 2007
25% 25%
25% 25%

Actuarial gains or tosses that result from changes in plan expen-
ence and actuarial assumptions are principally amortized over |0
years, The amortzation period for the prior service cost that
resulted from retroactive application of a plan amendment is prin-
cipally 10 years. The retirement benefit atirbutable to each year is
cilculated by assigning the same amount of pension benefis to
each year of sarvice.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution plans
which were charged 1o expenses, for the years ended March 31,
2006, 2007 and 2008 were ¥2,212 million, ¥3,002 million and
¥4.208 million ($42 miltion), respectively.

IT has offered additional retirement benefits to i1s employees
under the early retirement programs as a parl of vanaus business
restructuning efforts in order to rationalize operating efficiencies in
administrative and other headquarter functions and to reduce costs
in the domestic tobacco business. These efforts principally related
1o closure of eight agarette factories and a company-wide offering
of an early retirement plan to employees who are age 40 or older

with more than 15 years of services dunng the year ended March
31, 2005 and other business restructunng dunng the year ended
March 31, 2006.

Certain domestic and foreign subsidiaries also provided additional
retirement benefits for early-retired emplovees in connection with
the reorganization of domestic distribution operations or rationali-
zation of other businesses for the years ended March 31, 2006,
2007 and 2008.

These restructuring activities resulted n recognition of additional
retirement benefits as business restructuring costs of ¥8,557 million.
nil and ¥2,285 million {$23 million) for the years ended March 31,
2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, and as other expenses of nil,
¥730 milion and ¥1,122 million {($!1 milion) for the year ended
March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, which included a one-
time charge for the unrecognized actuarial net loss and unrecog-
nized prior service cost attributable to the employees who retied
earlier than expected.

Certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries participate in muli-emplayer contributory pension plans, the required contributions (o which are recognized
as a net pension cost for the year Of these pension plans, information about Tokye pharmaceutical industry employees’ pension fund i as foliows.

Funded status of the entire plan as of March 31, 2007:
Fair value of plan assets

Benefit obligations

Deficit

” Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2007 2007

¥ 461,860 $ 4610
(469.729) (4,688)
¥ (7869) % (78)

Proportion of the Domestic consolidated subsidiary’s contributions to the entire plan as of March 31, 2008
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Certain foreign consolidated subsidianies also provide certain health
and life insurance benefits for retived employees and their dependents.

The Domestic Group's liabilities for retirement benefits for direc-
tors and corporate auditors as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 were
¥| 018 milion and ¥744 million ($7 million), respectively.

{2) Obligation under the Public Official Assistance Association Law
Employees of |T, including former employees of |TSPC, and others,
are entitled to receive benefits under the government-sponsered
pension plan by the Public Official Mutual Assistance Association
Law (the "Law'"). The benefits. in the form of iifetime annuity pay-

ments by the Social Insurance Agency, are deterrnined based on the
standard pay rate, the length of service and other factors. As a for-
merly wholly government-owned company. [T is obfigated by the
Law to reimburse the Japanese government for pension expenses
incurred each vear by the government in respect of farmer emplay-
ees of [TSPC and others for their services dunng certain penods
before July 1, 1956, the enactment date of the Law.

Such obligations were first recorded as fiabilities at April |, 2003
based on the actuarially determined computation methad, Any
actuariat gain or loss arising subsequent 1o April 1. 2003 is deferred
and amortized over |0 years.

The liabilities and costs recognized for such obligations as of and for the year ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Miliens of yen lT‘s“':';l‘l:’;
2007
Benefit obiigations ¥ {139,569)
Unrecognized actuarial loss ] 1,638
Liabilities recognized ¥ (137.931)
Millions of yen JI isl_“:':h?_"
o ) 2006 2007
Interest cost ¥ 2,488 ¥ 2288
Eegggﬁiged actuarial loss 586 425
¥ 3074 ¥2713

Net perodic costs

The assumed discount rate used in the actuarial computation for the year ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was 1.5%.

i 2.Equity

Since May |. 2006. Japanese companies have been subject to the
Corporate Law. which reformed and replaced the Commercial Code
of Japan. The significant provisions in the Corporate Law that affect
financiat and accounting matters are summanzed below:

(a) Dividends

Under the Corporate Law, companies can pay dividends at any
time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend
upon resolution at the sharehclders meeting, if companies meet
certain criteria such as; (1} having the Board of Directors, (2) hav-
ing independent auditors, (3) having the Board of Corporate
Auditors, and (4) the term of service of the directors is pre-
scibed as one year rather than two years of normal term by its
articles of ncorporation. The Board of Directors of such compa-
ny may declare dividends {except for dividends in kind) at any
time: during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its
articles of incorporation,

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year
upon resolution by the Board of Directors ifl the articles of incor-
poration of the company so stipulate. The Corporste Law pro-
vides certain limitations on the amounts avallable for dimdends or
the purchase of treasury stock

(b} Increases / Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock,
Reserve and Surplus
The Corporate Law requires that an armount equal to 10% of divi-
dends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (@ component of
retained eamings) or as additional paid-in capital (2 component of
capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the
pavment of such dividends unul the totil of aggregate amourt of
fegal reserve and additionial paid-in capital equals 25% of the com-
men stock. Under the Corporate Law, the total amount of additonal
paic-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limtation
of such threshold. The Cormporate Law also prowicdes that commen
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siock. legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and
retained eamings can be transferred amaong the accounts under cer-
tain conditions upon reschaion of the sharehalders.

() Treasury Stock
The Corporate Law also provides for companies to purchase
treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of
the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased
cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the share-
holders which is determined by specific formula.

Upon the meeling of the boarg of directors held on February 27,
2006, |T decided 10 split JT's shares on five for one basis wrth the
effective date of April |, 2006.

The Speaal Taxation Measures Law in Japan permuts companies Lo
take as tax deductions certain reserves if provided through year-end
book clasing. Under Japanese tax laws, these reserves must be
reversed to income in future vears. The deferred gain on sales of
fixed assets, net of tax. included in retained eamings provided under
the Special Taxation Measures Law at March 31, 2007 and 2008
were ¥51,£30 million and ¥51,005million ($509 million), respectively.

I3.Research and Devetopment Costs and Advertising Costs

Research and development costs charged to expenses as incurred for
the vears ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were ¥37,505 rmul-
lion, ¥41.239 million and ¥45,163 million {$451 million). respectively.

| 4. Lease Transactions

The Group, as a lessee, leases certain vehicles, vending machines
and other assets.

Pro forma information of leased property, such as acquisition cost,
accumulated depreciation, accumutated impairment loss, obligations

Advertising costs were charged to expenses as incurred and totaled
¥166,093 milion, ¥151,523 milion and ¥186607 millon (51.863 nvl-
lion) for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 ang 2008, respectively.

under- finance leases, allowange for impairment loss on leased proper-
ty, depreciation expense and other information of finance lease that
do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an
“as if capitalized” basis at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was as follows:

Miflions of yen om ot
2007
Acquisition cost
Machinery, eguipment and vehicles ¥ 5150
Tools 18,495
Others 2455 '
Totat acquisitioﬁ cost B T 7 S B _26,I_00 )
Accumutated depreciation 11,605
Accumulated impairment loss —
Net leased pro;_)erty T T T T T T T Y 44
The above acquisition casts includes related interest expenses.
Millions of yen S‘ ;fi::l';:
i 2007
Obligations under finance leases:
Due within one year ¥ 4463
Due after one year 10.032
Total ] T o ¥ 14495
Allowance for impairment loss on leased property ¥ —

The above obligations under finance leases includes related interest expenses:
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Pepreciation expense and other information:
Depreciation expense
Lease payments
Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on leased property

Millions of yen Millions of

) U.S. doltars
2006 2007
¥5,117 ¥ 4836
5117 4,836

Depreciation expenses, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, are computed by the straight-

line method.

The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as foltows:

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

* Millions of yen LT isl_hjgls!aorfs
e 2007
¥ 454 ’ !
9919 IR
¥ 14430

The Group, as a lessor, leases certain computer equipment and
other assets. Total lease revenue under the above leases for the
years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was ¥27% million,
¥253 million and ¥363 million {($3 million), respectively.

Information of leased property included in the accompanying

financial statements, such as acquisition cost. accumulated deprecia-
tion and claims under finance leases that do not transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee. at March 31, 2007 and 2008
was as foliows:

Millions of yen 61'5'":':;;
o . o 2007
Acquisition cost
Machinery, equipment and vehicles ¥ 100
Tools £ 336
Total acquisition éoét S - ST T ) !4_3_6
Accumulated depreciation 594
" Net leased property ¥ 842 L
Millions of yen S:“:’:I:;
2007 )
Claims under finance leases:
Due within one year ¥ 2%0
Due after one year 634
Total ¥924

The above claims under finance leases included related interest
income.
Depreciation expenses for the years ended March 31, 2006,

2007 and 2008 which have been reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income were ¥250 million, ¥240 million
and ¥347 million {$3 million}, respectively.
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I15.Commitments and Contingencies

(1) On August {1, 2004, |TI-Macdonald received a Notice of

Assessment from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue (“QMR™)
requinng an immediate payment of approximately .36 biflion
Canacian dollars (approximately ¥114.6 billion at the exchange
rate effective at the time), based on allegations that the compa-
ny had contributed to tobacco smuggling from 1990 to 1998,
prior to JT's acquisition of RJR Nabisco Inc.'s overseas (non-US)
tobacco operations.

JTI-Macdonald filed an application for protection with the
Ontario Superior Court of Justice on August 24, 2004 under
the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act ("CCAA"),
because the company's failure 1o pay the tax bill immediately
could have prompted the QMR to confiscate its business
assets, making it difficult for it to continue its normal business
operations, As of March 31, 2008 (the end of fiscal 2007). the
company was continuing business operations with iis assets
protected under the CCAA, In order to enable |TI-Macdonald
to repay parl of its debts to other subsidiaries of T, jT
International Holding BV, the Dutch subsidiary of |T, provided
a court-appainted monitor in April 2006 with a letter of credit
issued by a financial institution for the amount corresponding to
the repayment.

IT beleves that if |T-Macdonald incurs financial damage or
bears costs associated with this case, it will be entitled to seek
indemnification from RJR Nabisco In¢. or its successors, based

(2) Conungent Liabiities

At March 31, 2008, the Group had 1he following contingent habilities:

on the contract entered inte among |T. RIR Nabisco Inc. and
RIR at the time of [T's acquisition of JTi-Macdonald in 1999,

In July 2004, ZAQ |TI Marketing & Sales ("M&S Corp.”}. a
Pussian subsidiary of IT that oversees distrbutior-related bust-
ness in the Russian market, received an assessment from the
Moscow tax authorities in which it was ordered to pay approxi-
mately 2.4 billion rubles {(approximately ¥8.8 billicn at the
exchange rate effective at the time) as VAT, etc. for the period
of January to December 2000. The taxed amount includes
unpaid taxes (VAT, etc)), interest and additional 1axes. Believing
that the assessment by the Moscow tax authonues was based
upon a misinterpretation of facts, M&S Corp. filed a lawsuit wath
the Moscow Arbitration Court seeking to invalidate the assess-
ment. Although the court of first instance. the Court of Appeals
and the Court of Cassation dismissed M&5 Corp.'s argument,
the Russian Federation Higher Arbitration Court reversed the
lower courts' judgments and remanded the case to the court of
first instance in April 2006, In October 2007, the court of first
instance rendered judgment upholding M&S Corp.'s argument
and invalidated the tax assessment, and the Court of Appeals
and the Court of Cassation dismissed the appeal by the tax
authorities and upheld M&S Corp's argument in February and
May 2008, respectively. The tax authorities may file a petition
for appeal Lo the Russian Federation Higher Arbitration Count.

Trade notes discounted

Guarantees and similar items of bank loans:

Kotobuki Business Company Corp.Ltd

Malions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Zhouzan Koumei Foeds Co.Ltd (38 Million of CNY and 332 Thousand of USO}*

Mitoyo Cable Television Co.ltd

Zhouzan Katoka Foods Co.ttd (24 Million of CNY and 350 Thousand of USOy*

Cook Foods. Coltd.
Others

Total

* The translation of the guaranteed amounts Lhat denoninated in foreign currency were made at the rate of exthange 2t March 31, 2008.



16.Other Income (Expenses)

{1} Business Restructuring Costs

Business restructuring costs for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007, and 2008 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen LT is'!ig':l::»i
) o i 2006 2007
Additional Retirernent Benefits (see Note | () ¥ (8,557) ¥ —
Loss on disposition of property, plant and equipment {99) —
Others-net 647 -
Total ¥ (8.009) ¥—

Additional retirement benefits for the year ended March 31. 2006
were Incurred for early retirements of employees as discussed in
Note | | "Liabilivies for Retirement Benefits”.

For the year ended March 31. 2006, “Cthers - net” in the
Business restructuring costs includes the reversal of payables recog-
nized due to the acceleration of planned retirement dates for
employees on iong-term leave who accepted the early retirement
program implermented during the year ended March 31, 2005,

Business restructuring costs for the year ended March 31, 2008
were manly incurred for the rationalization of International tobac-
co businesses.

(2} Loss on Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Asset grouping is based on the smallest identifiable unit that gener-
ates cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows from
other assets, except for idle property, which is grouped individually.

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impainment during
the year ended March 31, 2006 and, as a result, recognized an

impairment loss of ¥11,43% million. which principally consists of
¥7,738 million of land and ¥3,452 million of buildings and structures.
as other expense mainly for company housing due Lo be discontin-
ved which are mostly located in the Tokyo metropolitan area.

During the second half of the year ended March 31, 2006, land
and buildings of company housing were finally assessed to be dis-
continued, resulting in the change of asset groups for mparment
testing. Most of impaiment losses were recognized on company
housings after they are evaluated individually as a resulk of the asset
group change.

Loss on Impairment for the years ended March 31, 2007 and
2008 amounted to ¥2,712 million and ¥3825 million {($38 million).
respectively, which relztes principally to land, and certain buiidings
and structures which are planned 1o be demolished.

(3) Other - net
“Orther - net” included in "Other Income (Expenses)” for the vears
ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen o of
i 2006 2007
Financial support for domestic tobacco growers (see Note 15) ¥ (863) ¥ (3505)
Foreign exchange loss-net {2,893} (14.465)
Gain on sales of investment, secunties-net 879 1,908
Loss on partial termination of defined benefit plan (see Note | 1} (3097} —
Introduction costs for vending machines with adult identification functions {159) (5.746)
Costs related to the recall of frozen foods products — —
Others-net (3.376) (9.390)
Tod B ¥_(‘§36§)- o v¥(3|v.rlv98)"

“Introduction costs for vending rmachines with adult identificaticn
functions” is the cost to establish system of vending machines with
funcuons ta prevent minors from purchasing cigarettes from vend-
ing machines and to dispense cigarettes only after scanrung and ven-
fying special IC cards that indicate whether the purchaser is an adult

or not.

“Costs related to the recall of frozen foods products™ 15 manly
the cost 10 recall some frozen foods products which were imported
and sold by the Group.
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17.Segment Information

The Group's business is divided into the domestic tobacco, interna-
tional tobacco, pharmaceutical, foods and other industry segments.
The domestic tobacco segment consists of manufacturing and sale
of tobacco products, primarily cigarettes, in Japan, including tobacce
products sold at duty free shops in Japan. as well as at markets in
China, Heng Kong and Macau, which are covered by the China
Disicn. The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by TS
Network Co., Ltd., |T's subsidiary. TS Network Co,, Ltd. distributes
the tobacco products and conducts wholesale etc. of foreign brand
tobacco products purchased from foreign tobacco manufacturers
through importers. The international tobacco segment consists of
manufacturing and sale of cigarettes in other markets worldwide not

(1) Industry Segments

covered by the domestic tobacco segment. The pharmaceutical
segment is concerned with the devetopment, manufacturing and
sale of prescription drugs. The foods segment involves manufactur-
ing and sale of beverages and processed foods, Other segments
include the real estate business, engineering business and other
operations.

With respect to the international tobacco business, the account-
ing period of consolidated overseas subsidianes, represented by fT
international, ends December 31, 2007 and the results for the
twelve months ended Decernber 31, 2007 are consolidated for the
year ended March 31, 2008.

Information aboul the industry segments of the Group for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as [oflows;

Millions of yen

2006
Domestic hmemabonal  prasmacenticals Foods Others Towd E('Eg“r;;?:[': Comolcated

Sales to customers ¥ 3405281 ¥ 881,188 ¥ 49257 ¥ 778378 ¥ 23553 ¥ 4637657 ¥ — ¥ 4,637657
Intersegment sales 41,554 36914 —— 123 25212 103.803 (103.803) —
Total sales 3446835 918,102 49257 278501 48765 4741460 (103803) 4637657
Operating expenses 3226740 847,071 54314 272,176 403,092 4,440,393 {109,682} 4,330,711
Operating income (loss) ¥ 220095 ¥ 71031 ¥ (5.057) ¥ 6325 ¥ B&73 ¥ 301067 ¥ 5879 ¥ 306946
Assets N5 ¥ 994830 ¥ 117903 ¥ 141477 ¥ 194401 ¥ 2580366 ¥ 457043 ¥ 3037379
Depreciation and

amartizauon other

than goodwill 84,570 23,062 3254 5042 13,467 129,395 (4.540) 124,855
Impairment Loss 991 184 — 70 — 1,245 10,194 11,439
Amortization of goodwil 1,088 — - 502 — 1,550 — 1,590
Capita! expenditures 75028 24995 2107 4576 19,318 126,024 (27.097) 98927

Millions of yen
_ 2007
?gbm;s:: ImTe;Ez:é?g‘ﬂ Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total %g’gg‘:{rg Consohdated

Sales 1o customers ¥ 3416274 ¥ 999658 ¥ 45452 ¥ 286,554 ¥ 21449 ¥ 4769387 ¥ — ¥ 4,769,387
Intersegment sales 45,005 26,355 — 1o 25876 97346 (97.346) —
Vowlsales 3461279 1026013 45,452 286,654 47,325 4,866,733 (97346)  4.769.387
Operating expenses 3215891 944,928 56,659 279959 37.9%4 4,535,431 {98.035) 4,437,396
‘Operating income (loss) ¥ 245388 ¥ 81085 ¥ (11207) ¥ 6705 ¥ 9331 ¥ 331302 ¥ 689 ¥ 33199
Assets ¥ 1180395 ¥ 1275045 ¥ 106,165 ¥ 158818 ¥ 249604 ¥ 2970027 ¥ 394636 ¥ 3364.663
Depreciation and

amortization other

than goodwill 79,965 31,583 3010 3894 12,254 130,706 {600} 130,106
Impairment Loss 710 12 — 44 — 866 1,846 2712
Amortization of goodwill LIt8 — e 1,419 — 2537 —_— 2,537
Capital expenditures 55,243 32017 3046 4,866 8.054 103,226 {1,079 102,147
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Nomestic
Tobacco

tntemational

Pharmaceuticals
Tobacco

Sales 1o customers
Intersegment sales
Total sales -
Operating expenses
Operaﬂnéincéme (_Io;s)-
Assets
Depreciation and
amortization other
than goodwill .
Impaiment Loss
Amortization of goodwill

Capital expenditures

Millions of yen

Ekringtion/

c Consohdaled
orporte

Foods Others Totdl

Intematianal
Tobacco

Comeslic

g Ph, |
Tobaceo armaceuticals

Sales to customers : e
Intersegment sales
Total sales

Operating expenses
6pe?at]n§?€o?l€ EES)
Assets

Depreciation and

amortization other

than goodwill
Impairment Loss
Amortization of goodwill
Capital expenditures

Miltions of U.S. dollars

Elimination/

Corporzte Consolidated

Foods Others Total

Operating expenses represent the aggregate amount of the cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses. Capital
expendiures include jong-term prepaid expenses and expensed
amounts of the long-tenm prepaid expenses are included in depreci-
ation and amortization other than goodwill.

The change was to reflect the fact that |T, during the period
ended March 31, 2006, started the import, manufacturing and sales
of foreign consolidated subsidiaries’ products for the Japanese mar-

ket, Intersegment goodwill acquisiton by |T was inciuded n capial
expenditures of the Domestic Tobacco segment, and 15 elinwnated
in Elmination / Corporate.

The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by 15 Network
Co. Ltd. Net sales of such imporied tobacco products via TS
Network Co. Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and
2008 were ¥1,160,744 million, ¥1,216,24% million and ¥1,193.178
milkon ($11,909 millicn), respectively.
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(2) Geographical Segments
The geographical segments of the Group for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

2006
Sales 1o customers ¥ 3709964 ¥13B606 ¥ 589087 ¥ 4637657 ¥ — ¥ 4637657
Intersegment sales 42,368 153514 18943 214,825 (214,825) -
Total sales 3752332 492,120 608030 4852482  (214825) 4637457
Operating expenses 3524,195 492967 535165 4,552,327 (221,616} 4330711
Operating income (loss) ¥ 118137 ¥ (847) ¥ 72865 ¥ 300155 ¥ 6791 ¥ 306946
‘Assets T o ¥ 1446958 ¥ 760456 ¥ 276327 ¥ 2483741 ¥ 553638 ¥ 3037379
Millions of yen
2007
yapan “g':r‘;g:‘ Others Toul %m‘:{: Canscdated

Sales to customers ¥ 3718450 ¥ 353831 ¥ 697106 ¥ 4769387 ¥ —  ¥4769387
Intersegment sales 47,350 156,414 23331 227095 (227,095) —
Total sales i TT3765800 510245 720437 4996482  (227.095) 4769387
Operating expenses 3517318 529,055 518885 4665258  (227.862)  44373%
"Operating income (loss) ¥ 248482 ¥ (1BBI0) ¥ 101552 ¥ 331204 ¥ 767 ¥ 33199
Assets TY 1487678 ¥ 1023183 ¥ 304630 ¥ 2815491 ¥ 549,172 ¥ 3364663

Westemn

Millions of yen

W

Elimination/

Japan Europe Others Totat e e Consohdated
Sales to customers
Intersegment sales
Total sales
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Assets

Millions of LS. dollars
Japan v;:ii:;n Cihers Tou %;unatio‘r: Consohdated

Sales to customers
Intersegment sales

Total sales
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Assets

b

“Western Europe” includes Switzerland, United Kingdom and
Germany while "Others” includes Canada, Russia and Malaysia ior
the year ended March 31, 2008. Operating expenses represent the
aggregate amount of the cost of sales and selling, general and

administrative expenses.

for the years ended March 34, 2006 and 2007, "Western
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Europe” includes Switzerland, France and Germany.

(3) Sales to Foreign Customers
Sales to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2006,
2007 and 2008 amounted to ¥935,198 million, ¥1.056,762 million

and ¥2,705,461 million {($27,003 million), respectively.



18.Derivatives

JT and certain consolidated subsidiaries use derivative financial instruments ("derivatives”), including derivatives described befow, to hedge

the foreign exchange risk associated with certain assets and liabilities in fo

reign currencies.

2006 2007

Foreign currency forward contracts Foreign currency forward contracts

Currency options
Currency swaps

|T and certain consolidated subsidiaries also entered into denivatives desc

ribed below as a manner of managing their interest rate exposure.

2006 2007

Interest rate swaps Interest rate

Denvatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Market risk. is
the exposure areated by potential fluctuations in market conditions,
including interest or foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possi-
bility that a loss may result from a counterparty’s failure to perform
according to the terms and conditions of the contract.

The Group does not hold or issue derivatives for trading pur-
poses. The main objective of using derivatives is to hedge the
Group exposure to interest rate risks associated with certain future
interest receipts on debt securities, certain interest payments on

swaps

borrowings and bonds and farecasted foreign currency denominat-
ed transactions.

The effectiveness of the hedging instruments is assessed in accar-
dance with the Risk Management Policy and Practice Manual for
financial instruments of |T and certain consolidated subsidianes by
comparing the accumulated amount of changes in hedging instru-
ments with hedged items. Hedging instruments and hedged items
are summarized as lcllows:

2006
Hedging nstruments Hedged items
Foreign currency forward contracts Forecasted foreign currency transactions
Interest rate swaps Borrowings and Japanese yen bonds
2007

Hedging instruments

Foreign currency forward contracts
Currency options
Interest rate swaps

H;:dged items -
Forecasted fareign currency transactions
Forecasted foreign currency transactions

Borrowings

tiedging instruments

Hedged items
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Because the counterparties to the derivatives are limited to major
international financial nstitutions, the Group does not anticipate any

losses arising from credit nsk.,

The Group had the following derivatives contracts that do not
qualify for hedge accounting as of March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008:

2006

Far
Value

Contract/
Notional
Amount
Foreign currency forward contracts:
¥ 12621

43234

Buying ¥ 12,330
Selling
Currency swaps:

Buying — —_

Selling —_ —

Currency options;
24,201 212
Selling — —

Buying

Contract/
Notional
Amount

Gan
(Loss)

¥ (291)

212 —
— 2615

Millions of yen
2007

Fair
Valve

(318)

Contracl/
Naotional
fLoss) otion ‘

Fair Gan
Value {Loss)

Gain

¥ 2972 ¥ 3113 ¥ 14)
3663 _(429)  d0e24 4083 (215)

(318)

Total

¥ (508)

¥ (392)

Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed pay floating — —
Interest rate cap options:

Buying — —
Totat

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying
Selling

Millions of U.S. dollars

Contract/
Nouonal
Amount

Fair Gan
Value (Loss)

Currency swaps;
Buying
Selling

—Eurrency options:
Buying
Selling
Total

Interest rate swaps:
Receive fixed pay floating
Interest rate cap options:
Buying

Total

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties
and do not measure the Group's exposure 1o credit or market nsks,

9%



19.Net Income Per Share

ended March 31, 2006 is as {ollows;

{1} Net income per share and weighted-average number of commen shares outstanding retroactively adjusted for siock spit, for the year

Years ended March 31,

Net income per share

The weighied-average number of common shares outstanding

2006

¥21017
9.580.080

{23 Recondiliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share ("EPS™) for the year ended March 31, 2008 s as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2008:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock acquisition rights
Ciluted EPS:
Net income for computation

Millions of yen Shares Yen LS. dellars

Weighted

average shares EPS

Met income

20.Subsequent Event

b, JT's board of directors decided on Apnit 18, 2008 that, regarding

the |T's now-defunct condominiums and unused warehouses, |T
will demolish the existing buildings en the individual properties, if
demoliton would contribute 1o the sale of the fand or increase
its property value. JT estimates losses resulting from the demoli-
tion 10 be approximately ¥15.0 billion ($150 millian), which
would be allocated as other expenses in the fiscal year ending
Mareh 31, 2009

2. On Apnl 25. 2008, Gallaher Ltd. (Gallaher), |T's tobacco sub-

sidiary in the United Kingdom, received a statement of objections
from the Office of Fair Trading (OFT}, the UK competition
authonity. The staterment of objections addresses the passibility of

anti-competitive behavior with respect to retail prices for tobacco
products in the UK market prior to |T's acquisition of Gallaher,

In August 2003, the OFT notified Gallaher of an inquiry into
vertical agreements between manufacturers and retailers in the
UK cigarette, tobacco and tobacco-relaled markets. Since that
time Gallaher has been fully cooperating with the OFT regarding
the inguiry.

The Group is reviewing the statement of abjections and will
respond to the OFT as required.

While the matter is still under review, a certain amount, based
on the company’s current assumptions, has been booked as non-
current liabllities in the purchase price allocation related to JT's
acquisition of Gallaher.
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. Independent Auditors’ Report

- Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
MS Shibaura Building 4-13-23,
® Shibaura, Minato-ku,

Tokyo 108-8530. Japan
Tek +81-3-3457-7321
Fax: +81-3-3457-1694
www.deloitte.com/jp

To the Board of Directors of

Japan Tobacco Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Japan Tobacco Inc. (JT) and consolidated subsidiaries (the “"Company”)
as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2008, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financiai statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of

the years in the peried ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consclidated financial statements, [TI-Macdonald Corp. ("ITI-MC"}, §T's Canadian subsidiary, received a
Notice of Assessment from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue on August 1§, 2004, demanding payment of approximately Canadian dollar
1.36 billion (approximately ¥114.6 billion). JTI-MC filed an application of Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act ("CCAA™) to the Omario
Superior Court of Justice on August 24, 2004, and the filing of CCAA makes it possible for |TI-MC to continue business operations with its

assets safeguarded.

Our audits also comprehended the transtation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has
been made in conformity with the basis stated in Nate 2. Such U.S. dallar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers out-

side Japan.

Delsi . Toeckle Totonitin,

Tokyo, Japan
June 24, 2008
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100 Financial Data

100

01

i02

103

105

MNet Sales including Taxes
Net Sales Excluding Taxes
SG&A Expenses

R&D Expenses

EBITDA

Operating Income

Non-Operating Income and Expenses

Recurring Profit
Extracrdinary Profit and Loss
Net Income (Loss}
Eamings per Share (EPS)
Return on Equity (ROE)
Return on Assets (ROA)
Free Cash Flow (FCF)
Capital Expanditure (CAPEX)
Depreciation & Amortization
Total Assets
Total Equity and Equity Rato
Book Value per Share (BPS)
Liquidity and Interest-Bearing Debt
Debt / Equity Ratio
Interest Coverage Ratio
Annual Dividends per Share
Dividend Payout Ratio

on a Consclidated Basis

Fact Sheets

106 Domestic Tobacco Business

t06  Total Domestic Market
|7 Sales Volume and §T Share
Sales Volume of China Division and
Domestic Duty-Free
107  Market Share by |T Brand Family
Top 20 Selling Products in Japan
by Market Share

108  Market Share by Tar Level
(Market Share in Top 100 Sales Products)
Market Share by Tar Level (JT Products)
Menthol Products Market Share
Products Priced at ¥320 or more per pack
and D-spec Products Market Share
109 JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes per
Thousand Cigarettes
Composition of | T Products by Price Range
110 New Product Launches and Sales Area
Expansicn
Number of New Products Launches
Number of jT Cigarette Products
111 Smoking Rate (by gender)
Smoking Rate (by age)
12 Taxation
Changes of Tobacco Excise Taxes
Breakdown of Price Levels
per Cigarettes Package
113 Taobacco Manufacturing System
Number of Domestic Cigarette
Manufacturing Factonies
Tobacco Manufacturing-related
Factory Location
14 Tobacco Sales System
MNumber of Tobacco Retailers
MNumber of Tobacco Vending Machines
Number of Tobacco Vending Machines
()T Tobacco Vending Machines)

Note This “Fact Sheets” has been prepared in atcondance with disclosure nules in japan.

I15

16
16

17

118

e

e

Number of Domestic Tobacco Growers
and Area under Domestic Leaf Tobacco
Cultivation

Volume of Domestic and
Intermationat Leaf Tobacco Purchase

Value of Domestic Leal Tobacco Purchase
and Price per 1kg
Leal Tobacco Reappraisal Profit / Loss

International Tobacco Business

Worldwide Demand for Cigarette
Market Share of the Top Intemational
Tobacco Companies
Top 10 Brands by Sales Volume Worldwide
Tobacco Sales Volume (by Brand)
Tobacco Sales Volume (by Region)
Net Sales Excluding Taxes per
Thousand Cigarettes
Number of Intemational Factories

Pharmaceutical Business
R&D Expense on a Non-consolidated Basis
Clinical Devetopment

Foods Business

Net Sales
MNumber of Marking /
Combined Vending Machines

Number of Employees

MNumber of Employees
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- Financial Data

8 Net Sales Including Taxes

(Bilions of Yen) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
2,000 L1 Total 3765 13712 45017 45441 44922 46251 46645 16376 47693 64097
000 ‘ Tobacco Business 36167 40244 41402 41780 41344 42369
Domestic 34914 34052 34162 33623
5000 International 7927 BBl 9996 26399
450 Pharmaceutical Business 237 677 664 61B  S39 512 576 492 454 490
3ot Foods Business 1507 1950 2103 22101 2324 2501 2653 2783 2865 3364
2,000 Other Business 853 839 846 830 ! 868 572 235 214 218
1,000
© 59 '00 ‘0 '02 '03 T4 05 '06 ‘07 '08
B Net Sales Excluding Taxes
(Blions of Yer) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2000 2002 2003 1004 2005 2006 1007 2008
2000 O Total 16551 1.881.0 1596 20419 20075 20198 20139 20087 20510 25873
Tobacco Business 1,3954 1,5343 16352 16758 16497 16315
Domestic 1,2038 L1732 LI47.2 1,102
2,000 International 4257 4843 5503 1.0577
Pharmaceutical Business 237 677 bb.4 618 539 51.2 576 49.2 454 490
Foods Business 1507 1950 2103 2211 2324 3501 2653 2783 2865 3364
1.000 Other Business B5.3 839 84.6 830 714 86.8 57.2 235 214 218
% 39 00 ‘01 '02 03 ‘04 '05 '0& 07 '08
® SG&A Expenses
(Gillons of Yen) Years ended March 3| 1999 2000 2000 2002 3003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
00 - [ SG&A 5582 7126 7905 7815 7339 V07! 6774 5966 5926 7502
r 185 _ Personnel % 1587 2072 2206 2227 2097 2053 1839 1508 1585 2060
00 ST R Advertising and
General Publicity 3.5 369 483 40.2 357 354 274 233 234 29
0 Sales Promotion 1097 1345 1625 1552 1420 1417 1401 1421 1280 1636
RAD 7 47.5 470 524 44.5 42.1 404 375 41.2 45.1
200 Depreciation 16.6 51.2 5589 59.5 567 567 54.2 534 574 BO3
* Personnel expense is the sum of compensation, salanes. allowances. provision for retrement benefits, statutory benefits, employee
bonuses and accrual of employee bonuses

O 99 00 (01 02 DI ‘04 05 06 07 08

¥ R&D Expenses

{Billlons of Yen) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2000 2004 2005 2006 p 008
0 ORsD 475 47.0 527 44.5 422 40.5 375 41.2 45.1
M Tobacco Business 157 137 14.5 14.8 16.6
1 1 - Domestic 61 K51 151 158
0 Intemnational 21 09 1.3 33
Pharmaceutical Business 289 305 354 27.1 237 205 19.9 134 244
Foods Business 09 07 07 1.2 1.0 10 08 07 0.7
* Other Business 1.8 1.1 o7 06 0.l 00 — — —
Note. R&D expense in FY2000-2005 includes expenses posted 4s manufaciunng cost

© oy 91 '02 03 04 '05 06 07 VA
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B EBITDA

(Billions of Yen)
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B QOperating Income

{Biltions of Yen)
500
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300

0

g

@ ‘99 '00 ‘01 02 ‘03 04 05 ‘06 0T 08

Years ended March 3| 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
[ EBITDA 3t5.1 3120 3341 3372 3734 4000 4333 4646 6020
Tobacco Business 2994 2963 3209 3M4 343
Domestic 290 3057 3264 3067
Intemnational 654 940 1126 2707
Pharmaceutical Business 0.7) 3.n (8.5) (5.0 (4.4} 5.4 (1.8 81 (6.2)
Foods Business 04 (26} 22 05 33 79 e 120 83
Cther Business 160 200 196 196 306 268 221 215 220

Nate EBITDA = operating income + deprediation and amorization

B Non-QOperating Income and Expenses

(Biflors of Yun)

”HUU“ il
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(10}
(20)
(30)
{40)
0
0)

G0 99 00 b1 '02 03 04 05 '06 07 *
B Recurring Profit

{Bktions of Yan)
400

200

8

08

0 99 00 0102 03 T4 08 '0¢ 07 ‘08

Years endad March 34 1999 2000 2001 3002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
3 Operating Income 1488 (535 1399 1638 (889 2340 2733 3069 331% 4305
Tobacco Business 1938 IBIS 1659 1921 233 2384
Domestic 2158 2200 2453 2223
International 444 710 810 2053
Pharmaceutical Business  {126)  (114) (128) (1B9) {138) (i2& 18  {(50) {1Ly (96}
Foods Business 86) (145 (173) (118 {131}y (48 1.9 63 6.7 06
Cther Business (26 (.7 34 1.7 09 139 104 8é 9.3 104
Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(] Non-Operating Income
and Expenses (36) (143) {7.8) (71y  (15.7)  (20¢4) {3 9.1y (199 (678)
Non-Operating income 159 226 15.1 P2 9.3 103 159 126 160 215
Financial Income ‘* ! 99 75 65 47 37 32 33 59 121 134
Non-Operatng Expenses 195 370 230 183 250 307 190 17 359 8941
Financial Expense '*% 4.6 159 124 ig2 8.7 8. 5.1 5.7 65 420

* | Financiak income 15 the sum of interest income, nterest on masketable secunties. interest on investment secunues, vdend INCoMe.,
profit on redemption of secunties, etc.
*2 financiaf expense 15 the sum of interest expense, bond snterest paid. loss of redemptzon of secunties, elc.

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 200% 2002 2003 2004 2005 004 2007 2008
[3 Recurring Profit 1652 1395 1320 1566 1732 2135 2702 2578 3120 3626
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® Extraordinary Profit and Loss

{Billlony of Yan}
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# Net Income (Loss)

(Billions of Yen)
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& Earnings per Share (EPS)

(Yen}
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® Return on Equity (ROE)

%)

+ o @

»

102

‘9% '00 ‘01 02 '03 ‘04 03 06 07 ‘08

Years ended March 3 1999 2000 2004 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
O Exvaordicary Proftand Loss (5.0)  {120) (123} (584) (307) (221.2) (1689} 31 25 99
Extraordinary Profit 6.2 168 207 3C0 183 293 79.2 654 50.8 68.9

Gain on Sale of Property,
Plant and Equipment 45 80 16.3 282 154 17.2 733 600 475 66.7
Extraordinary Loss 1.3 188 330 88.5 490 2505 24B2 623 257 590

Loss on Sale of Property,

Plant and Equipment Q.1 29 1.6 22 26 48 22 248 31 32
Loss on Disposal of Property,

Plant and Equipment 9.2 1.9 133 93 98 108 i36 12.2 104 63
Business Restructunng Costs — . — 134 1.4 408 2248 B0 — 6.4
Imparment Loss — —_ - —_ — —_ oA] 1.4 27 38
Introduction Casts for Vending

Machines with Adult

Identification Functions  ~— — — — - -— — Ql 57 128
Cogts related 1o the Recall of

Frozen Foods Products  — —_ —_ — — — - — — 1.0
Wirite-down of Investment

Securities — — —_ —_ — —_ —_ —_ —_ 56

Note. Extracrdinary loss in FY2004 includes ¥ 185 tillion of one-time loss on recognition of obligations under the Pubhc Official Mutual

Astistance Assocation Law

Years ended March 3| 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 006 1007 2008
O Net Income {Loss) 746 50.7 436 368 753 (7.6) 625 2015 2107 2387

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
O ERS 37316 25395 21,843 18425 37527 (3966) 32089 105084 22001 24918

Note A 5 for | stock spl went into effect on Apnl |, 2006

Years ended March 31 1959 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
— ROE 5.4 35 29 24 47 ©.5) 12 i24 1.3 118




B Return on Assets (ROA)

'$9 '00 "0 02 '03 04 '05 D6 07 08

® Free Cash Flow (FCF)

{Bilons of Yan}
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¥ Capital Expenditure (CAPEX)
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8 Depreciation & Amortization

(Billions of Yen)

W00

4

9 00 0 01 0] 04 03 06 07 08

ST

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 W00 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 008
— ROA 8.3 &i 47 54 6.4 79 9.2 104 107 105

Note ROA-(Operating income + Finanoal Income) / Total Assets [average of beginaing and ending figure for the penod]

Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 005 2006 2007 2008
O FCF (7864 3073 314 1703 2691 2694 1455 2230 (1A4937)

Note. FCF = {cash flow from operating actrities + ¢ash flaw from investng actmiLies) excluding the following tems'
From “cash Bow fom operaung actrties': Dradends recened 7 nterest recenved and its Lax effect / interest pad and its tax effect
From “zash flow from investing actraties™: Cash outflow from purchase of markelable securities / proceeds from sales of
marketable securitics / cash outfiow from purchases of snvesiment secunties / proceeds from sales of nvestment secuntes /
others {but not business-relaled investment securilies. which are incluged in the mnvestment secunties item}

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 01 002 2003 2004 2005 2006 007 2008
[ Capital Expenditure B0 4428 1148 965 109.1 308 B5.1 28.9 102.1 1295
Tobacce Business 576 4011 773 700 609 60.5
Domestic 464 750 55.2 57.2
Intemational 187 245 320 484
Pharmaceutical Business 1.7 38 16 22 1.1 26 34 21 1o 42
Foods Business 17 145 4.2 69 72 A 73 45 418 60
Other Business 17.8 232 252 18.1 388 18.0 106 19.3 ac 14.7

Notes: | CAPEX in FY 1999-2000 = Targitle Assets + Intangible Assels
2 CAPEX in FY2001-2008 = Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Long-Term Prepaid Expenses
3. CAPEX, in FY2000 includes intangible Assets of ¥323 billon related to the RJRI acquistion

Years ended March 3| 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 1004 2005 2006 2007 2008
3 Depreciation & Amortization 88.6 1388 1720 170.3 1483 1334 1267 126.4 1326 1715
Tobacco Business 638 1101 1303 1288 108D 1047
Domestic 801 8556 81.0 843
International 210 30 315 653
Pharmaceutcal Business 34 49 97 104 8.7 85 36 32 30 33
Foods Business 37 60 147 14.1 13.7 8.1 55 5.5 53 76
Other Business 170 17.1 166 178 18,7 186 163 134 122 16

Notes: 1. Depregation & Armortization in FYE999-2000 = Depreciation of Tangble Fixed Assets + Armortzation of intangible Fixed Assets
2 Deprecanon & Amontizaton in FY2001-2008 = Deprenanon of Tangible Fxed Assets + Amortization of intangible Fixed Assets
+ Amortizaton of Long-Term Prepaid Expenses + Amortizauon of Goodwill

T Annual Report 2008 103




B Total Assets

(Billions of Yen)
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B Total Equity and Equity Ratio

{Billions of Yen} (%)
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B Book Value per Share (BPS)

(Yen)
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® Liquidity and Interest-Bearing Debt

(Billions of Yen)
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1.200

900

i i
1' ll'z_

O 99 '00 ‘01 02 '03 'O4 05 '06 BT ‘08

300

104

As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2002 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

O Total Assels 22285 30952 3.1882 130630 29576 30290 29820 30373 33616 50872
Tobacco Business 1,6349 23467 24527 23095 L1530 21222

Dormestic 12982 11317 11803 847

Intemational 8385 9948 12750 3B(44

Pharmaceutical Business 1211 1266 1299 1252 1147 1143 W78 1179 W06l 1114

Foods Business 926 1269 1338 1332 1353 t4l4 1416 1414 1588 3532

Cther Business 1750 1955 1981 1901 2365 2302 1970 1944 2496 $0.0

As of March 31 1999 2000 001 2002 2003 1004 2005 2006 W07 2008

{3 Total Equity 14159 1,5265 15138 16131 16226 15079 14982 17625 20246 21546

= Equity Ratio 63.5 493 475 507 549 4%.8 502 580 583 408

Note. Total Equity i Y 1999-2006 excludes Minority Interests
As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
8PS 707998 763291 756,922 806,552 811204 771516 781813 919.780 204517 216707

Notes: |, Tota! Equity in FY 1999-2006 exciudes Minonty Interests
2. A5 for | stock splt went imo effect on April 1, 2006

As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 3003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
O Liquidity *+ 8062 4968 6457 5507 6235 7984 8636 9796 11856 2188
[ Interest-Bearing Debt*» 1233 6605 6060  SI1.7 4244 3817 2307 2166 2192 1.3892

*| Liquidity = Cash and deposits + Marketable securities + Commertial Paper received under repurchase agreement

*7 Interest-Beanng Debt = Short-term Debt {includes current portion of Bonds and current portion of Long-term Debt) + Bonds +

Long-term Debt



W Debt/ Equity Ratio

a As of Mareh 3| 1993 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
imes)
07 — Debt / Equity Ratio 009 043 040 032 0.26 0325 015 0.tz Qll 0.64
06
05
o4
03
02
ol
9 95 00 01 T2 03 04 05 ‘04 07 ‘08
¥ Interest Coverage Ratio
(Times) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2000 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
umes
" — Interest Coverage Ratio 388 10.2 1.8 16.5 221 293 54.2 549 499 106
Note. Interest Coverage Ratio = {Operating Income + Financal Income} / Financial Expense
0
20
© 99 00 '01 ‘02 '03 ‘04 '05 '0& '07 08
8 Annual Dividends per Share
ot Years ended March 3| 1999 2000 2000 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
/N
16,000 - 3 Annual Dividends per Share 7000 8000 8000 8000 10000 10000 (3000 16000 4000 4800
{Retroactively Adjusted) 1400 1,600 1600 1600 2000 2000 2600 3200
12,000 Note. A5 for | steck spiit went into eflect on April 1, 2006
8.000
4,000 l'l
0 99 00 01 02 03 04 '05 '06 07 08
® Dividend Payout Ratio on a Consolidated Basis
- Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
100 — Dividend Payout Ratic 18.8 315 ELYS 43.4 266 {2521) 40.5 15.2 182 123
TN N—
° A
(x00)
(300) 99 00 1 02 '03 T4 05 '06 07 0B
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Domestic Tobacco Business

¥ Total Domestic Market

(Billions of Clgarettes)
EEL I R
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® |T Sales Volume and JT Share

(Billions of Cigarattes) (%)
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® Sales Volume of China Division and Domestic Duty-Free

{Billions of Cigarectes}
e A N

w2 03 0+ 08 06 ©7 08

106

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 W00 2002 2003 004 2005 2005 2007 21008
[ Total Domestic Market 3366 332 3245 3193 3126 2994 2926 1852 2700 2585

Source. Tobacco Insutute of Japan

Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
3 )T Sales Volume 2575 2500 24301 1372 2290 2183 2132 1894 1749 1677
= |T Share 765 753 749 743 733 729 719 664 64.8 64.9

Years ended March 31 2002 2003 it 2005 2006 2007 2008
1 Sales Volume 5.8 6.0 5.4 5. 32 34 35

Note: China Division covers China. Hong Kong, and Macau markets




® Market Share by JT Brand Family

Years ended March 31| 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 1005 2006 2007 2008
Z) 3 Mild Seven 348 345 340 332 325 326 329 322 36 320
A [ Seven Stars 78 78 77 82 B3 8.4 83 B7 9.0 89
o == E‘ ABx i ﬁ O Caster 87 83 80 78 75 71 66 63 60 59
3 Cabin 59 53 50 47 44 4,1 472 40 4.0 4.0
0 0 Peace 13032 3 30 30 30 29 29 28 28
[ Panissimo — —_ —_ —_ — —_ —_ 19 24 25
0 O Hope 2 20 2 20 w2 w2 20
L} Fronuer 33 31 9 28 26 22 19 1.7 15 1.4
o o 00 1 02 03 ,04 os 06 07 08 Other Brands 1G5 1O 121 125 13.0 135 140 6.7 5.5 54
® Top 20 Selling Products in Japan by Market Share (FY ended March 31, 2008)
Product Share (%)
| MILD SEVEN SUPER LIGHTS iT 54
2 SEVEN STARS B T 5.1
3 MILD SEVEN LIGHTS ) T 48
4 MILD SEVEN T - 40
§ MILD SEVEN ONE 00's BOX T T 32
"6 MARLBORO LIGHTS MENTHOL BOX M S 29 -
7 MILD SEVEN EXTRA LIGHTS T i T I 27
8 CASTER MILD T T 25
9 CABNMLDBOX T T T e
10 SEVEN STARS BOX o T 1.7
11 MILD SEVEN ONE T 16
12 PIANISSIMO ONE S T 16
13 KENT ULTRAI - 100's BOX T o BAT) 16
14 LARK MILDS KS BOX PM| 15 )
IS MARLBORO KS BOX PM| T8
16 MILD SEVEN LIGHTS BOX T N P
"17 CASTER ONE 100's BOX T 14
18 MILD SEVEN ONE BOX a ) T 13
19 MARLBORO UGHTS BOX - M T 13
20 HOPE (10) i T 13
Source Tobacco Insitute of Japan
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B Market Share by Tar Level (Market Share In Top 100 Sales Products)

® Years ended March 31 p]] 2002 2003 2004 2005 1006 007 2008
100 - nnnn-" Oimg 129 140 14.6 16.1 184 19.9 212 27
1
SN N A M e 023mg 8 79 75 66 67 74 70 82
80 ['4-6mg 148 240 218 135 231 3.2 234 230
w© O7-13mg 408 40.8 409 0.3 198 377 36.3 34.0
3 t4 mg or Higher 134 13.4 13.3 134 120 1.9 124 121
40 ‘ ) Source. Tobacco Insttunte of Japan
0 1 {] i: = n i
O 9 0z 03 oe DS Ve O7 08
B Market Share by Tar Level (T Producus)
- Years ended March 3t 2001 2002 2003 004 2005 2006 2007 2008
- O mg 5.8 60 6.1 72 B.S 1.7 129 140
" H [’ Nh - [123mg 58 58 59 S4 59 66 67 67
@ 1 H L 4-6mg 186 479 173 170 165 145 (39 142
1 O713mg 32 320 3la 309 00 130 19.7 18.5
o 3 14 mg or Higher 126 125 125 124 120 1.6 116 1.5
B '- e !! “ !
2 , . . | t i— - :
¢ g w2 01 o4 s 06 07 08
8 Menthol Products Market Share
” Yaars ended March 31 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
1 = Menthol Products ™ 100 1.3 12.7 14.0 164 17.2 174 19.3
— Meanthol |T Products 55 64 68 76 8.9 70 68 74
s * Market Share in top 100 sales products
Sourca. Tobacco Institute of Jupan
10
- . \ . -
5
0 01 ‘02 03 04 'O5 6 07 ‘08
® Products Priced at ¥320 or more per pack and D-spec Products Market Share
- Years anded March 31 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
n = |T Procucts Pnced at ¥320 or more per pack *! 102 11t 1.8 6.3 55 54
« D-spe¢ Products '** 001 038 053 1.72 4.04 4.59
0 *1 ~ fun. 03: ¥280 or more. Jul. 3 ~ Jun 06: ¥300 or more
o *7 D-spet products, reduced odor segment products (known as “Less Smoke Smell” products abroad). incorporate the company's ador-
reducing technology in response to customer demands for a reduction in the unpleasant smell of srnoke
6
4 .
2 wd
0
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¥ JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand Cigarettes

(e} Years ended March 3| 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
N
w100 — JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes
Per Thousand Cigarettes 3790 3822 3840 3850 3856 3508 3941 3864 3990 4057

4 y ;

o0 Note: JT Net sales excluding taxes thousand cgarcties = (retai pnce salgs - retaler marging - Consumplion (ax
1900 - nauonal topacco excse tax - local lobacco exqse Lax

' - national tobacco special excise 1ax) / sales volume X 1,000
3,800
370
3,600
3,500

9% 00 01 ‘02 '03 04 '05 '06 07 '08

® Composition of JT Products by Price Range

i Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2000 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
100 ~ AT A L] Products Priced at
ri P ! | o ¥300ormoreperpackt™ 372 365 377 382 384 426 448 402 717 870
i l ! b Products Priced at
&2 ; ¥320 or more per pack 1zl 147 lel 95 85 83
AN RINENY i B L Products Priced at
s 1 ¥310 per pack 18 10 00 00 00 00
: 1 Products Priced at
40 o ¥300 per pack 225 269 87 307 632 787
1. £ Products Priced at
0 : ¥)50oriess perpack ™ 628 635 623 618 616 574 55 598 283 131
L =1 ~ Nov. 98. ¥240 or more, Dec. 98 ~ Jun 03: ¥260 or more, Jul. 03 ~ Jur 06 ¥280 or more
© 99 100 'D) 02 03 04 05 G4 ‘07 '08 *2 =~ MNov. 98: ¥230 or less. Dec, 98 ~ jun 03 ¥250 or loss, ful 03 ~ Jun. 06 ¥270 or less
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® New Product Launches and Sales Area Expansion

Year ended March 31, 2008 (3 products) {{D-spec. one product, Menthol. two products)

Tar Nicotine N .
Date Product D-spec Menthol {mg) fmg) Price Sales Region
Jul-07 MILD SEVEN AQUA MENTHOL o 6 05 ¥300 Nationwide
SUPER LUGHTS BOX ) L ) ] )
Dec-07  MILD SEVEN D-SPEC SUPER LIGHTS BOX o] 6 05 ¥300 MNationwide
Feb-08 SEVEN STARS LIGHTS MENTHOL o] 7 06 ¥300 Tekyo, Kanagawa, Chiba, Saitama,
Techigi, Gunma, Ibaraki, Yamanashi, Ckinawa
8 Number of New Products Launches
Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 H7 2008
- 3 Number of
¥ MNew Products Launches 4 2 4 7 4 14 18 4 9 3
15
10
5 ﬂ H ﬂ
9 93 '0p '01 "02 03 04 '05 06 ‘07 '08
B Number of T Cigarette Products
As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
12 " O Number of
- M JT Cigarette Products 97 99 99 102 98 93 95 17 106 94
we NN M -~ m
&0
0
® !
0
]

99 00 04 ‘02 ‘03 04 ‘05 ‘06 07 08
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B Smoking Rate (by gender)

]
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& Smoking Rate @by age)

%
L1

40

o

Total 20s 30s 40s 50s

evar-60s

At the time of survey 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 .
— All Adults 336 336 329 327 308 03 294 292 263 260 £
- Male 552 540 535 520 494 483 469 458 413 402
- Female 13.3 145 137 4.7 140 13.6 132 138 (24 12.7

Sourge. [T “{apan Smokung Rate Survey™

* The survey method, along with the sample number, was modified from 2006, resutting in a lack of comparatiity with results pnor 1o 7006

Survey in 2007 Toual 205 30 40 50s aver-6ls
O Male 402 428 478 46.1 459 278
[ Female 127 176 189 158 140 6.l

Sourte. | T “Japan Smoking Rate Surve;”
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¥ Taxation

All tobacco products sold in Japan are subject to the national tobacco
excise 1ax, the national tobacco special excise tax, and local tobacco
excise 1ax. The national tobacco excise tax is set at ¥3,552 per thousand
cigarettes, the national tobacco special excise tax at ¥820 per thousang
cigarettes, and the local tobacco excise tax is set at ¥4,372 per thousand

B Changes of Tobacco Excise Taxes

cigarettes. In addition, under the Consumption Tax Law, a 5% consump-
tion tax is imposed as with other goods and services, All tobacco excise
taxes and consumption tax are imposed not only for tobacco products
manufactured in Japan but also for imported tobacco products. From
April 1987, no customs duties apply to imported tobacco products.

Tebacco Consumption Tax

Tobacco Excrse Tax

hem Apr-1985 May-1986 Apr-1989 Apr- 1997 Cec 1998 May. £999 Ju) 2003 Jul- 2006
Ad valorem Specific Ad valorem'™ Specrfic Specific Specific Specific Speafic Speaific Specific
(%) (¥/1.000 urus) %) 000 us)  (WHO00 unas)  (¥1000uns) (Y1000 uns)  (WL.000 unas)  (¥4.000 unas) (¥/1.000 unas)
MNational Tobaceo Excise Tax 230 582 230 1032 3.126 3126 3,126 2716 3126 3552
National Tobacco
Special Excise Tax - - - - - - 820 820 820 820
Local Tobacco Excise Tax 224 550 224 1,000 3126 3,126 3,126 3536 3946 4,372
Total Excise Tax 45.4 1132 454 2032 6,252 6,252 7072 7072 7.892 8.744
Consumption Tax — -— — — 3.0% 50% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Tobacco Regulation * Tobacco Consumption * ¥1.000 was deducted from Consumprion  + Consumption  « Natonal * Revew of « Tobarco + Tobacco
Changes Tax was introduced ax base for Ag valorem Tax was Tax was Tobacco budget alloca-  Exose Tax Excise Tax
+ Tobacco Consumpuon introduced increased Special Excse tons n kne wiis increased  was increased
Tax was increased + Tobacco Tax was with 3 reviSIon
Consumpon introduted of laws
Tax way
renamed
Tobacco '
Extise Tax
(Reference)
Retail Price of
Mild Seven per pack ¥200 ¥220 ¥2120 ¥130 vI50 ¥250 ¥270 ¥300
Tax Incidence of
Mild Seven per pack 56.7% 59.7% 59.7% 59.1% 61.3% 61.3% 632% 63.1%
(ingL Consumption Tax)
B Breakdown of Price Levels per Cigarettes Package
List prce ¥290 per pack List price ¥300 per pack st price ¥320 per pack
Comsumpuon Tax ¥ I3BL_ 476% ¥ 1429 476% ¥ 1524 A76%
Retailer's Margin ¥ 29.00 10.009% ¥ 3000 10.00% ¥ 3200 10.00%
Total Tobacce Excise Tax ¥174.88 60.30% ¥174.88 58.29% ¥174.88 54.65% Retal price
_National Tobacco Excise Tax ¥ 7104 24.50% ¥ 7103 2368% ¥ 711 22.30% Net sales sales! P
_Local Tobacco Bxcise Tax ¥ 8744 30.15% ¥ 8744 29.15% ¥ 8744 1733% “e;_,;?ng Laxes
Natonal Tobacco Special Excise Tax ¥ 1640 5.66% ¥ 1640 547% ¥ 1640 5.13% Net sales
{T's Proceeds ¥ 7231 24.93% ¥ 8083 16.94% ¥ 9788 3059% } exchuding taxes

12




® Tobacco Manufacturing System

Leaf processing facrory

5t epnauonal
eaflesbacto)

Ormnzde | . - . ]
e iRolacee) | ik il Wi . TR Berine

Decompose leaves no
mesophyt and van

Dry leaves 10 adjust morsture
content appropriate for
storng and npening

Pack dned-leaves in an
appropnate poruon lor
storing and transparting.

Repen leaves for a certam
penod

B [P ——

Cigarette manufacturing factory

Retailer T Halledomw - Qulfis -— * Py J -— s -~ BERat )
Pack cigarettes imo parcels Roll cigarettes Add aromatc essences called Cut leaves into smaler pieces Beend several ieaves

or cartons and cardboard 10D eSSNg
boxes.
® Number of Domestic Cigarette Manufacturing Factories
As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 200¢ 2007 2008
% ONMMAN 13 Domestic Cigaretle
1 Manufactunng Factories 25 25 25 25 25 22 18 10 10 10
20 _
15
10
5

¢ 99 'O 'GI 'O 'O ‘04 °05 06 07 08

® Tobacco Manufacturing-related Factory Location

As of March 31, 2008

:' \\_ . 4 /’/

Cigarette manufacturing factories: 10 ¢ ) ‘-/1
© Morioka factory o ) ‘/“:’
© Koriyama factory .-/) ot /
© Kita-Kanto lactory ( L S \\
© Odawara factory s

D
© Tokai lactory r o

© Hamamatsu factory

g ~,
& Kanazawa faciory {to be dosed » Marth 31,2009) \
o Kansai factory /
& Yonago factory J /\‘!
© Kyushy factory %L \
AES
4 /A
®
+*.
R
7
/i'&n ‘ﬁlr'
TN

Other tobacco related facwories: 4

© Tomobe factory

Q Hiratsuka factory

0 Okayama printing lactory
© Hofu factory
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® Tobacco Sales System

saIesI i
direct sales
IT }‘ — ""'"_" Wholesalers
licensing
approval | [ requirement regstration for by way of wholesalers
for selling the wholpsale or direct sales
requirement for the approval r
of retad prce . * approval
[ po i tedollnllicd [ Registered Importers
approval requirement for the
approval of retal prce
registration natibcation ¥mporis
regstration requirement for
registered importers [Fore?gnToba.om Conparles!
B Number of Tobacco Retailers
As of March 31| 199¢ 2000 001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
{Thousands of Stores)
150 {0 Tobacco Retailers 159 302 306 307 307 305 304 304 302 298
.~ MMM AAA Source Ministry of Finance
i)
50
200
150
100
50
9 95 100 DI ‘U2 03 04 '0S 04 '07 0B
8 Number of Tobacco Vending Machines
As of December 31 1998 1999 2000 20¢1 2002 1003 1004 2005 2006 2007
{Thoysands)
700 {1 Total Tobacco
NOAMNONN Vending Machines 527 529 625 619 629 676 622 ele 565 520
£00 -
m Source. |apan Vending Machine Manufacturers Association
500
400
300
pod
100
o ‘98 '99 '00 '01 02 01 04 05 06 'OF
® Number of Tobacco Yending Machines (T Tobasco Vending Machines)
As of March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
{Thousands)
0 O T Tobacco
L Vending Machines 146 193 220 251 254 237 226 243 228 207
200
100

© 99 '00 "6l '02 03 D4 05 D6 07 ‘08
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8 Number of Domestic Tobacco Growers and Area under Domestic Leaf Tobacce Cultivation

Years ended March 3t 999 2000 1001 2002 2001 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
{Thowands of Growsrs) {Thousands. of Hecrares}
" 10 [ Number of Domestic
Tobacco Growers 25 24 23 21 20 20 18 14 14 13

=3

T — Area under Domestic
0 2 Leal Tobacco Cultivation 25 H 24 23 23 22 21 15 18 17

S
)

0«93 00 ‘0l '02 03 '04 05 Vs 07 08 0

B Volume of Domestic and International Leaf Tobacco Purchase

@ s of Tans) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 007 2008

hausands of Tons

. . f 3 Domestic 63 64 60 60 58 50 52 46 37 7
-0 - O Intemational 100 95 94 [Ae1] 85 90 85 39 60 68

[+]

" i

40

W0

O 59 'p0 "G) ‘DT 03 ‘04 05 04 07 08

¥ Value of Domestic Leaf Tobacco Purchase and Price per lkg

Years ended Mareh 31 199% 2000 2001 1002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
{Billions of Yen) (Yen)
200 21600 [ Amount 1185 1216 1174 114.7 109.2 93.1 980 84.3 685 69.2
— Price per | kg 1853 1879 1926 1895 1878 1839 1862 1BOI 1818 1,833
150 1,300
100 1,800

]
I
8

9 39 00 01 02 03 ‘04 '05 06 07 08 00

® Leaf Tobacco Reappraisal Profit / Loss

(@ilions of Yeo) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 w001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
s 00 Leaf Tobacco Reappraisal 128 14.7 49 1.9 07 66 %8) (35 9.5 At
12 Mote. { ) indicates reappraisal loss

9
il
(ool 10

(12} 99 9o 01 '02 03 04 05 0& ‘07 ‘08

JT Annual Report 2008 115




International Tobacco Business

8 Worldwide Demand for Cigarette

Years ended December 31 1997 1938 1999 1000 2001 -

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

{Blllicns of Cigarettes)
{0 Werldwide Demand

6000
for Cigaretie 5413 5372 5407 5469 5471 5494 5508 5597 5585 5686
_ A~ Source. The Maxwell Report
5500 j
5,000
4,500

4000 gy ‘98 ‘99 00 "0l 0 'D1 ‘04 05 06

W Market Share of the Top International Tobacco Companies

%,

(Yeirs ended Cecember 31| 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 04 2005 2006
Altria 175 176 162 165 166 166 168 170 77 178
British American Tobacco i3 T 33 1390 148 148 14l 144 152 s2. 12.1
I 47 47 85 82 83 80 77 77 74 74
Reynolds American 59 56 18 18 17 1.7 15 20 19 19
Rothmans 44 43 13 — = - — S —

Source. The Maxwel Report

¥ Top 10 Brands by Sales Yolume Worldwide
(Bullions of cigarettes)
Years ended December 31

Torl World Annual Sales Volume

Brand Brand Owner 2005 2006
|. Marlboro Altria 4727 466.3
2. Winston ' Total ® 91.3 108.0
T 771 94.6
Reynolds Amencan 14.2 13.3
T3 MidSeven il 7 106t
4. L&M Altria 106.2 1049
5 Camet o Total N 590 607
T 357 36.1
Reynoids American 2313 24.7
6. Cleopatra h Eastern Tobacco 572 N/A
C7Pall Mal Reynolds American, 397 7533
‘ British American Tobacco
8 Kent British American Tobacco, Lorillard 395 456
79.7C7)e7r"by T T T Betsh American Tobacco, Ada 421 428
10. Wills Gold Flake British American Tabacco 343 384

Sourte. The Maxwell Repon
* Safes volume within the United States and that outside the United States belong o Reynolds Amencan and [T, respectivedy

6



¥ Tobacco Sales Volume (by Brand)

(Biliors of Cigarettas) Years ended December 31 2000 2001 002 2003 1004 2005 2006 2007

Total 2030 2151 2033 1988 2124 2203 2400 3856

o0 GFB Total 957 1078 1098 1175 1314 1338 14901 2032

- Winston 350 430 480 559 70.1 764 939 1D

100 O Camel EELY 360 340 348 35.1 352 354 386

. 3 Mild Seven 160 180 17.0 172 172 175 175 168

” | I3 Benson & Hedges 83

200 : - O  SikCu 35

H H [ | H ﬂ . LD 17.5

n nn N O  Sobrane 12

100 H ﬂ ” O  Glamour 5.9

ﬂ H ” H 0  Other Brands 1074 1073 935 81.3 81.0 86.5 910 1824

F) P . N Notes 1, Sdles volume in the China Division (China Hong Kong, and Macau) was ingluded in 2000 and 2001, but excluded from 2002 1o 2007
00 'Ol 02 03 '04 05 06 ¥

2. GFB in FY2000-2006: Winston, Camel. Mild Seven, Salem

GFB in FY2007: Winston, Camel, Mild Seven, Benson & Hedges, Sik Cut, LD, Sobranie, Glamour

| Tobacco Sales Yolume {by Region)

Years ended December 3| 2000 2001 2002 1003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(Billioms of Cigaretces)
0 Total 2031 2150 2033 1988 2124 2203 400
Asia 380 420 390 404 406 335 29.1
' 03 Evrope 70 380 /O 369 3B W2 44l
100 ¥ O  Americas e 118 100 99 99 9.3 a8
" O CK & Others 1180 1240 1160 111e 1236 1383 1580
100 ) Total 240k 3856
il North & Central Europe 57 39.3
T C5+ 1086 1951
100 0O South & West Europe 40.t 552
O Rest of the World 85.7 955
-l Note: Sales volume in the Chna Divsion {Chira. Hong Kong and Macau) were actudexd in 2000 and 2001, but exduded from 2002 to 2007
o 00 Qr 07 03 04 OS5 0s 07
® Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand Cigarettes
Years ended December 31 2000 1001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
{J.5.Dollar)
% [ et Sales Excluding Taxes por
Thousand Cigarettes 14.4 140 150 174 18.6 15.9 197 208
10 N Note: Net sales in the China Division (China. Flong Kong, and Macau) were included in 2000 and 2001, but excluded from 2002 1o 2007
15
0

"3

¢ 01 0 0 ‘04 ‘05 D6 07

B Number of International Factories

As of March 31 2001 2002 2003 1004 2005 2006 007 2008
1 3 Number of Intemational Factories 19 17 16 14 16 17 17 3
0
13
0
15
10
5
¢ D97 01 ‘04 05 ‘06 07 ‘08
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Pharmaceutical Business

B R&D Expense on a Non-consolidated Basis

Years ended March 31 2000 2000 200@ 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
{Biltions of Yen)
3 - 00 RED Expense on a
Non-tonsolidated Basis 260 290 345 264 234 20.1 19.3 219 229
n r
H]
0
15
1%
s
© 9o ol 2 03 ‘04 ©5 Vs 07 00
B Clinical Development
As of May |, 2008
Code Stage Indication Mechanism Characteristics Rights
JTT-705 Phase 2 Dyslipidemia CETP inhibitor Decreases LDL and increases HDY, by inhibition of CETP Roche (Switzerland} obtains the
{oral} {IPN) — CETP: Cholesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facilitates rnghts 10 develop and commer-
transfer of cholesteryl ester from HDL to LDL gialize this cornpound worldwide,
— HDL: High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol with the exception of Japan,
— LDL: Low density lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol Note Development stage by Roche: Prase
JIT-130  Phase 2 {PN) Hyperlipidemia ~ MTP inhibitor Treaument of hyperlipidemia by reducing absorption of
{oral} Phase 2 cholesterol and triglyceride via inhibition of MTP
{Overseas) — MTP: Microsomal Trglyceride Transfer Protein
JTK-303  Phase ! HIV infection Integrase Integrase inhibitor which works Dy blocking integrase, an  Gilead Sciences {U.5) obtains the
{oral) (1PN inhibitor enzyme that is involved in the replication of HIV rights 1 develop and commercial-
— HiV: Human Immunodeficiency Virus ize this compound worldwide,
with the exception of japan.
JTT-302  Phase 2 Dyslipidemia CETP inhibitor ~ Decreases LDL and increases HDL by inhubition of CETP
(orah) (Overseas) ~— CETP: Cholesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facilitates
transfer of cholesteryl ester from HDL to LDL
— HDL: High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol
— LDL: Low density lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol
JTT-305  Phase 2 Osteoporosis CaSR antagonist  Increases BMD and decreases new vertebral fractures by
(oral) (PN} accelerating endogenous PTH secretion via antagonism of
Phase | circulating Ca on CaSR in parathyroid cells
{Overseas) — BMD: Bone Mineral Density
— PTH: Parathyroid Hormone
— CaSR: Calcium-Sensing Receptor
JTT-552  Phase 2 Hyperuricemia URAT! inhibitor  Decreases serum urate concentration by increasing urinary
{orah) (JPN) urate excretion via inhibition of URATI.
— URAT | Urate Transporter |
JTT-553 Phase ) Obesity DGATI Reduces fat absorption from the small intestine and inhibits
{orat) {Overseas) inhibitor fat synthesis in adipose tissue via inhibition of DGAT}
— DGAT |: Acyl CoA: diacylglycerol acyttransferase |
JTT-651 Phase | Type 2 diabetes  GP inhibitor Decreasas blood glucose by suppression of glucose output
(oral) (1PN} mellitus from liver via inhibition of GP
— GP: Glycogen Phospharylase .
JTK-652  Phase | Hepatitis C Entry inhibitor Treatment of hepatitis C by inhibiting the infection process
{oral} (Overseas) of HCV into hepatocytes
— HCV: Hepatitis C Virus
JTS-653  Phase | Pain Qveractive  TRPVI Improves pain and overactive bladder via antagonism of
(oral} (JPM) Bladder antagonist TRPY| on sensory neurons
— TRPV [: Transient Receptor Potential Vanilloid subtype |
JTT-654 Phase ! Type 2 diabetes  HSD-| inhibror  Improves type 2 diabetes through reducing excessive glu-

(oral) (Overseas) mellitus

cacorticoid action by inhibiting H5D-!
— HSD I: 1 ) beta-hydroxysteroid dehydrogenase type |l

s




Foods Business

B Net Sales
Years ended March 31 2000 paiall 2002 2003 2004 005 2006 2007 2008
{Billions of Yen}
250 3 Foods Business 1950 2103 221 3324 2501 2653 2783 2865 3364
00 Pracessed Foods ™ — 416 48.0 600 736 878 930 957  t414
I i Beverages — 1654 #7314 1723 1765 1774 1853 1907 1949
250
* From FY2003, JTDS and HANS were induded in Processed Foods, and the data lor was adjusted 2002. Sales figures of Processed
200 Foods prior 1o FY2002 are not comparable
150
L]
30

0 ‘00 ‘91 ‘02 Q] '04 05 ‘04 'C7 08

® Number of Marking/Combined Vending Machines

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

— 190.00C 201,000 214000 226,000 237,000 250500 257000
45000 44500 40500 38000 35500
31,000 38500 43500 S0500 S4000 61500 86000 71500

Note: Number of vending machines includes machines operated by [T's affiliates and cup vending machnes. Combined vending machines

Years ended March 31| 2000 2001 1002
{Machines} -
120,000 Vending Machines —
oA 0O JT-Owned 30000 31,000 36500 45500
100000 ~ f] ' 0 Combined 20000
80,00 n "
ol . focus on JT brand beverages bul also sell non-T brand beverages
60,000 !
HiHEEEEI
40,000 | [ t 1 1 S ]
20,000 ” H

00 01 02 03 04 '05 ‘06 07 0B

. Number of Employees

® Number of Employees

(Employess) As of March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
50.000 O Total 41,703 40237 39387 38628 39243 32640 31476 33428 47459
) Tobacco Business 32,367 30894 25860 1285946 28504 24350
0000 1 n - Domestic 11795 11534 11548
International 11943 12401 22324
30,000 Pharmaceutical Business 1682 1670 1,580 1530 1,551 1566 1532 1554 1569
Foods Business 3397 3654 4097 4581 5409 5357 5332 7081 11169
000 L Other Business 3053 2830 2707 2437 2608 06 604 461 44)
10.000 l ] Corporate 1,164 1,199 1,143 1.:34 1171 661 370 39 4108
i | l ] l ‘ : Note: Number of employees is counted at working basis. unless otherwise indicated
¢ 0o w02 DY 04 ‘05 06 '07 '08
As of March 31 2000 200 2002 2003 2004 2005 006 2007 2008
[3 Number of Employees
(parent company) 16235 I5588 14462 14172 3,765 10124 8855 8930 8999
Number of Employees Based
on Enroliment (parent company) 20,194 19,355 17815 17.272 16650 11300 9931 5984 10010
As of December 31 199% 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
JT Interationat
(Thousands of Employees) 13.0 it8 1.7 116 19 120
* From FY2006, the data is disclosed as those of intemationa tobacce busmess
JT Annual Report 2008 19




Shareholder Information (asof s 31.2008)

Common Stock
Note: A 5 for | stock spht was completed on Apail |, 2006

Authorized: 40,000,000 shares

Issued: $0,000.000 shares
Number of shareholders: 49,329

Transfer Agent

The Mitsubishi UF| Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Stock Exchange Listings

First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange
Osaka Securities Exchange

MNagoya Stock Exchange

Fukuoka Stock Exchange

Sapporo Securities Exchange

Principal Shareholders

Name Shares held
The Minister of Finance 5000716
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. {Trust Account) N 244j57;
—Ja—p;a; Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account} ’Wiééax?é )
State Street Bank and Trust Company 175,623
“The Chase Manhartan Bank 385036 o T T ey
State Street Bank and Trust Company SGS 103 97278
"?hgaﬁasg;‘:lainﬁt{;ﬁ;nk. N.A. London Secs Lending Omnibus Account o -9_4.é3—5
Goldman Sachs International Eéiﬂ‘?» )
Morgan Stnley & Co e o 78.66T-
LBS AG London A/C IPB Segregated Ciient Account 72,149

Composition of Shareholders (Years ended March 31)

(%)
100 e ey Mo [7s
(128 a3y [P74 [|190
|
" \0] (W]
| fian L3 | 7 | 09
s [N N s
60 150 127 118
'—I 500 [ [s00 [ ]s00
w D Indiiduats and others
O Fomeign mstiutiuns as! others
O Ouher insiwunons
0 . a Secunies companies
3 Financial mstitatians
0O Japanese povemment
o 04 0 % o1
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Offering JT Shares by Government

I'st Offering
Method Offering by Bids Offering by non-Bids
Offer Price Bid Price: From ¥1,362,000 to ¥2.1 10,000 ¥1,438000
(Pricing Date) Weighted Average Price: ¥,438.000 (August 31, 1994)
{August 29, |994)
MNumber of Offering shares 229,920 shares I64 356 shares
Cffering Term From August 15 to |8 1994 From September 2 1o 8 !994

Note: The Lisung date
Oclaber 27, 1994: First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka Secunties Exchange, and Nagoya Stock Exchange
November 7. 1994; Other Stock Exchanges

2nd and 3rd Offering

2nd Offering 3rd Offering

Method Oﬁ’enng by Book Bmtdlng formula Offering by Book-Building formula

Oﬁer Price ¥815.000 ¥843.000

(Pricing Date) (une 17, 1996) (June 7, 2004)

Number of Offering shares japan: 237,390 shares, Intemational: 35,000 shares [apan:198,334 shares, International; 91,000 shares
(F otal 272,390 shares} (Total 289,334 shares)

Offering Term From june 18 to 19, 1996 " From }une 8tc 10, 2004

Stock Price Range and Trading Yolume

(Yen) (Pomt}
100,000 ] | 1500
All Time High .
Dec, 21, 2007: ¥ /08,000
600.000 3.000
500,000 2,500
L
1 3
!] 5
400,006 l\i'. [ 2,000
n
i
300,000 / . \ 1.500
| 'j freference]
,‘ 15 TOMX {(ngnt)
" N L‘i
200,000 i ;,,.Jf"'" w—*—"’h L H*r gl "‘1 k , 1.000
T L SO EW-'?" e
NE gt R Vg Hatdi) MEC vl ‘:‘._‘I{LF"‘JJT
Adl Time Low
100000 Apr. 7, 2003: ¥ 128,500 0
{Pre-spiiv ¥£44.000)
9 auio9sio 93 97103 '98/03 '99/03 00463 01/03 003 '03/03 '04/03 0503 '06/03 07/0) '08/03 0
Note Due 1o a 5 for ! stock split on April 1. 2006, stock prices reflect post-spit fevels
JT Stock Data (¥ears ended March 31)
1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
High (Yen) 240,000 204000 204000 208,000 267_000 308000 193800 182800 178000 163800 266000 435000 604000 708000
Low (Yen) 153,200 HZOOO I49.600 156.400 |74000 |37200 138000 139000 137500 128800 152800 238000 362000 492000

Trading volume (shares) 207,678 162657 330,107 382349 315892 567207 448631 4é4lie 500302 596318 1213156 1412073 6119498 5660892

Motes: |. Highs. lows. and trading volume of shares refer to those on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange
2. Duetoa 5 for ) stock spiit on Apnl [, 2006, stock prices reflect post-split levels
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. Members of the Board,Auditors,and Executive Officers rasof jux 24.2008)

Members of the Board

Executive Officers

Chairman of the Board

Yoji Wakui

Representative Directors
Hiroshi Kimura
Munetaka Takeda
Masaaks Sumikawa
fchiro Kumakura

Ryoichi Yamada

Members of the Board
Nariaki Okubo
Mitsuorni Koizumi
Sadao Furuya

Yasushi Shingai

Member of the Board,
Corporate Counselor

Katsuhiko Honda

Auditors

Standing Auditors
Hisao Tateishi*

Gisuke Shiozawa

Auditors
Hiroyoshi Murayama*
Takanobu Fujita*

* Quisige Corporate Auditars under the
Cammencal Code of |apan

President

Hiroshi Kimura
Chief Executive Officer

Executive Depucy Presidents

Munetaka Takeda
Assistant 1¢ CEQ in Compliance, Finance and Food
Business

Masaaki Sumikawa
Assistant to CEQ in CSR, Strategy, HR and
Operaticnal Review and Business Assurance

Ichiro Kumakura
President, Tobacco Business and Assistant to CEQ
in Vending Machinery

Ryoichi Yamada
Assistant to CEQ in Communications, General
Administranion and Legal

Senior Executive Vice President

Ryuichi Shimomura
Chief Legal Officer

Executive Vice Presidents

Mitsuomi Koizumi
Chief Marketing & Sales Officer,
Tobacco Business

Tadashi lwanami
Chief R&D Officer, Tobacco Business

Head of Manufacturing General Division,
Tobacco Business

Tatsuya Hisano
Head of Domestic Leaf Tebacco General Division,
Tobacco Business

Nortaki Okubo

President, Pharmaceutical Business

Shigeo {shiguro
Head of Central Pharmaceutical Research Institute,
Pharmaceutical Business

Sadao Furuya
President, Food Business

Mutsuo bwai
Chief Strategy Officer

Masakazu Shimizu
Chief Communications Officer

Senior Vice Presidents

Yoshihisa Fujisaki
Head of Brand General Division,
Tobacco Business

Hirotoshi Maejima
Deputy R&D Ofiicer, Tobacco Business

Akira Saeki

Head of Tobacco Business Planning Division
and Chief Corporate, Scentific & Regulatory
Affairs Officer, Tobacco Business

Ryoko MNagata
Head of Soft Drink Business Division,
Food Business

Satoshi Matsumoto
Chief Human Resocurces Officer

Hideki Miyazaki

Chief Financial Officer
Ryoji Chijiwa

Chief General Affairs Officer




Corporate Data (asoftarch 31,2008

Head Office

|T International S.A,

2-1, Toranomon 2-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8422, Japan
Tel: (81)3-3582-3111

Fax: (81)3-5572-144|

URL: httpiwwwijticojp/|TI_E/

Date of Establishment

April 1, 1985

Paid-in Capita!

¥ 100 billion

Number of Employees

47,459 {Consolidated)
8,999 (Parent Company)

Domestic Sales Offices

Hokkaido (Hokkaido)
Sendai (Miyagi)

Tokyo {Tokyo)
Nagoya (Aichi)

Osaka (Osaka)
Hircshima (Hiroshima)
Shikoku {Kagawa)
Fukuoka (Fukuoka)

I 7 other sales offices

Domestic Factories

Kita-Kanto (Tochigi)
Tokai (Shizucka)
Kansai {Kyoto)
Kyushu {Fukuoka)
10 other factories

Domestic Laboratories

{ eaf Tobacco Research Laboratory (Tochigi)
Tobacco Science Research Institute (Kanagawa)
Central Pharmaceutical Research Institute {Osaka)

[, Rue de la Gabelle CH-1211, Geneva 26, Switzerland
Tel: (41)-22-7030-777

Fax: ({41)-22-7030-789

URL: httpiwwwjticom/

Members of |T International Executive Committee

Pierre de Labouchere
President and Chief Executive Officer

Yasushi Shingai
Executive Vice President, Deputy CEO & Chief Financial Cfficer

Thomas A. McCoy
Chief Qperating Officer

David Aitken
Senior Vice President Consurner & Trade Marketing

Paul Bourassa

Senior Vice President Legal, Regutatory Affairs & Compliance
Jorg Schappei

Senior Vice President Human Resowrtes

Bill Schulz

Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain

Takehisa Shibayama

Senior Vice President Research & Development

Frits Vranken
Senior Vice President Business Development & Corporate Strategy

Martin Bracdock
Regiona! President CIS / Adriatica / Romania

Stefan Fitz

Regionat President Central Evrope / Nordic

Hans-Gerd Hesse

Regional President Asia Pacilic

Fadoul Pekhazis

Regional President Micidie East f Near East / Africa / Turkey & WWDF
£ddy Pirard

Regional President United Kingdom / Irefand

Michel Poirier

Regional President Amencas

Roberto Zanni
Regional President Western & Southem Europe / Battics
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JAPAN TOBACCO INC.

2-1, Toranomon 2-chome, Minato-ku,
Tokvo 105-8422, Japan

Tel: (81) 3-3582-31t1

Fax: (81) 3-5572-1441

www.jti.co.jp

This annual report is printed using ink that contains

less than 19% of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs}).

Printed in Japan




JAPAN TOBACCO INC

21, Toranoman 2-chome, Minato-hu
Torkyor 105-B422 JAPAN
PhogwusA) - 35823111

Contact: Yukiko Seto DECE v
General Manager CEIVED
Media and Investor Relations Division sona ns _
Japan Tobacco Inc. WA ELOA TE U
Tokyo: +81-3-5572-4292 COTIIL SR LTERMATIOM A
VIPURATE FINANGE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

JT’s UK Subsidiaries Reach Resolution Agreement with OFT

Tokyo, July 12, 2008 — Japan Tobacco Inc. (“JT”) (TSE: 2914) announced today that
Gallaher Group Ltd. and Gallaher Ltd. (together referred to as “Gallaher”), JT’s
tobacco subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, have concluded an early resolution
agreement with the Office of Fair Trading (OFT), the UK competition authority.
Gallaher has agreed to pay a fine of approximately £93 million for anti-competitive
business practices relating to the retail pricing of tobacco products in the UK during
2000 to 2003, i.e. prior to JT's acquisition of the Gallaher group of companies.
Gallaher is required to continue to co-operate with the OFT during its ongoing
investigation.

In August 2003, the OFT sought information from Gallaher and other tobacco
manufacturer as well as a number of retailers as part of an investigation into the retail
pricing of the cigarette, tobacco and tobacco-related market in the UK. Since then,
Gallaher has co-operated fully with the investigation.

The OFT issued a statement of objections in April 2008, and following a careful and
comprehensive review of the document, the JT Group decided to conclude an early
resolution agreement with the OFT, which JT believes best serves the interests of all
parties involved.

The amount of fine payable based on the agreement is sufficiently covered in the
amount that is already booked in the purchase price allocation related to JT’s
acquisition of Gallaher.

While the agreement reached with the OFT relates only to Gallaher’s past business
activities prior to JT’s acquisition of the Gallaher group of companies, JT considers
that compliance with all applicable laws in each market in which it operates is of the
utmost importance. JT will continue to enhance efforts to ensure compliance of the
whole group of companies.

HH#

Japan Tobacco Inc. is the world's third largest international manufacturer of tobacco
products. The company manufactures internationally recognized cigarette brands
including Winston, Camel, Mild Seven and Benson & Hedges. Since its privatization
in 1985, JT has actively diversified its operations into pharmaceuticals and foods.
The company’s net sales were ¥6.409 trillion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.
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for the First Quarter of the Fiscal Year Ending March 31,2009 8 246 11 A 7 |

Gt T
Name of the Listed Company: Japan Tobacco Inc. (Stock Code: 2914) L’:‘T;?éij;‘}: TE Fiat ;l(‘ ;;:f
Listed Stock Exchanges: Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Fukuoka, and Sapporo Stock Exchanges '
URL: http://www jti.co.jp/
Representative: Hiroshi Kimura, President,

Chief Executive Officer and Representative Director

Contact: Masakazu Shimizu, Chief Communications Officer
Telephone: +81-3-3582-3111

Scheduled date to file Quarterly Report: August 13, 2008

(Millions of yen with fractional amounts discarded, unless otherwise noted.)

1. Consolidated financial results for the first quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31,
2009 (from April 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008)

{1) Consolidated operating results (cumulative) (Percentages indicate year-on-year changes.)
Net sales Operating income Ordinary income Net income
Millions of yen % | Millions of yen % | Millions of yen % | Millions of yen Y%
1Q ended June 30, 2008 1,719,819 - 110,447 - 72,551 - 16,910 -
12 ended June 30, 2007 1,219,784 (5.4} 93,337 (8.6) 90,950 (12.1) 63,099 (17.2)
- Diluted net
Net income per share income per share
Yen Yen
1 ended June 30, 2008 1,765.17 1,765.09
17 ended June 30, 2007 6,586.49 -
(2) Consolidated financial position
Total assets Net assets Equity ratio Net assets per share
Millions of yen Millions of yen % Yen
As of June 30, 2008 4,571,831 1,700,582 35.6 169,740.85
As of March 31, 2008 5,087,214 2,154,629 40.8 216,707.27

Reference: Equity:

As of June 30, 2008; 1,626,130 million yen; As of March 31, 2008: 2,076,072 millien yen

2. Cash dividends

Cash dividends per share
Record date First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fiscal year-end Annual
Yen Yen Yen Yen Yen
Y car ended March 31, - 2,200.00 : 2,600.00 480000 |
2YO€(?; ending March 31, _
Year ending March 31, 3 600.00 i 5 600.00 5,200.00
2009 (Forecast) ' '

Note: Revision of the forecasts in the first quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009: None



. 3. Consolidated earnings forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 (from April

1, 2008 to March 31, 2009)

(Percentages indicate year-on-year changes.)

Net sales Operating income | Ordinary income Net income Net 'zﬁglr_ze per
Milliens of Millions of Millions of Millions of
yen Y yen Y% yen Y% yen % Yen
2(Q} ending September . . } ) } _
30, 2008 (cumulative)
yearendingMarch 31, | 6510000 31| 311,000 27.8)] 278,000 233) 148000 (38.0) 15,448.72

Notes: 1. Forecasts for the first two guarters ending September 30, 2008 are not issued.
2. Revision of the forecasts in the first quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009: None

4. Others
(1) Significant changes in subsidiaries during the period (changes in specified subsidianies resulting
change in scope of consolidation): None

(2) Application of simple accounting as well as specific accounting for preparing the quarterly
consolidated financial statements: Applicable

in

(3) Changes in accounting policies, procedures, and methods of presentation for preparing the quarterly

consolidated financial statements: Applicable

{(4) Number of issued shares (common stock)
a. Total number of issued shares at the end of the peried (including treasury stock)

As of June 30, 2008 10,000,000 shares

As of March 31, 2008 10,000,000 shares
b. Number of treasury stock at the end of the period

As of June 30, 2008 419,920 shares

As of March 31, 2008 419,920 shares

c.  Average number of shares during the period
For the first quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 9,580,080 shares
For the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 9,580,080 shares

* Appropriate use of earnings forecasts, and other special directions

1. The forward-looking statements, including earnings forecasts, contained in this document are
based on information currently available to the Company and on certain assumptions deemed to
be reasonable. Actual business results may differ substantially due to various factors.

2. Commencing with the first quarter under review, the “Accounting Standard for Quarterly
Financial Reporting” (ASBJ Statement No. 12) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Quarterly Financial Reporting” (ASBJ Guidance No. 14} are applied. Also, quarterly
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation for Quarterly
Consolidated Financial Statements” (Cabinet Office Ordinance No. 64 of 2007).

~
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Consolidated financial statements
(1) Consolidated balance sheets

(Millions of yen)

As of June 30, 2008 As of March 31, 2008
(Summary}
Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits 210,853 213,885
Notes and accounts receivable-trade 327,141 325,075
Short-term investment securities 7,683 4,952
Merchandise 42,893 36,539
Finished goods 101,215 102,330
Semi-finished goods 105,587 120,527
Raw materials 179,226 206,725
Work in process 7,715 7,938
Other 308,917 221,223
Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,981) (4,504)
Total current assets 1,287,251 1,234,695
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 727,554 763,332
Intangible assets
Goodwill 1,608,251 2,106,887
Right of trademark 532,918 613,496
Other 35,429 39,023
Total intangible assets 2,236,599 2,759,407
Investments and other assets
Investment securities 134,322 132,173
Other 216,552 227,861
Allowance for doubtful accounts (30,319) (30,075)
Allowance for investment valuation (130) (180}
Total investments and other assets 320,424 329,778
Total noncurrent assets 3,284,579 3,852,518
Total assets 4,571,831 5,087,214
Liabilities
Current linbilities
Notes and accounts payable-trade 169,193 175,369
Short-term loans payable 244,342 269,034
Current portion of bonds 219,961 73,054
Current portion of long-term loans payable 9,973 6,668
National tobacco excise tax payable 254,289 200,875
National tobacco special excise tax payable 10,841 10,898
Local tobacco excise tax payable 88,972 88,839
Income taxes payable 57,457 71,693
Provision 17,813 41,481
Other 324,410 346,480

Total current liabilities 1,397,256 1,284,396




(Millions of yen)

As of June 30, 2008

As of March 31, 2008

(Summary)
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable 467,655 643,631
Long-term loans payable 435,591 396,907
Provision for retirement benefits 280,243 283,387
Other provision 724 1,000
Other 289,778 323,261
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,473,992 1,648,188
Total liabilities 2,871,248 2,932,584
Net assets
Shareholders' equity
Capital stock 100,000 100,000
Capiral surplus 736,400 736,400
Retained earnings 1,143,370 1,344,490
Treasury stock (74,578) (74,578)
Total shareholders' equity 1,905,192 2,106,311
Valuation and translation adjustments
Valuation difference on available-for-sale 24,591 21,338
securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges 341 219
T ot of i a0 o)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (294,792) (41,085)
Total valuation and translation adjustments (279,061) (30,238}
Subscription rights to shares 247 185
Minority interests 74,203 78,370
Total net assets 1,700,582 2,154,629
Total liabilities and net assets 4,571,831 5,087,214




(2) Consolidated statement of income
(Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2008
(From April 1, 2008
to June 30, 2008)

Net sales 1,719,819
Cost of sales 1,394,538
Gross profit 325,280
Selling, general and administrative expenses 214,833
Operating income 110,447
Non-operating income
Interest income 2,008
Dividends income 1,386
Other 3,037
Total non-operating income 6,433

Non-operating expenses

Interest expenses 11,384

Foreign exchange losses 29,771

Financial support for domestic leaf tobacco 39

growers

Other 3,133

Total non-operating expenses 44,329
Ordinary income 72,551
Extraordinary income

Gain on sales of noncurrent assets 678

Lump sum income from phasing out trade 600

agreement

Other 77

Total extraordinary income 1,355

Extraordinary loss

Loss on sales of noncurrent assets 121
Loss on retirement of noncurrent assets 4,998
Impairment loss 10,480
Introduction cests for vending machines with 7986
adult identification functions ’
Other 1,353
Total extraordinary losses 24,740
Income before income 1axes and minority 49,166
mnterests s
Income taxes-current 30,509
Minority interests in income 1,745

Net income 16,910




(3) Consolidated statement of cash flows
{Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2008
(From April 1, 2008

to June 30, 2008)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities
Income before income taxes and minority 49.166
interests !
Depreciation and amortization 43,379
Impairment loss 10,430
Loss {gain) on sales and retirement of 214)
noncurrent assets
Amortization of goodwill 26,783
Increase (decrease) in provision for retirement 2953
benefits ’
Interest and dividends income (3,395)
Interest expenses 11,384
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts
receivable-trade (19,075)
Decrease {increase) in inventories (63,416)
Increase {decrease) in notes and accounts
payable—trade (2,326)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable-other (28,774)
Increase (decrease) in tobacco excise taxes 68.572
payable ’
QOther, net (57,518)
Subtotal 37,997
Interest and dividends income received 3,086
Interest expenses paid {10,774)
Income taxes paid (62,117
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities (31,808)

Net cash provided by (used in) investment

activities
Proceeds from sales and redemption of 1.794
securities ) ’
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {17,889)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and 1.193
equipment ’
Purchase of intangible assets (1,834)
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries (7,644)
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries (3,061)
resulting in change in scope of consolidation ’
Payments for sales of investments in
subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of (14}
consolidation
Other, net 1,843
Net cash provided by (used in) investment (25.612)

activities




(Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2008

(From April 1, 2008
to June 30, 2008)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans
payable

Proceeds from long-term loans payable
Repayment of long-term loans payable

Cash dividends paid

Cash dividends paid to minority sharcholders

Other, net

63,606

334,621
(270,625)
(24,546)
(786)

166

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities

102,436

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash
equivalents

(43,742)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

1,273

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

215,008

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

216,281




Commencing with the current fiscal year, the “Accounting Standard for Quarterly Financial Reporting™
(ASBJ Statement No. 12} and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Quarterly Financial Reporting”
(ASBJ Guidance No. 14) are applied. Also, quarterly consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the “Regulation for Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements.”

(4) Notes on premise of going concern
No items to report.

(5) Segment information

[Operations by industry segment]
First quarter ended June 30, 2008 (From April 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008)

(Millions of yen)
Domestic Intenational . Elimination | Consclidated
tobacco tobacco Pharmaceuticsls Foods Others Total and corporate 1013l
Net sales
(1) Sales to customers 842,661 743,349 16,137 112,654 5,016 1,719,819 - 1,719,819
(2) Intersegment sales or -
transfers 12,507 8,269 - 4] 3,383 24,202 {24,202)
Total 855,168 751,619 16,137 112,695 8,399 1,744,021 {24,202} 1,719,819
Operating income (loss) 55,829 52,246 2,190 (2,752) 2,501 110,015 431 110,447

Notes: 1. Operations by industry segment are categorized based on types of products, characteristics and markets.
2. Main products or services under each category are as follows:

a. Domestic tobacco: Tobacco products (These include tobacco products sold at duty-free shops in Japan, as well
as at markets in China, Hong Kong and Macaoe, which are covered by the China Division.)

b. International tobacco: Tobacco products

¢. Pharmaceuticals: Prescription drugs
d. Foods: Beverages and processed foods
e. Others: Rent of real estate, lcasing, engineering and others

3. The following table shows depreciation and amortization and goodwill amertization amounts by industry segment for
the three months that ended June 30, 2008,
Depreciation and amortization (Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets other than goedwill / Long-term

prepaid expenses) (Millions of yen)
o TP e | o | o | o | i [ o
(‘g;";‘j‘:ﬂ ‘fe“)“ 30, 2008 19,474 18,604 877 1,941 2,654 43,553 £174) 43379
Goodwill ameortization (Millions of yen)
el el e W Nl
('3";’:“]':3:;“ 30, 2008 m 23,854 . 2,657 . 26,783

4. The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by TS Network Co., Ltd., JT's consolidated subsidiary. TS Network
Co., Ltd. distributes domestic tobacco products and sells imported tobacco products by wholesale, Net sales of
imported tobacco products via TS Network Co., Ltd. for the first quarter were 300,068 million yen.

5. With respect to the international tobacco segment, as the closing date of the accounting period of international
consolidated subsidiaries is set on December 31, operating results from January 1, 2008 1o March 31, 2008 have been
included in the first quarter.

6. Changes in accounting methods
(Practical solution on unification of accounting policies applied to foreign subsidiaries for consclidated financial
statements}

From the first quarter under review, the “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign
Subsidiaries for Consolidated Financial Statements” (PITF Practical Solution No. 18) is applied. As a result of this
change, the operating income for the international tobacco segment decreased by 23,854 million yen as compared to
the case where the previous method was adopted.

(6) Notes on significant changes in the amount of sharcholders’ equity
Neo items to report.



(Reference)
Consolidated financial statements for the first quarter ended June 30, 2007 (From April 1, 2007
to June 30, 2007)

(1) (Summary)Consolidated statement of income

(Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2007

(From April 1, 2007
to June 30, 2007}

Net sales 1,219,784
Cost of sales 981,004
Gross profit 238,779
Selling, general and administrative expenses 145,441
Operating income 93,337
Non-operating income 6,699
Interest income 3,763
Dividends income 1,328
Other 1,608
Non-operating expenses 9,086
Interest expenses 2,583
Foreign exchange losses 3,187
Periodic mutual assistance association cost 583
Other 2,733
Ordinary income 90,950
Extraordinary income 10,366
Gain on sales of property, plant and 9.999
equipment ’
Other 367
Extraordinary loss 1,661
Loss on sales of noncurrent assets 528
Loss on retiremnent of noncurrent assets 694
Introduction costs for vending machines with 292
adult identification functions
Other 145
!ll;ntc;g);t:sbefore income taxes and minority 99,656
Income taxes-current 34,836

Income taxes-deferred -
Minority interests in income 1,720
Net income 63,099




(2) (Summary)Consolidated statement of cash flows
{Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2607

(From April 1, 2007
to June 30, 2007)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Income before income taxes and minority

interests 99,656
Depreciation and amortization 32,874
Impairment loss -
rl;.ggz égz:rl]? aosréesta;les and retirement of (8.983)
Amortization of goodwill 388
Increase (decrease) in provision for retirement ©12)
benefits
Interest and dividends income (5,091)
Interest expenses 2,583
222{32102; él?g‘;::sc) in notes and accounts (17,077)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 12,931
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts 512
payable-trade
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-other (29,973)
Increase {decrease) in tobacco excise taxes 32747
payable ’
Other, net (46,103)
Subtotal 63,550
Interest and dividends income received 5,147
Interest expenses paid (2,902)
Income taxes paid (54,228)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating 11.566
activities ’

Net cash provided by (used in) investment

activities
Purchase of short-term investment securities (275)
Proce'e_ds from sales and redemption of 1,696
securities ’
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {25,441)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and 12.186
equipment '
Purchase of intangible assets (2,101)
Purchase of investment securities (3,203)
Purchase of shares of unconsolidated
subsidiaries and underwriting of capital (1,682,930}
increase
gggiz:émcrease) in short-term loans (11,436)
Other, net 2,337
Net cash provided by (used in} investment (1,707,167)

activities

ERal



(Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2007

(From April 1, 2007
to June 30, 2007)

Net cash provided by {used in) financing
activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans
payable

Proceeds from long-term loans payable

Cash dividends paid

Cash dividends paid to minority sharcholders
Other, net

583,135

165,799

{21,076}
(322)
(187)

Net cash provided by {used in) financing
activities

727,349

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash
equivalents

35318

Net increase (decrease)} in cash and cash
equivalents .

{932,932}

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of pericd

1,179,522

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

246,589

44



(3} Segment information
[Operations by industry segment]

First quarter ended June 30, 2007 (From April 1, 2007 to June 30, 2007)

(Millions of yen)
Dromestic Intemnational : Elimination | Consolidated
wbacco wabacco Pharnaceuticals Foods Others Toul and corporate total
Net sales
{1} Sales to customers 856,781 272,536 11,229 73,930 5,306 £.219,784 - 1,219,784
(2) Intersegment sales or )
Iransfors 12,412 7,295 - 35 6,407 26,149 {26,149)
Total 869,193 279,831 11,229 73,965 11,713 ,245931 (26,149) 1,219,784
Operating income (loss) 62,415 29,467 (2921} 1,398 3,173 93,533 (196) 93,337

Notes: 1. Operations by industry segment are categorized based on types of products, characteristics and markets.
2. Main products or services under each category are as follows:

a. Domestic tobacco: Tobacco products (These include tobacco products sold at duty-free shops in Japan, as well
as at markets in China, Hong Kong and Macao, which are covered by the China Division.)

b. International tebacco: Tobacco products

¢. Pharmaceuticals: Prescription drugs
d. Foods: Beverages and processed foods
e. Others: Rent of real estate, leasing, engineering and others

3. The following table shows depreciation and amortization and goodwill amortization amounts by industry segment
which are included in operating expenses for the three months that ended June 30, 2007.
Depreciation and amertization (Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets other than goodwill / Long-term

prepaid expenses) (Millions of yen)
T | T [ | on | o | o[ i, | S
(13;;,1‘11:?. ‘;'e“)“ 30, 2007 19,944 8,444 767 999 2,948 33,104 (230) 12,874
Goodwill amortization (Millions of yen)
DT | o [t | ovts | o |
(Qended e 30, 2007 m - . 16 . 388

4. The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by TS Network Co., Lid,, IT's consolidated subsidiary. TS Network
Co., Ltd. distribues domestic tobacco products and sells imported tobacco preducts by wholesale. Net sales of
imported tobacco products via TS Network Co., Ltd. for the first quarter were 303,785 million yen.

5. With respect to the international tobacco segment, as the closing date of the accounting period of international
consolidated subsidiaries is set on December 31, operating results from January 1, 2007 to March 31, 2007 have been
included in the first quarter.

an



Overview of Consolidated Financial Results

for Q1 FY 3/2009 /

Caution concerning forward-looking statements

Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

This presentation contains forward-locking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives,
financial conditions and results of operations based on current expectations, assumptions, estimates and
projections. These statements reflect future expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain
projections of operational results and financial conditions, and state other forward-looking information.

These forward-looking statements are subject to various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
factors that could cause our actual results to differ from those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We
assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-looking statement or to advise of any change in the
assumptions and factors on which they are based. Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual
resuits to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement include, without limitation:

(1) heaith concerns related to the use of tobacco products;

(2) legal or regulatory developments and changes; including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions
on sales, marketing and use of tobacco products, governmental investigations and privately imposed
smoking restrictions;

} litigation in Japan and elsewhere;

) our ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry;

) our ability to successfully expand internationally and make investments outside Japan;
) competition and changing consumer preferences;

) the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions;

) local and global economic conditions; and

) fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials.




Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Summary of Business Performance
Sales, EBITDA and operating income increased thanks to the continued top-line growth for the
international tobacco business and the consolidation of Gailaher. However, recurring profit and net

income declined due to exchange losses and other factors.  unit: JPY bilion)

Q1 FY3/2008 | Q1 FY3/2009 | Change
Sales incl. Tax 1219.7 1719.8 Mfg&?
Sales excl. Tax 506.2 708.1 (*3:_86:‘;?
EBITDA 1266 1806 | 100
Operating Income a3.3 1104 (+18;:f;;
Recurring Profit 909 725 (2'01;’3)
Net Income 63.0 16.9 (.7:%:)

[Reference: Figures for major profit itams before goodwill amartization}

Cperating Income Q3.7 137.2 M:ig
Recuming Profit 91.3 g9.3 (*8.873.%9)
Net Income 63.4 436 (_3‘11;{’7)

Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Domestic Tobacco Business
Sales and profits declined due to a decline in the sales volume and increased in sales promotion

FY 32005

FY 3/2008

FY 3/2007

FY 3/2008

* New basis=JT original brands + JT) brands sold in Japan (Camel, Winston, Salem, etc.)

4

expenses.

%) {Market share of JT Products*}
67 r '
(Unit: JPY billion) 66.5 . :
=O=JT Products H
Q1 FY 32008 | Q1Fy 3/2009 | Change
Sales incl. Tax 856.7 842.6 -14.1 i
(-1.6%) l
T ] i
Sales excl. Tax 182.5 177.9 46 :
(Excl. imports) (-2.5%) :
EBITDA 82.6 75.5 7.0 |
(-8.5%) :
Operating thcoma 62.4 55.8 65
¢-10.6%) :
(Unit: billion cigarettes) E
Sales Volume of JT -06 )
427 42.0 : !
Products (-1.5%) 3 !

Q1
FY 312009

11



Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

® International Tobacco Business
Sales and profits grew sharply year-on-year thanks to the continued top-line growth and the

consolidation of Gallaher. (Unit: JPY billion)
Q1 Fy 3/2008 | Q1 FY 3/2009 Change
Sales incl. Tax 2725 743.3 470.8 .
(+172.8%) {Sales volume in January to March}
Sales excl. Tax 109.7
160.2 260.0 it: billion i
(Excl. distribution business) (+73'1°/°) fl:g“'-b'lhon ClgarenBS)
EBITDA 37.9 94.7 56.7 103.9
(+1498%) 100 -
fing n 29.4 52.2 22.7
Operaling heom (+77.3%)| 80 |
57.7 54.6
Total Sales Volume 57.7 103.9 46.1 60
(bilion cigarettes) ' ' (+798%) | N
4 - .
GFB Sales Volume 201
{billion cigareties) 35.5 55.6 {+56.6%) 20 L
Exchange Rate (JPY/USD) 119.45 105.25 -14.20
(Reference) Before royalty paymentto JT (Unit: USD million) 2007 - 2008
EBITDA 351 948 597 D1 Total Volume O GFB Volume
{(+169.8%)

Nota: The results of the internaticnal tobacco business in January-March are

included in the consolidaled resulis,

5

3

International Tobacco Business Results for January - June 2008

(preliminary results)

# International Tobacco Business

Sales volume and Net sales in January to June 2008 (preliminary results)

(Like-for-like)

{ Unit: bilion cigarettes)

FY 3/2008" FY 3/2009
Jan.-March Apri-June Total Jan.-March Apri-June Total
103.9 117.2 2211
Total Sales Volume 95.0 108.0 204.0
(+9.4%) (+7.5%) (+8.4%)
55.6 63.5 119.2
GFB Sales Volume 46.7 55.1 101.8
(+19.1%) (+15.4%) (+17.1%)
- 2,471 2,716 5,186
Ne'(ﬁjl'.es e 2,064 2,340 4,404
fon of USS) (+19.7%) | (+16.1%) | (+17.8%)
23.8 23.2 23.5
Net Sales Per1:?00 217 215 21.6
Cigarettes excl. tax** (US$) (+9.4%) (+7.9%) (+8.7%)

* FY 3/2008 (like-for-like basis): Includes the theoretical figure for Gatiaher's full-year resulls)

**Sales excluding distribution business

n




Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

® Pharmaceutical Business

Sales and profits increased thanks to milestone revenue related to progress in the
development of JTT-705, which was licensed to Roche.

Clinical Development {as of July 31, 2008)

(Unit: JPY billion) Code Indication Stage
- : Japan: Phase2
JIT-705(oral)  |Dystipid
Q1 FY 372008 | Q1 FY 3/2009 | Change (oral) yslipidemia
JTT-130(0ral)  |Myperlipidemia éaf:r:;::f’;iisez
Sales 11.2 16.1 4.9 .
(+43.7%)} |JTK-303¢oral}  [HIV infection Japan: Phasel
5.2
MDA -
= 2.1 3.0 . JTT-302(oral)  |Dyslipidemia Overseas: Phase?
Operating 1 :
Income -2.9 2.1 5 JTT-305(0ral)  |Osteoporosis Joa:;ar:e::?:zzsm
JTT-552¢oral} Hyperuricemia Japan: Phase2
JTT-705: Advanced to Phase 3 at Roche, to which JTT-705 was _ —
licensed. JTT-651(oral)  [Type 2 diabetes melitus apan: Fhase

(announced in April by Roche)

JTK-303: Advanced to Phase 3 at Gilead Sciences, to which

JTS-663(oral)

Pain relief, overactive bladder

Japan:Phase

JTK-303 was licensed.
{announced in July by Gilead Sciences)

JTT-654(oral)

Type 2 diabetes mellitus

QOverseas: Phase1

Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Foods Business

Although sales grew thanks to the consolidation of the Katokichi Group, operating income posted
a loss due to increased expenses, a rise in raw materials prices and the goodwill amortization.

{Unit: JPY billion}

Q1 Fy 3/2008 | @t Fy 3/2009 | Change
Sales 739 1126 38.7
(+52.4%)
EBITDA 25 18 -0.6
(-26.5%)
Cperane 1.3 27 4.1
ncome -

We disclosed the manufacturing plants of our products and the origin of

location of major materials through the Website.
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(Reference) Full-term Forecasts for FY 3/2009 (figures announced on May 1, 2008) )

#  We have left full-term forecasts unchanged for the following reasons:

* p‘hc.te sales volumes for both the domestic and international tobacco businesses were partly inflated by special
actors.

+ Sales promotion expenses and other costs for the full year are likely to be in line with our initial plans.

+ itwould not he agproprtate to change our exchange rate assumption under the current uncertain foreign
exchange market.

(Unit: JPY billion)

FY 3/2008 FY 3/2009 Change
forecasts

Sales incl. Tax 6409.7 6610.0 200.2
(+3.1%)
90

EBITDA 602.0 £93.0
(-1.5%)
Operating i -119.5
ncome 430.5 311.0 (-27.8%)
Recurring Profit 362.6 278.0 84.6
(-23.3%)
Netincome 238.7 148.0 907
(-38.0%)
ROE(%) 11.8 7.7 -4.1pt
FCF -1493.7 265.0 1758.7

[This slide intentionally left blank]
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[Reference Material]
Analysis of Consolidated Financial Results for Q1 FY 3/2009 /

Caution concerning forward-looking statements

Forward-Looking and Cautionary Statements

This presentation contains forward-looking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives,
financial conditions and results of operations based on current expectations, assumptions, estimates and
projections. These statements discuss future expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain
projections of operational results and financial condition and state other forward-looking information.

These forward-looking statements are subject to various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
factors that could cause our actual results to differ from those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We
assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-looking statement or to advise of any change in the
assumptions and factors on which they are based. Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement include, without limitation:

(1) health concerns relating to the use of tobacco products;

(2) legal or regulatory developments and changes; including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions
on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, govemmental investigations and privately imposed
smoking restrictions;

(3) litigation in Japan and elsewhere;

(4) our ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry;

(5) our ability to successfully expand intemnationally and make investments outside of Japan;
(6) competition and changing consumer preferences;

(7) the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions;

(8) local and global economic conditions; and

(9) fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials.
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Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Domestic Tobacco Business — Net sales exct. tobacco excise tax*

*Excluding imported tobacco

Q1 FY 3/2008 |

Volume effect

Unit price effect

+0

-2.6

170

i3

1
190

{JPY BN)

Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Domestic Tobacco Business — EBITDA

Q1 FY 3/2008 | -

82.6

Volume effect

Unit price effect

Cost increase

Leaf tobacco reappraisal
gainfloss

Sales promotion
and Others

Q1 FY 3/2009 | -

+0

-1.4

-2.0

60

14

85
(IPY BN)

11}




Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

® International Tobacco Business — Net sales excl. tobacco excise tax*

Q1 FY3/2008 1,258 . . |
Gallaher** l +806 I
(like-for-like) 2,064 i
Volume effect i:] +118
Unit price and +121
product mix effect [:
Forex impact*** [::I +169
4 i 4 _
Q1 FY3/2009 < 0 2471 . |
1 1 1 ] 1 i L 1
900 1,100 1,300 1,500 1,700 1,900 2,100 2,300 2,500

(Reference) Industry segment information basis

{US$ MM)

International Tobacco Business - Net sales excluding tobacco excise tax *
From JPY 150.2 bn to JPY 260.0 bn (up JPY 108.7 bn)

Sales of distribution business, which was formatly handled by Gallaher is excluded from the resuil.
15

* Figures basad on theoretical Like for Like basis
" Forax impact is the impac! between USS and gach local currency.

[This slide intentionally left blank]
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Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

® Pharmaceutical Business — Net sales

Q1 FY3/2008

Torii Pharmaceultical
Co.Ltd {non-
consolidated)

Royalty income, etc.

Q1 FY3/2008

10 12 14 16
(JPY BN)
17 ' '
Results for Q1 FY 3/2009
® Pharmaceutical Business - EBITDA
i
Q1 FY 3/2008 =24
il musiesciin souitd e i i
R&D expenses 0.3
(JT non-consolidated basis) ’
Operating income of
Torii Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd -0.3
(non-consolidated)
Royalty income, elc. +5.8
Q1 FY 3/2009 ::3'0 R
-3 -2 -1 0 2 3
(JPY BN)
18 I I



Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Foods Business — Net Sales

Q1FY 32008

Be

Beverages

Processed foods

-1.7

+40.4

Q1 FY 32002

50

60 70

90 100

110

120

{JPY BN)

19

Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Foods Business — Operating income

Q1 FY 3/2008

Beverages

Processed foods

Overhead costs
(include a goodw ill
amortization)

Q1 FY 3/2009

-3

2
(JPN BN)

20

11}



Results for Q1 FY 3/2009

# Recurring profit
)l

1Q FY 3/2008 | 909

g g e p b ol g

Operating +17 1
income : -

Nen-operating 355
income/loss :

1QFY 32000 725 (JPN BN)

1
65 70 75 80 85 90 85 100

® Net income

1Q FY 3/2008

Extraordinary
profit/loss,
income tax, etc.

1Q FY 3/2009 | 16:9']

Positive factors:
-Decrease of financial support for domestic leaf tobacco growers (0.3bn) etc.

Negative factors:

-Increase of loss on foreign exchange (26.5bn}
-tncrease of interest payment (8.6bn)
-Decrease of interest income(1.7bn) etc.

Recurring

63.0

o s ey e

profit

-18.3

=277

(JPN BN

)

10 20

T

30 40

50

€0

70

Positive factors:

-Decrease of loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.4bn) etc.

MNegative factors:

-Increase of impairment loss(10.4bn}
-Decrease of profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (9.3bn}
-Increase of introduction costs for vending machines with adult

identification functions (7.4bn)
-Increase of loss on disposition of property, plant and equipment {4.3bn},

etc.

21

[This slide intentionally left blank]
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Summary of Consolidated B/S as of Jun. 30, 2008 )

® ASSETS

(JPN BN) Compared to B/S as of Mar. 31, 2008

6,000

®  Current Assets — up JPY 52.5 bn

5,000
® Fixed Assets — down JPY 567.9 bn

4,000

¢ Goodwill : down JPY 438.6 bn

3000  ---
¢ Trademark rights : down JPY 80.5 bn

2,000

1,000

as of Mar. 31, 2008 as of Jun, 30, 2008
0O Current Assets

O Fixed Assets

n 1

Summary of Consolidated B/S as of Jun. 30, 2008

m LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Compared to B/S as of Mar. 31, 2008
{JPN BN)

u Total Liabilities - down JPY 61.3 bn

6,000

5,000

® Total Net Assets - down JPY 454.0 bn

4,000 -

¢ Retained Earnings : down JPY 201.1 bn

3,000

¢ Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments :
down JPY 253.7 bn

2.000

1,000

v

Equity Ratio 40.8% — 35.6%

0

as of Mar. 31, 2008 as of Jun. 30, 2008
0O Total Liabilities

O Total Net Assets

: w



1. Breakdown of net salas

(unit: JPY billion)

5. Amortization relating to major acquisitions

{unit: JPY bilkon)

3 months | 3 months 3months | 3 months .
ended ended Change o ended ended :;2:1:; ::gon:‘
Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008 Jun. 2007 | Jun, 2008
Net sales including excise tax ' 1,219.7[ 1,719.8 500.0 Former RJRI
Domestic tobacco 8956.7 B42.6 -14.1 ‘Trademark rights 7.3 7.3 10| Apr-09
|Excluding imported tobacco 552.9 542.5 -10.4 Patents 0.4 - 8| Apr07
International tobacco 2725 743.3 470.8 Katokichi
[Encluding distribution business 272.5 667.3 394.8 ]Goodwill - 2.2 51 Dec-12
Net sales excluding excise tax * 4233 571.7 148.4 {unit: USD milion)
Domestic tobacco 182.5 177.9 46 4T International 3 ;‘;‘;ﬁ‘s 3::;;‘35 Years 10
intemational tohacea " 2 1502 2600| 007 Mar. 2007 | wiar. 2008 | 2"OrH°
|Pharmaceutical 11.2 16.1 4.9 Formar RJRI and Gallaher
Foods 739 112.8 8.7 Tradamark rights * 15 71| mainly 20
Beverages 48.3 46.6 -1.7 Goodwill - 226 20
Processed foods 25.5 65.9 40.4 * Termination of irademark rights smoritzation: Former RJR! Apr-19, Former Gallaher Mar-27
Others 53 5.0 -0.2 6.Capital expenditure {unit: JPY billion)
*1 Intematonal lobacco business: 3 months ended Mar. 2008 3 months | 3 months
ended ended Change
"2 Net sales excluding excras tax: E Q importad in and di Jun. 2007 | Jun, 2008
Dusiness in iniemaucs) (BACED, FERpRCively. Capital expenditures 26.4 203 6.0
Domestic lohacco 15.5 B2 7.2
2. Leaf tobacco reappraisal profit/ loss * {unit: JPY hillion}) Intemational tobacco * 6.8 6.4 -04
3months | 3 months Pharmaceutical 0.3 08 0.4
ended anded Change
Jun. 2007 | _Jun. 2008 Foods 1.2 28 1.6
Leaf tobacco reappraisal profit / loss -1.0 -1.0 0.0 Others 29 1.7 -1.1
* Profit when denoted negative * Intematonal tobaceo business: 3 months ended Mar. 2008
7. Cash and cash equivalents " {unil: JPY billion}
3. Breakdown of SG&A expanses {unit: JPY billion) Asof end of[As of end oft
Smonths | 3 months Mar. 2008 | Jun. 2008 ange
ended anded Change
Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008 Cash and cash equivatents 2188 218.5 -0.3

SGEA 1454 _274_3 9.3 « Cash and cash squivalents = cash undrdepwu + marketable securiies
Personnel - 214 578 164 + securiies purchased ungder repurchase agreements
Advertising and general publicity 43 53 0.9 8. Interost-bearing debt * {unit; JPY billion)
Sales promotion 303 36.0 5.6 AsafendoffAsofend of| .,
R&D 10.2 11.2 08 Mar, 2008 | Jun. 2008 ange
Depreciation and amortization 14.1 224 83 Interest-bearing debt 1,389.2 1,377.5 -11.7
Qthers 449 818 36.9 * Interasi-bearing dabt = short-term bark loans + bands + long-lern bomowings

+ Personnel expense is the sum of compensation, salaries, ailowances, provision for 9. Business data 3months | 3 months
retirament banefit, legal welfare, employee bonusas and accrual of employee bonuses, erded ended Change
<Domestic tobacco business> Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008
JT salas volume® (hillion cigarettes) 427 42.0 0.6
4. EBITDA by business saﬂmant" {unit: JPY billion) Total demand (billion cigarettes) 65.8 64.8 -1.0
Imonths |3 monihs JT market share B4.9%|  64.9%|  0.0%pt
ended onded Change
Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008 JT net sales before tax per 1,000 cigarettes (JPY} 12,698 12,699 1
Consolidated EBITDA 128.6 180.6 540 JT net sales after tax per 1,000 cigarettes {JPY) 4,056 4,056 0
Opera!ing income 93.3 110.4 17.% + Sales volume of domastic duty-free and China division is excluded, which was C 8 bilian for FY ended Jun.
c 7 =nd 1.0billion for F . 2008, .
Depreciation and amortization : 33.2 70.1 36.9 2007 ana 1 Oilion tor £ ended Jun rosoctively.
Domestic tobacea EBITDA 82.6 755 -7.0 S months | 3 months
ended ented Change
Operating income 624 55.8 65 <Inla/national tobacca business> Mar, 2007 | Mar. 2008
Depreciation and amortization 2 20.2 19.7 -0.4 Tola! sales volume (billion cigareties) 57.7 103.9 46,1

tnternational tobacco EBITDA r9 94.7 96.7 GFB sales volume (billion cigarattes) 35.5 556 20.1
Qperating income 29.4 52.2 227 JPY/USD rate for consolidation {JPY) 119.45 105.25 -14.20
Depreciation and amortization - 8.4 42.4 34.0

Pharmaceutical EBITDA -2.1 3.0 5.2 Imonths | 3 months

., ended ended Change
Qperating income 2.9 21 5.1 <Pharmaceutical business> Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008
Depreciation and amortization 0.7 0.8 0.1 |R&D sxpenses (parent company) {JPY billion) 55 5.8 0.3

Foods EBITDA 2.5 1.8 -0.6

Operating income 1.3 2.7 4.1 As of end of | As of end of
" P . Mar. 2008 | Jun. 2008 | CM®M%e
Depreciation and amortization 1.1 4.5 34 <Foods business - Beverage business> ar. un.

Others EBITDA 6.1 5.1 0.9 Number of beverage vending machings * 257,000 | 258,000 1,000
Operating income 31 2.5 0.6 JT-owned 35,500 35,000 -500
Depraciation and amortization 29 26 -0.2 Combined 71,500 | 73,500 2,000

{Reference) {unit; USD miflion) « Baverage vending machines inciude vending machnes for cany and packs, aic. and for cups owned by other

- panies Bnd op by our iary. "JT-owned” vending machings are owned by JT. "Combined”

International tobacco EBITDA 351 948 597 vending machines are owned by our subsidianes or affiates .and focus on seling JT brand beverages oul

(Before royatty payment}) also 3l non-JT brand beverages.

*1 EB1TDA=operaling incama + depreciation snd amortization”

=2 Depreciabion and amorizatin = depreciation of tangible fixed asasts + amorizaton of intangible
fixed assats + amoruzation of long-iam prepaid axpenses + amorization of goodwill

*3 Intemational iobacco business: 3 months ended Mar. 2008




Consolidated financial outlook for the fiscal year ending Mar. 31, 2009 compared to the results of previous fiscal year

{JPY billion)
FY ended FY anding | Major assumptions ]
Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009 Change
(Actual) (Forecasst} Domestic labacco business {billions of cigaiaties})
Net sales including axcise tax 6,409.7 6,610.0 200.2 FY ended FY ending Change
EBITDA 602.0 §93.0 -9.0 Mar. 2008 Mar, 2009
Operating income 430.5 311.0 -118.5 Sales volume 167.7 159.0 -8.7
Recurring profit 362.6 278.0 -84.6 "Excludes sales of domestic duty-free and China division
Net income 238.7 148.0 -80.7
Ratum on Equity 11.8% 7.7% -4.1%pt International lobacco business {billions of cigarettes, JPY)
Free Cash Flow® -1483.7 265.0 1,758.7 FY ended FY ending Change
*Free Cash Flow is cash flow from operating activities plus cash flow from investing Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009
activities less the items below: Total sales voluma 385.6 450.0 64.4
<From cash flow from operating activities> [GFB sates volume 203.2 243.0 33.8
- Inla.resl received, dividend received and tax implication by deducting the items PY/USD rate 117.85 100.00 17.85
(assumption ot comporate tax rate: 42%)
- Interesl! paid and the tax implication by deducing 1he item (assumption of corporate
lax rate: 42%)
<From cash flow from investing activities> Goodwlll amortization relating to major acquisitions
- Purchases of and proceeds from sale of marketable sacurities International tobaceo business {unit: USD million)
- Purchases of and proceeds from sale of investment securilies and others ool smowt ;] Py anding Yoors o —
FCF calculated accarding to the above adjusiment may nol be equal o FCF shown on the the basis for the . Termination
above table. The difference comes from purchases of and proceeds from sale of businass amortizaticn Mar.2009 - amonize
investment securities which are included in investment securitias on the Cash flow Former RJRI and Gallaher 18,159 908 20 Mar-27
statement but excluded from the adjustment above. * Termination of goodwill amortization: Former RJRI Apr-19, Former Gallaber Mar-27
{JPY billion) Foods Business {unit: JPY billion)
FY ended FY endin Goodwdd amount &4 £y gy Years to o
Mar. 2008 Mar. 200: Change m:r::‘;u?ar' Mar.ZDDg amertize Termination
Capitat expenditures 1290.5 149.0 19.4 Katokichi 45.0 9.0 5 Dec-12
Domeslic tobacco 57.2 63.0 5.7
International 1obacco 48.4 56.0 1.5 Tradomark rights amortization relating to major acquisitions
Pharmaceutical 4.2 30 -1.2 JT {unit: JPY billion}
Foods 6.0 2.0 16.9 FY ended FY ending Years. 1o Termination
Other 14.7 4.0 -10.7 Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009 amontize
Former RJRI 29.3 29.3 10 Apr-09
Consolidated linancial outlook by business segment {JPY billion)
FY ended FY ending Change JT International 7 {unit: USD million)
Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009 Year ended Year ending Years to -
N Terminaton
Net sales including excise tax 6.409.7 6.610.0 200.2 Dec. 2007 Dec. 2008 gmortize
Domestic tobacco 3,362.3 3.165.0 -187.3 Former RJR} and Gallaher 220 284 mainly 20 Mar-27
|Excluding imported tobacce 2,168.2 2,049.0 -120.2 * Termination of trademark rights amortization: Farmer RJRI Apr-19, Former Gallaher Mar-27
Intesnalional lobacco 2,639.9 2,896.0 256.0
|Exciuging distribution businesg 2,381.0 2,618.0 236.9
Phammaceutical 49.0 44.5 -4.5
Foods 336.4 486.0 149.5
EBITDA 602.0 593.0 9.0
Domeslic tobacco 306.7 261.0 -45.7
Intemational lobacco 270.7 301.0 30.2
Pharmaceutical 6.2 8.0 1.7
Foods 8.3 26.0 176
Operating Income 430.5 311.0 -118.5
Domestic tobacco 222.3 173.0 -49.3
International {obacco 205.3 144.0 -61.3
Pharmaceutical -9.6 -12.0 -2.3
Foods 0.6 4.0 -4.6
{JPY)
FY ended FY anding Change
Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009
Dividend per share 4,800 5,200 400
Pay-out Ratio 19.3% 33.7% 14.4%pt
[ tgoodwill amortization adjusted ) 19.0% 19.9% 0.9%pt

[ e e e e e e e TS T T T ESS T ETIEETT T T T T

J<FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS>

Iyhis matestat contains forward-looking statements about our indusiry, business, plans and objectives, financial condition and resulls of operations thal are based on our current axpectations,
assumptions, estimates and projections. These stalements discuss future expeactations, identity strategies, discuss market lrends, contain projections of results of operations or of our financial
condition, or state other forward-looking information. These forward-looking statements are subject 1o various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actusl
results to differ materially from those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-looking statement or to advise of any change in the
assumptions and factors on which they are based.

lRisks. uncertainties or cther factors that coutd cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement includa, withou! imitation:

:1. health concems relating to the use of tobacco products;

|2. legal or regutatory davetopments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, and private restrictions
| ralating to the use of tabacco products and the impact of government studies;

13. tigation in Japan and elsewhera;

14. our ability to successfully diversify our business beyond the tabacco industry;

15. our ability to successfully expand internationally and make investments outside of Japan;

I6. competition and changing consumer preferences;

I7. the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions;

8. local and glabal economic conditions; and

:9. fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials

§ o ———————————— A —— —



N e T N R SRR

* Excludes sales from the China, Hong Kong, and Macau markets and domestic duty-free sales.

Domestic Tobacco Business Results Market Share in Growing Segments
1. Quarterly Sales Volume (billions of cigarettes) 1. 1mg Tar
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total {1) JT 1mg Tar Product Share (%)
FY 03/2007 54.0 38.8 44.6 39.3 174.9 Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2008 42.7 43.0 43.7 38.2 167.7 FY 03/2007 12.4 12.5 13.3 | 13.6 12.9
FY 03/2009 420 __— FY 03/2008 13.9 13.7 14.0 14.3 14.0
FY 03/2009 14.5 P
(2) JT Share in 1mg Tar Segment (%}
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar
FY 03/2007 61.3 60.9 62.4 62.2
2. Quarterty Retail Price Sales (billions of JPY FY (3/2008 62.0 1.6 B2.1 62.0
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2008 62.4
FY 03/2007 740.3 547.5 664.8 587.0 2,539.5
FY 03/2008 636.7 641.4 651.6 570.0 2,499.8 2. Menthol
£Y 03/2009 626.9 (1) JT Menthol Product Share {%)
* Retail price sales = sales volume " fixed retail price. Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 6.7 6.9 6.7 7.1 6.8
FY 03/2008 7.2 7.5 7.2 7.5 7.4
FY 03/2009 7.5 -
(2} JT Share in Menthol Segment (%)
3. Quartarly Net Sales Per Thousand Cigarettes {JPY Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Rec | Jan-Mar
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | QOct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2007 35.0 341 33.8 34.8
FY 03/2007 11,663 12,677 12,688 12,699 12,371 FY (:3/2008 34.9 35.2 34.0 34.4
FY 03/2008 12,698 12,694 12,704 12,702 12,699 FY 03/2009 34.3
FY 03/2009 12,699
" Met sales per thousand cigareties 3. JPY 320 or above*
= {retail price sales - retailer margins - consumplion tax} / sates voluma * 1,000 {1} JT JPY 320 or above Product Share {%
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 5.7 5.4 5.2 5.5 5.5
FY 03/2008 5.6 5.2 5.4 5.3 5.4
FY 03/2009 5.2 |
4, Quarterly Not Sales Excluding Excise Tax {2) JT Share in JPY 320 or above Segment {%)
Per Thousand Cigarettes {JPY Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2007 24.3 22.5 2286 23.2
FY 03/2007 3,852 4,050 4,050 4,056 3,990 FY 03/2008 23.5 22.0 22.5 21.9
FY 03/2008 4,056 4.053 4,063 4,057 4,057 FY 03/2009 21.7
FY 03/2008 4,056 * JPY 300 or above until Apr-Jun, 2006
* Net sales excluding excise tax per thousand cigarellas 4. Quarterly D-spec Product Share (%)
= {retail price sales - retailer margins - consumplon tax - excise taxes) / sales volume * 1,000 Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 4.12 3.84 3.85 | 4.34 4.04
FY 03/2008 4.41 4.10 4.77 | 5.13 4.59
5. Quarterly JT Market Share (%) FY 03/2009 540 | " | __— |
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec Jan-Mar Total * Pianissimo and Pramier hava been sotd as D-spec products since March 2006,
FY 03/2007 65.5 64.2 64.7 54.5 64.8 Bavel Flair have been sold as D-spec products since December 2006.
FY 03/2008 £4.9 64.5 65.3 65.0 64.9
FY 03/2009 64.9




Japan Tobacco Inc. Clinical development (as of July 31, 2008}

Code

Stage

Indication

Mechanism

Characteristics

Rights

JTT-705
{oral)

Phase2(JPN)

Dyslipidemia

CETP inhibitor

Decreases LDL. and increases HDL by
inhibition of CETP
-CETP:Cholesteryl Ester Transfer
Protein, facilitates transfer of
cholesteryl ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL:High density lipoprotein, Good
Cholesterel

-LDL:Low density lipoprotein, Bad
Cholesterol

Roche (Switzerland}
obtains the rights to
develop and commercializg
this compound worldwide,
with the exception of
Japan.

*Development stage by
Roche:Phase3

JTT-130
(oral)

Phasc2{JPN)
Phasc2{Overseas)

Hyperlipidemia

MTP inhibitor

Treatment of hyperlipidemia by
reducing absorption of cholesterol and
triglyceride via inhibition of MTP
-MTP:Microsomal Triglyceride
‘Transfer Protein

. JTK-303
(oral}

Phose 1{JPN)

HIV infection

Integrase inhibitor

Integrase inhibitor which works by
blocking integrase, an enzyme that is
involved in the replication of HIV
-H1V:Human immunedeficiency Virus

Gilead Sciences (U.S))
obtains the nights to
develop and commercializg
this compound worldwide,
with the exception of
Japan.

*Development stage by
Gilead Sciences:Phuse3

JTT-302
(oral)

Phase2{Overseas)

Dyslipidemia

CETP inhibitor

Decreases LDL and increases HDL by
inhibition of CETP
-CETP:Cholesteryl Ester Transfer
Protein, facilitates transfer of
chotestery! ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL:High density lipoprotein, Good
Chaolesteral

-LDL:Low density lipoprotein, Bad
Cholesterol

: JTT-305
(oral}

Phase2(JPN)
Phasc | (Overscas)

Osteoporosis

CaSR antagonist

Increases BMD and decreases new
vertebral fractures by accelerating
endogenous PTH secretion via
antagonism of circulating Ca on CaSR
in parathyroid cells

-BMD:; Bone Mineral Density

-PTH: Pamathyroid Hormone

-CaSR: Calcium-Sensing Receptor

JTT-552
(oral)

Phasc2(JPN)

Hyperuricemta

URAT] inhibitor

Decreases serum urate concentration by

increasing urtnary urate excretion via
inhibition of URATI,
-URAT I: Urate Transporter

JTT-651
(oral)

Phase1{JPN)

Type 2 diabetes mellitus

GP inhibitor

Decreases blood glucose by suppression

of glucose output from liver via
inhibition of GP
-GP:Glycogen Phosphorylase

JTS-653
(oral)

PhascI{JPN)

Pain
Overactive Bladder

TRPV I antagonist

Improves pain and overactive bladder
via antagenism of TRPV1 on sensory
neurons

- TRPV [ Transient Receptor Potential
Vanilloid subtype |

JTT-654
(oral)

Phase 1{Overscas)

Type 2 diabetes mellitus

H3D-1 inhibitor

Improves type 2 diabetes through
reducing excessive glucoconicoid
action by inhibiting HSD-|

- HSD1:11beta-hydroxysteroid

dehydrogenase typel

Changes from the previous announcement on May 1, 2008:

Development of JTT-553 was terminated.

Development of JTK-652 was terminated.
"Rights” column of JTK-303: Gilcad Sciences, licensee of JTK-303, started phase 3 clinical trial , therefore this information has been adde



JAPAN TORACCO INC
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

JT Reports Consolidated Financial Results
for the First Quarter that Ended June 30, 2008

TOKYO, July 31, 2008 --- Japan Tobacco Inc. (JT) (TSE: 2914) announced today its
consolidated financial results for the first quarter that ended June 30, 2008.

1. Overview of the Consolidated Three-Month Financial Results

» During the quarter that ended June 30, 2008, JT maintained its domestic market

share of 64.9 percent, compared to the previous fiscal year, due to continued

~ marketing efforts focusing on Mild Seven. However, net sales in the domestic

tobacco business decreased 1.6 percent, due mainly to the decline of overall

tobacco consumption, and operating income decreased 10.6 percent due in part to
increased costs related to sales promotion.

» JT’s international tobacco business', a driving force of profit growth for the JT
Group, has achieved significant growth in net sales and operating income, an
increase of 172.8 percent and 77.3 percent respectively, compared to the same
period in the previous year. This was mainly led by strong top-line growth as well
as the integration of the Gallaher business.

» JT’s consolidated net sales increased 41.0 percent compared to the same penod
last year, primarily due to the performance of the international tobacco business.
Operating income increased 18.3 percent, attributed to growth in the international
tobacco business, while goodwill amortization in the business began in the fiscal
year. However net income decreased 73.2 percent due in part to foreign exchange
appraisal losses at the end of the period, related to euro-denominated bonds, losses
on disposition and impairment, related to the company’s unused dormitories, and
decline of gains received from the sale of fixed assets.

“I'm pleased that Mild Seven has continuously shown solid performance in Japan,
contributing to maintaining our domestic market share during the period. At the same
time, we are fully committed to the expansion of the “taspo” card system, in the
prevention of underage smoking, as a responsible market leader,” said Hiroshi Kimura,
President and CEO of JT. “Our international tobacco business, strengthened by the
integration of Gallaher, is achieving quality top-line growth and enhancing its position
as a driving force for the Group’s profitable growth.”

! The results of the international tobacco business from January 1o March 2008 were incorporated into
JT’s consolidated financial results for the quarter that ended June 30, 2008.
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2. Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter that Ended June 30.

2008
Units; Billions of Yen
1Q 1Q Net change
FY03/2008 FY03/2009 (%)
Net sales 1,219.7 1,719.8 41.0
EBITDA? 126.6 180.6 42.7
Operating income 933 110.4 18.3
Net income 63.0 16.9 -73.2
3. Results by Business Segment
» Domestic Tobacco Business
1Q 1Q Net change
FY03/2008 FY03/2009 (%0)
Net sales
(billions of yen) 836.7 842.6 1.6
Operating income
(billions of yen) 624 558 -10.6
Sales volume®
(billions of cigarettes) 427 42.0 13

Sales volume for the domestic tobacco business during the first quarter that ended
June 30, 2008, decreased only 1.5 percent compared to the same period in the previous
year, due to transient market factors. While total cigarette consumption has continued
to decline due to demographic factors, increased inventory in over-the-counter sales
channels, including at convenience stores just prior to the phased launches of the
“taspo” card age verification vending machine system in the respective areas,
alleviated the downward trend.

Net sales decreased by 1.6 percent, and operating income decreased 10.6 percent, due
in part to increased costs related to sales promotions.

During the quarter, JT maintained its market share of 64.9 percent, compared to the
previous fiscal year. This reflects the company’s continued marketing efforts focusing
on brands, especially Mild Seven.

2 EBITDA was calculated as: operating income -+ depreciation of tangible fixed assets + amortization
of intangible fixed assets + amortization of long-term prepaid expenses + amortization of goodwill.

3 Sales volume from both domestic duty free and the “China Division™ were not incorporated in the
above figures, which totaled 1.0 billion cigarettes in the first quarter that ended June 30, 2008.
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> International Tobacco Business

January - March January - March Net change
2007 2008 (%)
Net Saéeb?m_ons of yen) 2725 7433 172.8
Ope’at(ﬁfli‘;';:‘:;yen) 29.4 52.2 77.3
g D
e

In the first quarter that ended March 31, 2008%, JT’s international tobacco business
continued its strong growth momentum. In addition to the integration of the Gallaher
business, a strong performance of Winston, Camel and Mild Seven contributed to a
steady top-line growth in the period.

GFB sales volume grew 56.6 percent to 55.6 billion cigarettes compared to the same
period last year, led by the increased sales of Winston with strong performances in
Russia, Ukraine, the Philippines, Spain, Turkey and Italy; Camel with major gains in
Italy, Spain and Russia; and Mild Seven with solid results in Korea, Taiwan and
Russia. GFB performance also reflected the additional contribution of B&H and Silk
Cut in the United Kingdom and Ireland; and LD, Sobranie and Glamour in Russia,
Ukraine and Kazakhstan.

As a result, total sales volume continued a strong growth of 79.9 percent to 103.9
billion cigarettes compared to the same period in the previous year. Net sales
including tax grew 172.8 percent, and operating income increased by 77.3 percent.

» Pharmaceutical Business
Units; Billions of Yen

1Q 1Q Net change
FY03/2008 FY03/2009 (%)

Net sales i1.2 16.1 43.7

Operating income -2.9 2.1 -

4 Gallaher's business was not incorporated into JT's international tobacco business during the first
quarter that ended March 31, 2007, as JT’s acquisition of Gallaher was completed on April 18, 2007.

% Global Flagship Brands (GFB) were revised following the acquisition of Gallaher to include eight
brands: Winston, Camel, Mild Seven, Benson & Hedges, Silke Cut, LD, Sobranie and Glamour. GFB
sales volume figures in this press release are based on the current GFB definition. Please note that
GFB sales volume figures prior to the acquisition of Gallaher include Winston, Camel and Mild Seven
only.

¢ The results of the international tobacco business from January to March 2008 were incorporaied into
JT’s consolidated financial results for the quarter that ended June 30, 2008.
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Net sales for JT’s pharmaceutical business during the quarter that ended June 30, 2008,
increased 43.7 percent compared to the same period in the previous year, due mainly
to revenue received from a milestone payment related to the development of “JTT-
705,” a compound for the treatment of dyslipidemia licensed to Roche for the overseas
market. Operating income amounted to ¥2.1 billion, an improvement of ¥5.1 billion
from ¥2.9 billion in operating losses in the same period last year. This was due mainly
to milestone revenue, while the company increased R&D expenditure, and profit at
Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a JT subsidiary, decreased.

The company terminated the development of “JTT-553" and “JTK-652,” and currently

has nine compounds under clinical tnal.

» Foods Business
Units: Billions of Yen

1Q
FY03/2008

1Q
FY03/2009’

Net change
(%)

Net sales

73.9

112.6

524

Operating income

1.3

-2.7

Net sales for the processed foods business decreased following a voluntary product
recall related to the company’s frozen foods products, and in addition, sales in the
beverage business declined for the period due to the factors including weather
conditions and increased competition. However net sales for JT's foods business
increased 52.4 percent during the quarter that ended June 30, 2008, reflecting the
consolidation of the business including Katokichi Co., Ltd. Operating income posted
a loss of ¥2.7 billion, due mainly to increased expenses, the rising prices of raw
materials, and goodwill amortization relating to the acquisition of Katokichi.

#HH#

Japan Tobacco Inc. is the world's third largest international manufacturer of tobacco products.
The company manufactures internationally recognized cigarette brands including Winston, Camel,
Mild Seven and Benson & Hedges. Since its privatization in 1985, JT has actively diversified its
operations into pharmaceuticals and foods. The company's net sales were ¥6.409 trillion in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

7 Katokichi Co., Ltd. became a subsidiary of JT on January 8, 2008, following a successful tender offer
for the shares of the company. Please note that Katokichi’s business was incorporated into JT’s
consolidated financial results from January 1, 2008 onward.
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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives,
financial condition and results of operations that are based on our current expeclations, assumptions,
estimates and projections. These statements discuss future expectations, identify strategies, discuss
market trends, contain projections of resulls of operations or of our financial condition or state other
forward-looking information. These forward-looking statements are subject to various known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially
from those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We assume no duty or obligation to update any
forward-looking statement or to advise of any change in the assumptions and factors on which they are
based.

Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in any forward-looking statement include, without limitation:

1
2.

el e R il

health concemns relating to the use of tobacco products;

legal or regulatory developments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and
restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, and governmental investigations
and privately imposed smoking restrictions;

litigation in Japan and elsewhere;

our ability to further diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry;

our ability to successfully expand internationally and make investments outside of Japan;
competition and changing consumer preferences;

the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions,

local and global economic conditions; and

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials.



1. Breakdown of net sales

(unit: JPY billion}

5. Amortization relating to major acquisitions

{unit: JPY billion)

(Before royally payment)

*1 EBITD!

4 Income + depreciabon and emortization®

*2 Dopreciation and amortzalion = depreciation of tangible fixed assels + BmorZAUon of intangibie
fixad assels + amortizabon of long-term prepaid sxpanses + amoruzation of goodwill

*3 jonal b 3 months endad Mar. 2008

Blso sell non-JT brand beverages,

Imonths | 3 months 3 months | 3 months .
ended anded Change d ended ended :,:::j:o ::::1
Jun. 2007 | Jun, 2008 Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008 e m
Net sales including excise tax ' 1,219.7| 1,719.8 500.0 Former RJRI
Domesti tobacco 856.7 B42.8 -14.1 Trademark rights 73 7.3 10| Apr-09
jEchuding imported tobacco 552.9 542.5 -10.4 Patents 0.4 8| Apro7
International tobaceo 272.5 743.3 470.8 Katokichi
[Excluding distribution business 2725 667.3 394.8 [Goodwil 2.2 5| Dec-12
Net sales excluding excise tax ' 423.3 571.7 148.4 {unit: USD million}
i 2 182.5 1779 4.6 JT Intemational Imonths | 3 months
Domestic tobacco — ona ended ended Years to
Intermational tobacco ™ 150.2 260.0 109.7 Mar. 2007 | Mar. 2008 | Moz
Pharmaceutical 11.2 16.1 4.9 Former RJRI and Gallaher
Foods 73.9 112.6 38.7 Trademark rights * 1.5 7.1] mainly 20
Beverages 48.3 46.6 -1.7 Goodwill - 22.6 20
Processed foods 255 65.9 40.4 * Terminaton of rademark nghts amortzation: Former RJRI Apr- 19, Former Gallaher Mar-27
Others 5.3 5.0 0.2 6.Capital expenditure {unit: JPY billion}
*1 intermabonal tobaceo business: 3 months ended Mar. 2008 Imenths | 3 months
ended ended Change
“2 Nel sales excluding excise 1ax: Excluding imported tobacco in bacoa and Jun. 2007 ] Jun. 2008
" in X Capital expanditures 28.4 20.3 -6.0
Domestic tobacco 15.5 8.2 7.2
2. Leaf tobacco reappraisal profit / loss * {unit: JPY billion) International tobacteo * 6.8 6.4 -0.4
3 months | 3 months i
it A . 0.4
endod ended Change Pharmaceutical 0.3 0.8
Jun. 2007 1 Jun. 2008 Foods 1.2 28 1.6
Leai tobacco reappraisal profit / loss -1.0 -1.0 0.0 Othars 29 1.7 -1.1
* Profit when denoted negative * International lobaceo business' 3 manths ended Mar. 2005
7. Cash and cash aquivalonts * {unit: JPY billign}
3. Breakdown of SG&A expenses {unit: JPY billion} As of end of | As of end of ch
Tmonths | 3 months Mar. 2008 | Jun. 2008 ange
endod ended Change -
Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008 Cash and cash equivalents 2188 2185 -0.3
SG&RA 1454 214.8 69.3 « Cash and cash equr is = cash and + markstable securities
K cha
Parsonnet - 4 579 6.4 + sacurilies purchased under rapurchase agreements
Advertising and general publicity 4.3 53 0.9 8. Interast-boaring debt * {unit: JPY billion)
Sales promotion 303 36.0 5.6 AsofendoffAsofendof| .
R&D 02 12 Y Mar. 2008 § Jun. 2008 | B
Depreciation and amortization 14.1 224 8.3 Interest-bearing debt 1,389.2 1,377.5 -11.7
Others 449 81.8 38,9 * Interast-bearing debl a short-term bank loans + bonds + long-ierm bormowings
+ Personnel expense is the sum of campensation, salaries, allowances, provision for 9. Businoss dota Imonths | 2 months
retirement benefit, legal welfare, employee bonuses and acerual of employee bonuses. ended ended Change
<Domasti¢ tcbacco business> Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008
JT sales volume* (billion cigareftes) 427 42.0 0.6
. EBITDA by business segment ' {unit! JPY bilfion) Total demand (billion cigarefltes) 658 64.8 -1.0
Smonths | 3 months JT markel share 64.9%|  ©64.9%|  0.0%pt
ended ended Change
Jun. 2007 | Jun, 2008 JT net sales before tax per 1,000 cigarettes (JPY) 12,698 12,699 1
Consolidated EBITDA 126.6 180.6 54.0 JT net sales after tax per 1,000 cigarettes (JPY) 4,056 4,056 0
Operating incoms h 93.3 110.4 17.1 + Sars volume of domestic duty-free and China division i3 excluded, which was 0.8 tilkon for FY ended Jun.
c 7 and 1.0billi Jun. 2008, .
Depreciation and amortization 2 33.2 701 36.9 2007 an ilan for FY ended Jur respectve
Domestic tobacca EBITOA 82.6 75.5 7.0 3months |3 manihs
ended ended Change
Operating income 62.4 55.8 -6.5 <Internatipnal tobacco business> Mar. 2007 | Mar. 2008
Depreciation and amortization 20.2 18.7 -0.4 Total sales volume {billion cigareties) 57.7 103.9 46.1

International tobacco ESITDA 2 37.9 94.7 58.7 GFB sales volume (billion cigareties) 355 55.6 201
Operating income 294 52.2 227 JPYAISD rata for consctidation (JPY) 119.45 105,25 -14.20
Depreciation and amortization 8.4 424 34.0

Pharmacsutical EBITDA -2.1 3.0 52 3months |3 months

—— ended ended Change
Operating income 29 21 5.1 <Pharmaceutical business> Jun. 2007 | Jun. 2008
Depreciation and amontization K Q.7 0.8 0.1 [R&D expenses (parent company) {JPY billion) 55 58 0.3

Foods EBITDA 25 1.8 -0.6

Operating income 1.3 -2.7 -4.1 As of end of | As of end of
— — ; . Mar. 2008 | Jun, 2008 | Co"99
Depraciation and amortization 1.1 4.5 34 <Foods business - Beverage business» . un.

Qthers EBITDA 6.1 5.1 -0.9 Number of baverage vending machines * 257,000 | 258,000 1,000
Operating income 31 2.5 -0.6 JT-owned 35,500 35,000 -500
Depreciation and amortization ? 2.9 2.5 -0.2 Combined 71,500 73,500 2,000

(Reference) {unit: USD mitlion) + Baverage vanding machines include vend:ng machines for cans and packs, stc. and for cups awned by other

- jas and operated Dy our iary. *JT-owned® vending machines are owned by JT. "Combined

International tobacco EBITDA 151 048 597 vending machines are owrved by cur subsidianes or affiiates ,and focus on seling JT trand heverages but




Consolidated financial outlook for the fiscal year ending Mar. 31, 2009 compared to the results of previous fiscal year

{JPY billion)
FY ended FY ending [ Major assurmplions |
Mar, 2008 Mar. 2009 Change
{Actuat) (Fotecisl) Domestic tobacco business (billions of cigaroties)
Net sales including excise tax 6,409.7 6,610.0 200.2 FY ended FY ending Change
JEBITDA 602.0 593.0 -9.0 Mar. 2008 Mar, 2009
Ogerating income 430.5 EiRAY -119.5 Satas volume 167.7 169.0 -8.7
Recurring profit 362.6 278.0 4.6 *Excludes sales of domestic duty-free and China division
Nel income 238.7 148.0 -90.7
Retum on Equity 11.8% 7.7% -4.1%pt Intermational tobacco business (bilions of cigarettes, JPY)
Free Cash Flow' -1493.7 265.0 1,758.7 FY erded FY ending Change
*Free Cash Flow is cash flow from operating activiies plus cash flow from investing Mar. 2008 Mar. 2009
activilies less the items below: Tatal sales volume 385.6 450.0 84 4
<From cash flow from operating aclivilies> GFB sales volume 203.2 2430 39.8
(ass;::;r;r.; ;eg;:i‘:ma:: er:e::::t;d and tax implication by deducting the items IPY/USD rate 117.85 100.00 17.85
- Intarest paid and the tax implication by deducing the item (assumption of corporate
tax rate: 42%)
<Fram cash flow from invesling activities> Goodwlll amortization relating to major acquisitions
- Purchases of and proceeds from sale of markelable securilies Interational lobacco business (unit: USD emililon)
- Purchases of and proceeds from sale of investment securilies and others o a1 -
FCF calculated according 1o the above adjustment may not be equal o FCF shown on the the basia for lhe FY ending Yeam. to Termination
above table. The difference comes from purchases of and proceads from sale of business : pmorzaLon Mar 2009 amortize
investment securities which are included in invastment securities on the Cash flow Former RJR1 and Gallaher 18,159 908 20 Mar-27
statemant but excluded from the adjustment above. * Termination of goodwill amorlization: Former RJRI Apr-19, Former Gallaher Mar-27
{JPY billion) Foods Businass {unit: JPY biltion}
FY ended FY endin Goodwidamouni as| £y gnginy Years lo .
Mar. 2008 Mar. zoo: Change amoriasoon MBL?UDg amortize | TOT"HO"
Capital expenditures 129.5 148.0 19.4 Kalokichi 45.0 9.0 5 Dec-12
Domestic labacco 57.2 83.0 5.7
International tohacco 48.4 58.0 7.5 Trademark rlghts amortization relating to major acquisitions
Pharmaceulical 4,2 3.0 -1.2 JT {unit: JPY billion}
Foods 6.0 23.0 16.9 FY ended FY andin, Years io _—
Other 14.7 4.0 -10.7 Mar. 2008 Mar. 2003 amortize Terminalion
) Former RJRI 29.3 29.3 10 Apr-09
Consolidated financial outlook by business segment {JPY billion)
FY ended FY ending Change JT International {unit: USD millien)
Mar. 2008 Mar. 2008 Year ended Year ending Years' to Termination
Net sales including excise lax 65,408.7 6.610.0 200.2 Dec. 2007 Dec. 2008 amortize
Domestic tobacco 3,362.3 3,165.0 -197.3 Former RJR! and Gallaher 220 284 mainty 20 Mar-27
[Excluuing imported tobacco 2,169.2 2,049.0 -120.2 * Termination of trademark rights amorlization; Former RJRI Apr-19, Former Gallaher Mar-27
International tabacco 26399 2,896.0 256.0
[Exctuding distribution businesd] 23810 2,618.0 236.9
Pharmaceutical 49.0 44.5 4.5
Foods 336.4 486.0 149.5
EBITDA 602.0 533.0 -9.0
Domasiic tobacco 306.7 261.0 -45.7
International tobacco 270.7 301.0 30.2
Pharmaceutical 6.2 8.0 -1.7
Foods 8.3 26.0 17.6
Operating income 430.5 1.0 -118.5
Domestic tobacco 222.3 173.0 -49.3
International tobacco 205.3 144.0 -61.3
Pharmaceutical -9.6 -12.0 -2.3
Foods 0.6 4.0 4.6
{JPY)
FY endad FY ending Change
Mar, 2008 Mar, 2009
Divigend per share 4,800 5,200 400
Pay-out Ralio 19.3% 33.7% 14,4%p1
| {goodwill amostization adjusted } 19.0% 19.9% 0.9%01

|<FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS>

IThis matarial contains forward-looking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives, financial condition and results of operations thal are based on our current expeciations,
assumplions, eslimates and projections. These statements discuss fulure expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain projections of results of operations or of our financial
condition, or siate other iorward-looking information. These forward-ooking statements are subject lo various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other lactors that could cause our actual

llesuns to differ materially from those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We assume no duty or obligation to update any forward-iogking statement or 10 advise of eny change in the
assumplions and factors on which they are based.

|Risks, uncenainties or other factors thal could cause aclual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement include, without limitation:

|
I
I
1
|
|
|
1
:1. health concerns relating to the use of tobacco products; :
)2. legal or regutatory developments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions on 1he sale, marketing and usage of tobacco products, and privaie restrictions 1
] relating to the use of tobacco products and the impact of government studies; 1
J3. litigation in Japan and elsewhere; 1
14, our ability to successtully diversifty our business beyond the tobacco industry; |
15. our ability to sut fully expand int ionally and make investments cutside of Japen; 1
I6. competition and changing consumer preferences; |
I7. the impaci of any acquisitions or similar transactians; 1
I8, tocal and glabal economic conditions; and |
l9. fluctuations in loreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materals :




* Excludes sales from the China, Hong Kong, and Macau markets and domestic duty-free sales.

Domestic Tobacco Businass Results

P L I T S ]

Market Share in Growing Segments

1. Quarterly Sales Voluma (billions of cigareties) 1, 1mg Tar
Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec_| Jan-Mar Total {1) JT 1mg Tar Product Share (%)
FY 03/2007 54.0 36.8 44.6 39.3 174.9 Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec i Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2008 42.7 43.0 43.7 38.2 167.7 FY 03/2007 12.4 12.5 13.3 13.6 12.9
FY 03/2009 20 — T FY 03/2008 13.9 13.7 14.0 14.3 14.0
FY 03/2009 14.5
{2) JT Share in 1mg Tar Segment (%)
Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar
Y 0312007 61.3 60.9 62.4 | 52.2
2. Quarterly Retail Price Sales (billions of JPY} FY 03/2008 62.0 61.6 62.1 | 62.0
Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2009 62.4 |
FY 03/2007 740.3 547.5 664.6 587.0 2,539.5
FY 03/2008 636.7 641.4 651.6 570.0 2,499.8 . Menthol
FY 03/2009 62691 _— o {1) JT Menthol Product Share (%)
* Retail prica sales = sales volume * fixed ratail price. Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 6.7 6.9 6.7 | 7.1 6.8
FY 03/2008 7.2 7.5 7.2 7.5 7.4
FY (3/2009 7.5
{2) JT Share in Menthol Segment (%)
3. Quarterly Net Sales Per Thousand Cigarettes (JPY Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2007 35.0 34.1 338 | 34.8
FY 03/2007 11,663 12,677 12,688 12,699 12,371 FY 03/2008 4.9 35.2 34.0 4.4
FY 03/2008 12,688 12,694 12,704 12,702 12,699 FY 03/2009 34.3
FY 03/2008 12,699 |
* Met sales per thousand cigareiles . JPY 320 or above”
= {retail price sales - retaler margins - consumption tax) / cales volurne * 1,000 (1} JT JPY 320 or above Product Share (%)
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 5.7 5.4 5.2 | 5.5 5.5
FY 03/2008 5.6 5.2 5.4 | 5.3 5.4
FY 03/2009 5.2 |
4. Quarterly Net Sales Excluding Excise Tax (2) JT Share in JPY 320 or above Segment (%}
Par Thousand Cigarettes (JPY} Apr-Jun Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar
Apr-Jun | Jul-Sep | Oct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total FY 03/2007 24.3 22.5 226 | 23.2
FY 03/2007 3,852 4,050 4,050 4,056 3,980 FY 03/2008 23.5 22.0 22.5 21.9
FY 03/2008 4,056 4,053 4,083 4,057 4,057 FY 03/2009 21.7
FY 03/2008 4,056 * JPY 300 or above until Apr-Jun, 2006
* Met sales excluding excise lax per theusand cigaretias . Quarterly D-spec Product Share (%)
= {redail price sales - retailer margins - consumplion tax - excise laxes) / sales volume * 1,000 ~ Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec | Jan-Mar Total
FY 03/2007 4.12 3.84 3.85 | 4.34 4.04
FY 03/2008 4.41 4.10 4.77 | 513 4.59
5. CQuarterly JT Market Share (%) FY 03/2009 5.10 |
Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Qct-Dec Jan-Mar Total * Piapissimo and Premier have been sold as D-spec producls since March 2006.
FY 0312007 65.5 64.2 B64.7 645 64.8 Bevel Flair have been sold as D-spec products sinca Daecember 2006.
Fy 03/2008 64.9 64.5 65.3 65.0 64.9
FY 03/2009 649 —




Japan Tobacco Inc. Clinical development (as of July 31, 2008)

Code

Stage

Indication

Mechanism

Characteristics

Rights

JTT-705
(oral)

Phase2(IPN}

Dyslipidemia

CETP inhibitor

Decreases LDL and increases HDL by
inhibition of CETP
-CETP:Cholesteryl Ester Transfer
Protein, facilitates transfer of
cholesteryl ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL:High density lipoprotein, Good
Cholestercl

-LDL:Low density lipoprotein, Bad
Chotesterol

Roche (Switzerland)
obtains the rights to
develop and commercializg
this compound worldwide,
with the exception of
Japan.

*Development stage by
Roche:Phase]

JTT-130
{oral)

Phasc2(JPN)
Phase2{Overseas)

Hyperlipidemia

MTP inhibitor

Treatment of hyperlipidemia by
reducing absorption of cholesterol and
triglyceride via inhibition of MTP
-MTP:Microsomal Triglyceride
Transfer Protein

JTK-303
(oral)

Phasc I1{JPN)

HIV infection

Integrase inhibitor

Integrase inhibitor which works by
|blocking integrase, an enzyme that is
involved in the replication of HIV
-HIV:Human Immunedeficiency Virus

Gilead Sciences (U.S.)
oblains the rights to
devetop and commercializy
this compound worldwide,
with the exception of
Japan.

*Development stage by
Gilead Sciences:Phasel

JTT-302
{oral}

Phasc2(Overscas)

Dyslipidemia

CETP inhibitor

Decreases LDL and increases HDL by
inhibition of CETP
-CETP:Cholesleryl Ester Transfer
Protein, facilitates transfer of
cholestery] ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL:High density lipoprotein, Good
Cholesterol

-L.DL:Low density lipoprotein, Bad
Cholesterol

FTT-305
(oral)

Phase2(JPN)
JPhascl(OvchCas)

Osteoporosis

CaSR antagonist

Increases BMD and decreases new
vertebral fractures by accelerating
endogenous PTH secretion via
Jantagonism of circulating Ca on CaSR
in parathyroid cells

-BMD: Bone Mineral Density

-PTH: Parathyroid Hormone

-CaSR: Calcium-Sensing Receptor

JTT-552
(oral)

Phase2(JPN)

Hyperuricemia

URAT?! inhibitor

Decreases serum urate concentration by
increasing urinary uraie excretion via
inhibition of URATI.

-URAT 1: Urate Transporter |

JTT-651
(oral)

Phase l (JPN)

Type 2 diabetes mellitus

GP inhibitor

Decreases blood glucose by suppression
of glucose output from liver via
inhibition of GP

-GP:Glycogen Phosphorylase

JTS-653
{orat)

Phase1(JPN}

Pain
Overactive Bladder

TRPV1 antagonist

Improves pain and overactive bladder
via antagonism of TRPV | on sensory
neurons

- TRPV1:Transient Receptor Potential
Vanilloid subtype |

JTT-654
(oral)

Phase{(Overscas)

Type 2 diabetes meilitus

HSD-1 inhibitor

Improves type 2 diabetes through
reducing excessive glucocorticoid
action by inhibiling HSD-1

- HSD1:11beta-hydroxysteroid
dehydrogenase typel

Changes from the previous announcement on May 1, 2008:

Development of JTT-553 was terminated.

Development of JTK-652 was terminated.
"Rights” column of JTK-303: Gilead Sciences, licensee of JTK-303, started phase 3 clinical trial , therefore this information has been adde



ANNEX
INFORMATION DISTRIBUTED
JAPANESE LANGUAGE DOCUMENTS
(brief description of Japanese language document listed below is set out in

EXHIBIT A hereto)

Amendment to Significant Shareholders’ Report dated July 18, 2008

ENGLISH LANGUAGE DOCUMENTS

(English documents listed from items 1 to 5 below are included in EXHIBIT B
hereto)

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 for the Year Ended March 31, 2008

JT's UK Subsidiaries Reach Resolution Agreement with OFT

Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter of the Fiscal Year Ending
March 31, 2009

JT Reports Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter that Ended June
30, 2008

JT Reports International Tobacco Business Results for January - June 2008
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EXHIBIT A
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF JAPANESE LANGUAGE DOCUMENTS

Amendment to Significant Shareholders’ Report dated July 18, 2008

Significant Shareholders’ Report regarding change of the contract related to
JT’s stake in the Frontier Real Estate Investment Corporation was submitted to

Kanto Local Financial Bureau pursuant to Article 27-25-1 of the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Law.
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EXHIBIT B
ENGLISH DOCUMENTS

Set out below is the English documents referred to m ANNEX, Section B, items
1t05.
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IAPAN TOBACCO INC

2-1, Toranomon 2chome, Minato-ku
Tnkyn 105-8422 JAPAN
Phone;03-3582-3111

RECEIVED

!
13 L As

Contacts:  Yukiko Seto, General Manager ol us it A bug
Yuka Kin, Manager
Media and Investor Relations Division P SCTOF BT TION AL
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Japan Tobacco Inc. CORPORATE Froohbck

Tokyo: +81-3-5572-4292
E-mail: jt.media.relations@ims.jti.co.jp

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

JT Reports International Tobacco Business Results for
January — June 2008

Tokyo, July 31, 2008 -- Japan Tobacco Inc. (JT) (TSE: 2914) today announced its
international tobacco business results for the six-month period between January 1 and
June 30, 2008.

In the first half that ended June 30, 2008, Japan Tobacco International (JTI), JT’s
international tobacco business operation, increased its sales volume by 38.8 percent to
221.1 billion cigarettes compared to the same period last year'.

Global Flagship Brand (GFB?) sales volume increased 34.9 percent to 119.2 billion
cigarettes compared to the same period last year. This increase was driven with strong
performances by Winston in Russia, Ukraine, Turkey, Spain, Near East and the
Philippines; Camel in Italy, Russia and Spain; and Mild Seven in Korea, Taiwan and
Russia. GFB performance also reflects the additional contribution of B&H and Silk
Cut in the United Kingdom and Ireland; and LD, Sobranie and Glamour in Russia,
Ukraine and Kazakhstan.

Net sales excluding tax amounted to US$5.186 billion, an increase of 54.6 percent from
the previous year. Net sales per thousand cigarettes, excluding tax, rose 11.4 percent
to US$ 23.5.

' Gallaher results are incorporated from April 18, 2007 onward.
2 GFB includes eight brands: Winston, Camel, Mild Seven, Benson & Hedges, Silk Cut, LD, Sobranie
and Glamour.
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International Tobacco Business Results for January — June 2008

{(April-June 2008 results are preliminary)

2007 2008
Jan-Mar | Apr-Jun | Total | Jan-Mar | Apr-Jun | Total
e O of cgreney| 577 | 1006 [ 1593 | 1039 | 1172 | 2211
GFB sales VOIu(manons of cgetey| 355 | 528 | 883 | ss6 | 635 | 1192
Netsales, Including B eoruss)| 2282 | S424 | 7705 | 6341 | 6977 | 13317
Netsales, excluding o vworussy| 1298 | 2007 | 3355 | 2471 | 2716 | 5,186

Note:

1. Gallaher results are incorporated from Apnt 18, 2007 onward.

2. All net sales information excludes the distribution businesses acquired as part of the Gallaher

transaction.

3. GFB sales volume figures are based on the new GFB definition. Accordingly, GFB sales volumes
during the pre-acquisition period include Winston, Camel and Mild Seven only.

#H

Japan Tobacco Inc. is the world's third largest international manufacturer of tobacco
products. The company manufactures internationally recognized cigarette brands
including Winston, Camel, Mild Seven and Benson & Hedges. Since its privatization
in 1985, JT has actively diversified its operations into pharmaceuticals and foods. The
company 5 net sales were ¥6.409 trillion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.
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